United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Drive
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
www.yorkville.il.us

AGENDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, July 22, 2025
7:00 p.m.
City Hall Council Chambers
651 Prairie Pointe Drive, Yorkville, IL

Call to Order:

Pledge of Allegiance:

Roll Call by Clerk: WARD I WARD II WARD III WARD IV
Ken Koch Arden Joe Plocher Chris Funkhouser Rusty Corneils
Dan Transier Craig Soling Matt Marek Rusty Hyett

Establishment of Quorum:
Amendments to Agenda:
Presentations:
1. Yorkville Police Department Illinois Enforcement Accreditation Program (ILEAP) Award

2. Yorkville Police Department Distinguished Service Awards: Detective Johnson, Detective Ketchmark,
Detective/School Resource Officer Goldsmith, Trooper Enk, Detective Sergeant Nelson, and
Deputy Chief Mikolasek

3. Parks and Recreation Department — Recognition of July 4™ Volunteers
Public Hearings:
Citizen Comments on Agenda Items:
Consent Agenda:

1. Minutes of the Regular City Council — June 24, 2025

2. Bill Payments for Approval

$ 11,481.80 (vendors — FY 25)

$ 3,303,372.14 (vendors — FY 26)

$ 448,860.25 (payroll period ending 07/03/25)
$ 3,763,714.19 (total)

3. PW 2025-66 Resolution Approving a Pipe Line Crossing License Agreement with Illinois Railway LLC
(East Alley Water Main Replacement Project) — authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute

4. PW 2025-67 Resolution Approving Pipe Line Crossing License Agreements with Illinois Railway LLC
(2025 Water Main Replacement Project) — authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute

5. ADM 2025-24 Treasurer’s Reports for May and June 2025



City Council Agenda
July 22, 2025
Page 2
Mayor’s Report:
1. CC 2025-54 Appointment of FOIA Officer — John Burner

2. CC 2025-55 Resolution Authorizing a Representative to Sign Loan Application and Documents
Pertaining to the Public Water Supply Loan Program

3. CC 2025-56 Illinois Public Library and Yorkville Public Library Annual Reports
Public Works Committee Report:

1. PW 2025-65 Resolution Approving a Change Order to a Contract to Construct a 1,500,000
Gallon Standpipe and Water Main

2. PW 2025-68 Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Sewer Vac Truck
3. PW 2025-69 Cannonball Estates SSA Plan

Economic Development Committee Report:

Public Safety Committee Report:

Administration Committee Report:

1. ADM 2025-27 Resolution Approving the Bid and Purchase of Computers, Docking Stations, and
Monitors

Park Board:
Planning and Zoning Commission:
1. PZC 2025-07 Project Steel — Prologis (Data Center) — Discussion
2. PZC 2025-08 & EDC 2025-50 Project Cardinal — Pioneer (Data Center) — Discussion
a. Ordinance Approving a Planned Unit Development Agreement with Pioneer Development, LLC

b. Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Annexation Agreement for Certain Territory
Located at the Southwest Corner of Baseline Road and North Bridge Street

c. Ordinance Approving the Rezoning to the M-2 General Manufacturing Zoning District of
Certain Territory Located at the Southwest Corner of Baseline Road and North Bridge
Street (State Route 47)

d. Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory Located at the Southwest Corner of Baseline Road and
North Bridge Street to the United City of Yorkville

3. PZC 2025-10 & EDC 2025-52 Ordinance Approving the Final Plat of Subdivisions for Heartland
Meadows West

4. PZC 2025-11 & EDC 2025-53 Ordinance Approving the Final Plat of Subdivisions for Fox Haven
Subdivision

City Council Report:
City Clerk’s Report:
Community and Liaison Report:

Staff Report:
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Mayor’s Report (cont’d):
4. CC 2025-08 Public Works and Parks Department Facility Update
5. CC 2025-09 Lake Michigan Water Project Update
Additional Business:
Citizen Comments:
Executive Session:
Adjournment:
COMMITTEES, MEMBERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
ADMINISTRATION: August 20, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. — East Conference Room #337,
Committee Departments Liaisons
Chairman: Alderman Corneils Finance Library
Vice-Chairman: Alderman Marek Administration
Committee: Alderman Koch
Committee: Alderman Funkhouser
EECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT: August 5, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. — East Conference Room #337
Committee Departments Liaisons
Chairman: Alderman Koch Community Development  Planning & Zoning Commission
Vice-Chairman: Alderman Plocher Building Safety & Zoning  Kendall Co. Plan Commission
Committee: Alderman Marek
Committee: Alderman Hyett

EPUBLIC SAFETY: September 4, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. — East Conference Room #3375

Committee Departments Liaisons
Chairman: Alderman Funkhouser Police School District
Vice-Chairman: Alderman Transier

Committee: Alderman Soling

Committee: Alderman Hyett

EPUBLIC WORKS: August 19, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. — East Conference Room #337@

Committee Departments Liaisons
Chairman: Alderman Soling Public Works Park Board
Vice-Chairman: Alderman Corneils Engineering YBSD
Committee: Alderman Transier Parks and Recreation

Committee: Alderman Plocher



UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

WORKSHEET
CITY COUNCIL
Tuesday, July 22, 2025
7:00 PM
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA:
PRESENTATIONS:

1. Yorkville Police Department Illinois Enforcement Accreditation Program (ILEAP) Award

2. Yorkville Police Department Distinguished Service Awards: Detective Johnson, Detective Ketchmark,
Detective/School Resource Officer Goldsmith, Trooper Enk, Detective Sergeant Nelson, and
Deputy Chief Mikolasek



3. Parks and Recreation Department — Recognition of July 4™ Volunteers

CITIZEN COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS:

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Minutes of the Regular City Council — June 24, 2025
[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes




2. Bill Payments for Approval
[] Approved
[] As presented
[] As amended
[] Notes

3. PW 2025-66 Resolution Approving a Pipe Line Crossing License Agreement with Illinois Railway LLC
(East Alley Water Main Replacement Project)

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes

4. PW 2025-67 Resolution Approving Pipe Line Crossing License Agreements with Illinois Railway LLC
(2025 Water Main Replacement Project)

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes




5. ADM 2025-24 Treasurer’s Reports for May and June 2025

[ Approved: Y N O Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes

MAYOR’S REPORT:

1. CC 2025-54 Appointment of FOIA Officer — John Burner

[ Approved: Y N o Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes

2. CC 2025-55 Resolution Authorizing a Representative to Sign Loan Application and Documents
Pertaining to the Public Water Supply Loan Program

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes




3. CC 2025-56 Illinois Public Library and Yorkville Public Library Annual Reports

[ Approved: Y N O Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT:

1. PW 2025-65 Resolution Approving a Change Order to a Contract to Construct a 1,500,000
Gallon Standpipe and Water Main

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes

2. PW 2025-68 Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Sewer Vac Truck
[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes




3. PW 2025-69 Cannonball Estates SSA Plan
[ Approved: Y N O Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT:

1. ADM 2025-27 Resolution Approving the Bid and Purchase of Computers, Docking Stations, and
Monitors

[ Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

1. PZC 2025-07 Project Steel — Prologis (Data Center) — Discussion
[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes




2. PZC 2024-08 & EDC 2025-50 Project Cardinal — Pioneer (Data Center) — Discussion

a. Ordinance Approving a Planned Unit Development Agreement with Pioneer Development, LLC

b. Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Annexation Agreement for Certain Territory
Located at the Southwest Corner of Baseline Road and North Bridge Street

c. Ordinance Approving the Rezoning to the M-2 General Manufacturing Zoning District of
Certain Territory Located at the Southwest Corner of Baseline Road and North Bridge
Street (State Route 47)

d. Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory Located at the Southwest Corner of Baseline Road and
North Bridge Street to the United City of Yorkville

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes

3. PZC 2025-10 & EDC 2025-52 Ordinance Approving the Final Plat of Subdivisions for Heartland
Meadows West

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to
[] Removed

[ ] Notes




4. PZC 2025-11 & EDC 2025-53 Ordinance Approving the Final Plat of Subdivisions for Fox Haven
Subdivision

[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes

MAYOR’S REPORT (CONT’D):

4. CC 2025-08 Public Works and Parks Department Facility Update
[] Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes

5. CC 2025-09 Lake Michigan Water Project Update
[ Approved: Y N o Subject to

[ ] Removed

[ ] Notes




ADDITIONAL BUSINESS:

CITIZEN COMMENTS:




Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number

Legal Presentation #1

Finance

Engineer

City Administrator
Community Development
Purchasing

Police

Tracking Number

County Seat
Kendall County,

Public Works
Parks and Recreation

YI] I

Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: Yorkville Police Dept. Illinois Enforcement Accreditation Program (ILEAP) Award

Meeting and Date: City Council — July 22, 2025

Synopsis: A presentation will take place.

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: Action Taken:

Item Number:

Type of Vote Required:

Council Action Requested:

Submitted by: James Jensen Chief of Police

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council



mailto:agendas@yorkville.il.us
http://www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville
http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council

Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number
Legal Ll Presentation #2
Finance ]
Engineer | [
City Administrator | [] Tracking Number
Community Development | []
i Purchasing | L[]
Police |
Public Works | []
Parks and Recreation | []
Agenda Item Summary Memo
Title: Distinguished Service Award Presentation
Meeting and Date: Clty Council — July 22,2025
Synopsis: A presentation will take place.
Council Action Previously Taken:
Date of Action: Action Taken:
Item Number:
Type of Vote Required:
Council Action Requested:
Submitted by: James Jensen Chief of Police
Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

A Distinguished Service Award will be presented to Detective Johnson, Detective Ketchmark,

Detective/School Resource Officer Goldsmith, Trooper Enk, Detective Sergeant Nelson, and

Deputy Chief Mikolasek.

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http.//www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number

Legal Presentation #3

Finance

Engineer

City Administrator
Community Development
Purchasing

Tracking Number

County Seat
Kendall County,

Police
Public Works
Parks and Recreation

(Y] I

Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: Parks and Recreation Department — Recognition of July 4" Volunteers

Meeting and Date: Clty Council — July 22,2025

Synopsis: A presentation will take place.

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: Action Taken:

Item Number:

Type of Vote Required:

Council Action Requested:

Submitted by: Tim Evans Parks and Recreation

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http.//www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number
Legal | [
Finance | [] Consent Agenda #1
Engineer | [
City Administrator | [] Tracking Number
Community Development | []
A Purchasing | []
Police | [
Public Works | []
Parks and Recreation | []
Agenda Item Summary Memo
Title: Minutes of the Regular City Council — June 24, 2025
Meeting and Date: City Council — July 22, 2025
Synopsis: Approval of Minutes
Council Action Previously Taken:
Date of Action: Action Taken:
Item Number:
Type of Vote Required: Majority
Council Action Requested: Approval
Submitted by: Jori Behland Administration
Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council



mailto:agendas@yorkville.il.us
http://www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville
http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council

DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
HELD IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS,

651 PRAIRIE POINTE DRIVE ON
TUESDAY, JUNE 24, 2025

Mayor Purcell called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL
City Clerk Behland called the roll.
Ward 1 Koch Present
Transier Absent
Ward 11 Plocher Present
Soling Present
Ward 111 Funkhouser Present
Marek Present  (electronic attendance)
Ward IV Corneils Present
Hyett Present  (electronic attendance)

Staff in attendance at City Hall: City Clerk Behland, Chief Jensen, Attorney Orr, Public Works Director
Dhuse, Community Development Director Barksdale-Noble, Parks and Recreation Director Evans,
Assistant City Administrator Willrett, Economic Development Coordinator Gregory, Economic
Development Director Dubajic Kellogg, EEI Engineer Sanderson, and Superintendent of Parks Scott
Sleezer.

Staff in attendance electronically: City Administrator Olson and Finance Director Fredrickson.

Members of the public were able to attend this meeting in person as well as being able to access the
meeting remotely via Zoom which allowed for video, audio, and telephonic participation.

A meeting notice was posted on the City’s website on the agenda, minutes, and packets webpage with
instructions regarding remote meeting access and a link was included for the public to participate in the
meeting remotely:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83358169051?pwd=cxqjyfVIATIKGCMOyo3FaKoFY VptNt.1.

The Zoom meeting ID was 833 5816 9051.

QUORUM

A quorum was established.

AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA

Mayor Purcell has requested that Item #3 on the consent agenda, Resolution Approving an Engineering
Agreement with Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (2025 Stormwater Basin Inspections), be moved to the
regular agenda under Public Works Committee Report.

PRESENTATIONS

Introduction and Swearing-In of New Yorkville
Police Department Officer — Bret Johnson

Chief of Police Jensen introduced Bret Johnson, and Mayor Purcell swore him in as a patrol officer for
the Yorkville Police Department.
Data Center Presentation

City Administrator Olson provided a brief update on meeting dates, which was the only change made to
the presentation since the last City Council meeting. (See attached presentation)

PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Project Steel — Prologis (Data Center) — Annexation Agreement

Please see the attached transcript from the court reporter regarding the public hearing portion of the
meeting.

CITIZEN COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS
None.



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83358169051?pwd=cxqjyfVJA71KGCMOyo3FaKoFYVptNt.1
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CONSENT AGENDA
1. Bill Payments for Approval
$ 417,531.82 (vendors — FY 25)
$ 3,157,396.97 (vendors —FY 26)
$ 449,914.18 (payroll period ending 06/06/25)
$ 4,024,842.97 (total)

2. Resolution 2025-77 Approving an Engineering Agreement with Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
(Countryside Lift Station Improvements — Design Engineering) — authorize the Mayor and
Clerk to execute (PW 2025-61)

3. Resolution 2025-78 Approving a Change Order Relating to the Eldamain Water Main Loop —
South — authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute (PW 2025-63)

Mayor Purcell entertained a motion to approve the consent agenda as amended. So moved by Alderman
Koch; seconded by Alderman Plocher.

Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-7 Nays-0
Koch-aye, Plocher-aye, Funkhouser-aye, Corneils-aye,
Soling-aye, Marek-aye, Hyett-aye

REPORTS

MAYOR'’S REPORT

Ordinance 2025-52 Amending School Transition Fees
(CC 2025-50)

Mayor Purcell entertained a motion to approve an Ordinance Amending School Transition Fees and

authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to Execute. So moved by Alderman Koch; seconded by Alderman
Corneils.

Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-7 Nays-0
Plocher-aye, Funkhouser-nay, Corneils-aye, Soling-aye,
Marek-aye, Hyett-aye, Koch-aye

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

Resolution Approving an Engineering
Agreement with Engineering Enterprises,
Inc. (2025 Stormwater Basin Inspections)

(PW 2025-62)

Alderman Soling made a motion to table this item to the July 15, 2025, Public Works Committee
meeting; seconded by Alderman Koch.

Motion unanimously approved via a viva voce vote.

Resolution 2025-79 Approving a Bid to Construct a 1,500,000 Gallon
Standpipe, Related Water Mains, and Other

Site Improvements (South Receiving

Station Standpipe)

(PW 2025-50)

Alderman Soling made a motion to approve a Resolution Approving a Bid to Construct a 1,500,000
Gallon Standpipe, Related Water Mains, and Other Site Improvements (South Receiving Station
Standpipe) and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute; seconded by Alderman Corneils.

Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-7 Nays-0
Funkhouser-aye, Corneils-aye, Soling-aye, Marek-aye,
Hyett-aye, Koch-aye, Plocher-aye
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Resolution 2025-80 Approving an Engineering Agreement with
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (South Receiving

Station Standpipe — Construction)

(PW 2025-51)

Alderman Soling made a motion to approve a Resolution Approving an Engineering Agreement with
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (South Receiving Station Standpipe — Construction) and authorize the
Mayor and City Clerk to execute; seconded by Alderman Plocher.

Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-7 Nays-0
Corneils-aye, Soling-aye, Marek-aye, Hyett -aye,
Koch-aye, Plocher-aye, Funkhouser-aye

Resolution 2025-81 Approving the Release of a Performance
Guarantee Bond Related to Ashley

Pointe (Prestwick) Subdivision

(PW 2025-64)

Alderman Soling made a motion to approve a Resolution Approving the Release of a Performance
Guarantee Bond Related to Ashley Pointe (Prestwick) Subdivision, contingent upon the transfer of
property to the United City of Yorkville and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute; seconded by
Alderman Koch.

Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-7 Nays-0
Soling-aye, Marek-aye, Hyett-aye, Koch-aye,
Plocher-aye, Funkhouser-aye, Corneils-aye

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

PARK BOARD

Independence Day Celebration

Parks and Recreation Director Evans reported that the Independence Day Celebration will take place on
Friday, July 4, 2025. The parade will begin at 9:00 am at Yorkville High School and end at Town Square
Park. Fireworks will begin at dusk and will be shot off near the corner of Route 47 and Countryside
Parkway.

FORE! Yorkville Golf Outing
Parks and Recreation Director Evans thanked everyone who participated and helped at the FORE!
Yorkville Golf Outing. He shared that it was a great day.

Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Playground
Equipment from Playcraft Systems in an Amount
Not to Exceed $104,150.25 (Cannonball Ridge Park)
(CC 2025-52)

Mayor Purcell entertained a motion to approve a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Playground
Equipment from Playcraft Systems in an Amount Not to Exceed $104,150.25 (Cannonball Ridge Park)
and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute. So moved by Alderman Soling; seconded by
Alderman Koch.

Alderman Funkhouser expressed his belief that the color palette chosen by the Park Board does not match
the neighborhood. He recommends switching to the second option in the packet. Alderman Soling
mentions that the bright colors attract children. Alderman Funkhouser added that he can provide studies
comparing bright colors to cool, calming colors. Alderman Koch asked for Alderman Marek’s opinion,
since it is his ward as well. Alderman Marek shared that his family makes a point to visit all of the city’s
parks. He said his kids have never enjoyed any park more than others in terms of color. He thinks parks
are starting to lean toward brighter designs, but doesn't have a strong opinion either way.

Alderman Funkhouser made a motion to amend the playground equipment purchase to option #2 as
presented in the packet materials; seconded by Alderman Corneils.
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Motion to amend approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-4 Nays-1 Present-2
Marek-present, Hyett-aye, Koch-aye, Plocher-present,
Funkhouser-aye, Corneils-aye, Soling-nay

Main motion with amendment fails by a roll call vote. Aye-2 Nays-3 Present-2
Hyett-nay, Koch-nay, Plocher-present, Funkhouser-aye,
Corneils-aye, Soling-nay, Marek-present

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Ordinance 2025-53 Approving an Amendment to the Yorkville
Unified Development Ordinance

Regarding Energy Industrial Uses

(PZC 2025-05)

Mayor Purcell entertained a motion to approve an Ordinance Approving an Amendment to the Yorkville
Unified Development Ordinance Regarding Energy Industrial Uses and authorize the Mayor and City
Clerk to execute. So moved by Alderman Corneils; seconded by Alderman Koch.

Community Development Director Barksdale Noble explained at the last meeting that there was a request
to revise two parts of the text amendment. Staff had previously recommended a building-to-building
separation, meaning a data structure from one building to another, in a residential or commercial context.
The request was to measure the distance from the structure to the residential or commercial lot line. After
comparing the staff's previous recommendation with the new suggestion of measuring from the structure
to the residential or commercial lot line, the staff continues to recommend the structure-to-structure
approach. The second component involved fencing standards, which aimed to prohibit the use of chain-
link and barbed wire fencing around the entire property. There was also a recommendation to add a new
fencing material option of a rigid material, which staff does not oppose. However, staff does not
recommend prohibiting chain-link or barbed wire fencing around substations, as developers cannot
control fencing around substations once easements are granted to ComEd. Mayor Purcell requested
clarification on whether the exterior fencing would be of higher quality, based on the proposed language,
which was confirmed. Mayor Purcell then took a head count on both changes and moved forward with the
main motion without any amendments.

Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-7 Nays-0
Koch-aye, Plocher-aye, Funkhouser-aye, Corneils-aye,
Soling-aye, Marek-aye, Hyett-aye

CITY COUNCIL REPORT
No report.

CITY CLERK’S REPORT
No report.

COMMUNITY & LIAISON REPORT
No report.

STAFF REPORT
No report.

MAYOR’S REPORT (cont’d)

Public Works and Parks Department
Facility Update
(CC 2025-08)

No report.

Lake Michigan Water Project Update
(CC 2025-09)

Ordinance 2025-54 b. Amending Water Service

Rates and Charges
Mayor Purcell entertained a motion to approve an Ordinance Amending Water Service Rates and Charges
and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute. So moved by Alderman Plocher; seconded by
Alderman Soling.

Alderman Funkhouser mentioned that the Council has been discussing rate increases for over ten years.
The City is currently paying on bonds and will soon be paying on new bonds as well. He emphasized that
this is necessary and unrelated to the data centers.
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Motion approved by a roll call vote. Ayes-6 Nays-0 Present-1
Koch-aye, Plocher-aye, Funkhouser-aye, Corneils-aye,
Soling-present, Marek-aye, Hyett-aye

ADDITIONAL BUSINESS
None.

CITIZEN COMMENTS
None.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
None.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Purcell entertained a motion to adjourn the City Council meeting. So moved by Alderman
Plocher; seconded by Alderman Koch.
Motion unanimously approved by a viva voce vote.

Meeting adjourned at 8:39 p.m.

Minutes submitted by:

Jori Behland,
City Clerk, City of Yorkville, Illinois
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City Council - Public Hearing - June 24,

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING

651 Prairie Pointe

Yorkville, Illinois

Tuesday, June 24, 2025

7:00 p.m.

2025

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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City Council - Public Hearing - June 24, 2025

PRESENT: (In-person and via Zoom)

ALSO

Mr. John Purcell, Mayor;

Mr. Ken Koch, Alderman;

Mr. Craig Soling, Alderman;

Mr. Arden Joe Plocher, Alderman;

Mr. Chris Funkhouser, Alderman;

Mr. Matt Marek, Alderman;

Mr. Rusty Hyett, Alderman;

Mr. Rusty Corneils, Alderman.

PRESENT:

Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator;
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk;

Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City
Administrator;

Mr. Rob Fredrickson, Finance Director;
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Public Works Director;
Mr. James Jensen, Chief of Police;

Mr. Tim Evans, Parks and Recreation
Director;

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community
Development Director;

Mr. Brad Sanderson, City Engineer.

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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APPEARANCES:

OTTOSEN, DiNOLFO, HASENBALG & CASTALDO,
LTD.

BY: MS. KATHLEEN FIELD ORR

1804 North Naper Boulevard, Suite 350
Naperville, Illinois 60563

(630) ©682-0085

appeared on behalf of the United City of
Yorkville;

ANCEL, GLINK, P.C.

BY: MR. KURT S. ASPROOTH

140 South Dearborn Street, Suite 600
Chicago, Illinois 60603

(312) 604-9139

appeared on behalf of the Petitioner,
Project Steel-Prologis.

REPORTED BY: Christine M. Vitosh

Illinois C.S.R. License No. 084-002883

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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I NDZE X

WITNESS: PAGE
J.C. WITT 7
KURT S. ASPROOTH 9
KATIE FRASER 15
CHUCK OVERFRANK 32
WALT STAGNER 35
JOHN ROSE 37
Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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(WHEREUPON, the following
proceedings were had in public
hearing, commencing at 7:16 p.m.
as follows:)

MAYOR PURCELL: 7:16. I will open the
public hearing for the Project Steel-Prologis
Data Center annexation agreement. So the public
hearing is now open.

Were we going to have somebody do a
presentation or talk a little? What's -- Krysti,

tell me, please.

MS. NOBLE: The petitioner is here to do
their presentation. If you like I can do a --

MAYOR PURCELL: Why don't you start with
whatever and then turn it over to them, and
just -- the only thing we ask, you probably know
this, but when you get up there, just please
state your name for the record.

MS. NOBLE: So the petitioner is
Prologis and they are seeking to annex 16
parcels totaling about 540 acres to the City of
Yorkville for a master plan high tech data center
campus.

In addition to annexation, the
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petitioner, as Bart mentioned, 1is going to
request rezoning to the M-2 District, looking for
a special use for a planned unit development and
approval of a preliminary PUD plan.

Tonight's meeting, the data center
campus plan, has been revised from the initial
one presented. The revised plan shows a phased
development plan of 18 two-story buildings
totaling about 6.8 million square feet.

The petitioner is here tonight to
overview their project, and we can also talk
about the draft annexation agreement, which is
attached to the packet as well.

MAYOR PURCELL: Krysti?

MS. NOBLE: Yes.

MAYOR PURCELL: How many square feet did
you say?

MS. NOBLE: 6.8 million square feet.

MAYOR PURCELL: With all the buildings?

MS. NOBLE: Correct.

MAYOR PURCELL: Thank you very much.
Okay.

Please step up there. We run this a

little informal, where you give your
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presentation, we are going to ask questions,
sometimes members of the public might have
qgquestions. If you are able to answer those, go
ahead. Okay?

MR. WITT: Perfect.

MAYOR PURCELL: Thank you.

J.C. WITT,

testified before the City Council as follows:

MR. WITT: Good evening, and thank you
for the time. My name is J.C. Witt. I run
investments for Prologis in the greater Chicago
area around data centers, and I am here today to
give a little intro on who Prologis 1is, and I am
joined by Clare Chandler, and then Katie Fraser
is also dialed in here.

So Prologis is a company, global
real estate company we like to say with local
presence. We own about 1.3 billion sgquare feet
of industrial and data center space across the
globe.

We have been building data centers
since 1999 and we have currently about 30 data
centers in our portfolio across the United

States.
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We have a pipeline of about -- that
number is a little outdated, but two and a half
billion in data centers right now that are under
construction to add to our portfolio, and A rated
company, been around for the better part of
40 years doing construction, owning it and
leasing it to tenants.

We have a local presence in the
greater Chicago area that -- in that bottom I 55
number is wrong, we had a fat finger there with
an extra three, but we have an aggregate total
inventory of about 83,000,000 square feet of
predominantly industrial with a sprinkling of
data center, mainly around the O'Hare Airport
submarket.

We are an active member in all the
communities we invest in. We have active
volunteering for Toys for Tots, Boy Scouts for
America. We do have an impact day every year.

And this is a picture from us doing
a feed at the food bank in the greater Chicago
area, and I'll pass i1t over to here to Kurt to
get into some of the details of the project.

MAYOR PURCELL: Thank you very much.
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KURT S. ASPROOTH,
testified before the City Council as follows:
MR. ASPROOTH: Thanks J.C. My name 1is
Kurt Asprooth, I am an attorney with the law firm
of Ancel, Glink, I represent Prologis, and we are
excited to be here tonight to introduce Project
Steel.

We are going to give kind of just a
very high level overview; obviously this is kind
of the start of our process. As we've heard,
there's going to be several more hearings as we
go through here.

Try not to be too redundant. The
staff memo, your packet, is very comprehensive as
well. I won't try to cover all of that here in
this kind of high level overview.

So the property in question is about
540 acres, it's highlighted in orange on this
slide here, generally bounded by Galena Road on
the north, Corneils Road on the south and
Fldamain on the west.

Currently the property is generally
farmland. It's bisected by ComEd transmission

lines that feed into that subsection there south
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of Corneils Road, which is highlighted in blue.

So for the overall site plan,
Prologis is proposing 18 data center buildings;
build this in three phases, six buildings for
each phase. Each phase will have its own
electrical substation.

Each phase is also going to be
independent, it's going to have its own public
improvements, retention ponds, roads and things
of that nature.

To deliver this wvalue, this level of
investment in the City of Yorkville, United City
of Yorkville here, we are seeking to annex all of
that property into the center.

As was mentioned, we are seeking to
rezone that to the M-2 district, along with a
planned unit development and a preliminary plan
as well.

So generally we believe this is
consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan.
This whole corridor along Eldamain has been
designated as kind of an industrial M-2 corridor
here, and as Council has heard from other

presentations, there is other data center

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

City Council - Public Hearing - June 24, 2025
11

interest in this same area with the Project
Cardinal project to the north and CyrusOne
project to the south, so this kind of fits in
with that general corridor along Eldamain here
that i1is developing as kind of a data center
corridor overall.

This is kind of the first elevation
here, just kind of a conceptual rendering of what
that campus is going to look like. Each data
center building would be two stories tall between
60 and 70 feet in height.

They are primarily going to be
used -- built using concrete, tilt-up concrete
panels, metal panels, materials that are very
consistent in data centers across the country.

There is going to be some
enhancements along some of those frontages there,
and Eldamain, Corneils Road, to make sure that we
are complying with the City's enhanced -- I
believe it's the gateway area there, so that we
make sure this looks nice for those important
rights-of-way that the city has along this area.

You can see there's also going to be

internal access drives for each building, along
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with some equipment yards adjacent to the
building, and then we'll have rooftop mechanical
on the east that's going to be fully screened
there to the full height.

This is just another elevation, it's
going to show what the proposed data center
buildings would look like from kind of eye level
here. You can see we are going to have
landscaping around the outside of the building
and through the parking areas.

The goal here is to make sure that
this looks attractive if anybody is going to be
looking at it from any of those roads. We are
really committed to making this kind of an
architecturally and aesthetically pleasing
development.

That's kind of a high level

overview. We are certainly happy to answer any
questions. Look forward to any feedback from the
Council. We look forward to working with --

continuing to work with the City on this project.
MAYOR PURCELL: Thank you. Anyone else
from your group have anything to offer?

MR. ASPROOTH: That's all we have.
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MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Questions,
comments, from the Council? Mr. Funkhouser?

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: Why are you
looking at me?

MAYOR PURCELL: Well, you looked at me.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: Just a couple of
quick gquestions. So I note that the -- part of
Beecher is being --

MAYOR PURCELL: Make sure you talk into
the mic, please.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: Part of Beecher is
being vacated per your plan, you are looking to
have Beecher on the far east side of the
property.

That's the only road that you would
have that is part of our comprehensive planning
of transportation connecting this corridor, is
the realigned Beecher Road.

Is that -- Would that be fully
approved by the plan with the realignment that's
being proposed?

MR. ASPROOTH: Yes.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: Okay. And then we

have imposed hundred foot landscape buffers
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around perimeters of other developments that have
come in for data centers.

It doesn't appear that there is a
hundred foot, maybe 60-foot buffer, around
perimeters.

Would you be looking at doing the
hundred foot as has been imposed on the other
projects as well?

MR. WITT: Yes, Chris. I haven't looked
at it in detail, but yes, we would be fine with
being in align with the other projects that have
been --

MAYOR PURCELL: So can I ask a guestion?
If you are going to answer, could you step to the
mic, please?

MR. ASPROOTH: Sorry.

MR. WITT: Sorry.

MAYOR PURCELL: Sorry, Jjust want to make
sure.

MR. ASPROOTH: Of course. Of course.

MAYOR PURCELL: The attorney
understands.

MR. WITT: Yes. So to your question,

yeah, our idea would be to be in line with the
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other projects that have been approved. I
couldn't tell you in detail looking at the plan
where specifically you are saying we are inside
the hundred feet, but we can look at those
specific areas.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: So the perimeter
berming, landscape and hundred foot, you would
look to --

MR. WITT: Yes.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: And staff would
work with you. Okay.

And then issues of building height.
The restriction within the 1500 foot of
residential, the 70 foot, you are good being
compliant, or will be compliant with that, or is

that an issue for you moving forward?

MR. WITT: I am -- Katie, I know you are
on the phone. I know you have been more in the
weeds on that. Do you mind?

KATIE FRASER,
testified before the City Council as follows:
MS. FRASER: Yes. And to answer the
first -- to reiterate the first question on

landscaping, we have the hundred foot buffer and

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

City Council - Public Hearing - June 24, 2025
16

we are more than happy to provide that, and for
what would be -- what was the next one? The
building height. So yeah, for the building
height, for all mechanical equipment, all 70 feet
that's been requested by City staff.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: And then your
buildings, are you primarily using air-cooled
technology, or what is the type of methodology
you are using for that?

MR. WITT: Yeah, great question, and I
know there was some preliminary gquestions, too,
about there being an end customer, and so I would
think both of those are linked.

The way we -- the way we think these
projects are most successful is kind of creating
a site plan and a design that is most flexible to
those customers to come in and create kind of
what they have and their specific design needs,
and so at this point in time, the actual cooling
design has not been finalized for the buildings,
and that gets kind of more refined as we move
further along in the process and we get a lot
more closer feedback to some of those end use

customers.
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ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: And that's a good
point you have made, is you are not the end user,
you are basically just a landlord to say for the
users that are going to be leasing your space
within the buildings.

MR. WITT: That's correct. Yep, yep.
Just like all of our industrial, we will buy the
land, build the building, and building the
building could come all the way down to the
server rack on these data centers, and then we
will lease that to these users for long-term
leases and stay on as the owner.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: And for this site,
as I look at it, I do think it is a very dense
site for the amount of buildings, amount of
square footage, on this one.

Looking at the access, the private
drives that are through this, have you had
conversations with the fire department, or does
the staff know, have we had those conversations,
are they comfortable with building separation,
drive access, et cetera, even through the private
facilities?

MS. NOBLE: We have. They were part of
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a planning council review and they had not
expressed any concerns.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: That's it for now.

MAYOR PURCELL: I want to follow up if I
could. The gquestion regarding the cooling
systems, are we including in our ordinance that
they should be air cooled versus water cooled?

MS. NOBLE: No, we do not have a
requirement from the land planning aspect on the
technology of air cooled versus water cooled.

Brad can talk to you more from the
engineering perspective.

MR. SANDERSON: It's our understanding
that a lower intensity water use is being
presented, so the exact technology probably is
still to be determined, but it's not a water
intensive cooling system that's being proposed,
and I believe it will be in one of the
agreements, but perhaps not in the annexation
agreement.

MR. WITT: Yes, I can make a comment on
that.

MAYOR PURCELL: Please.

MR. WITT: So throwing air cooled and
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water cooled around kind of is a very broad brush
statement for the cooling system.

So I could say we're doing water
cooling here, we would actually be using less --
we could be using less water than an air cooled
system because they have closed loop water
systems where it stays in one loop and doesn't
evaporate at all, where the air cooled systems
use some evaporation, so it just -- they all
depend on the specifics of those buildings and
the design, but to Brad's point, we are going to
work within the confines of the actual water
availability, and it's not a heavy water usage.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Well --

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: That would
clarify. My intent was it's a lesser intense
water use.

MR. WITT: Yes, yes.

ALDERMAN KOCH: And is that water in the
cooling or is that a glycol-type thing?

MAYOR PURCELL: Ken, talk into your mic,
please.

ALDERMAN KOCH: Is that a glycol-type

system or 1s it water, purely water?
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MR. WITT: Just purely water, yep.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

MR. WITT: It gets treated for
demineralization, but it's just water.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Thank you on
that. And then, Chris, you -- and I am not
trying to pick a battle here, but you said you
thought it was an intense -- not for the water,
but just a higher density or more square footage?

I did 6.8 million on whatever my
math is, 23 and a half million square feet. Is
that what 540 acres 1is, 23 and a half million, 1is
it 43 540 per acre? Yeah, so I mean that's -- I
don't know, that doesn't seem real --

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: I'm just looking
at, you know, the other two data centers that
have brought plans forward and the percentage of
open space that is on those two plans.

This one doesn't have -- If you just
take the square footage, it's not an actual
apples to apples because that's gross square
footage, that's not your actual land square
footage that you are taking up, so that's kind of

a hard number to just take that 6.7 mil -- or
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MAYOR PURCELL: Eight.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: -— million and
then the 17 million, you have to take the actual
open space.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: And just looking
at -- So that's where your number -- I understand
where you are coming from --

MAYOR PURCELL: Yeah.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: -- just taking the
square footage of the buildings, but it's the
footprint on the site.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: I am looking at
impervious to pervious types of uses on the site.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Thank you. Other
Aldermen have questions?

(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: I have a couple more.
Do you have a decommissioning plan?

MR. WITT: Not at this time, but we will
as part of the process.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. I brought this up
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at the previous hearing, I know you weren't
necessarily here, maybe you were paying
attention, maybe you weren't, doesn't really
matter, but I asked the same question there.

I just think that as the technology
changes, no different way than the way solar
fields have decommissioning plans, I think it's
important, so I appreciate that.

What do you plan on doing if this is
not built out here in 15 or 20 years?

MR. WITT: If the -- Like if we only
built out part of the --

MAYOR PURCELL: Yeah, let's say you
built out a third of it. As the technology
changes, you know, all the time.

MR. WITT: So I don't -- So we hear this
a lot, technology changing. I think that the --
what the core value here is the -- is the
existing power infrastructure, which isn't going
to change.

You know, there could be a world, to
your point, that you don't need as many buildings
to utilize the same amount of power, and in that

case, to Chris's question, you would want to say
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have just a less dense site, but in our world,
like when we're actually leasing these buildings,
we are doing it kind of on a power perspective,
not necessarily on a building square foot
perspective, so we're getting to kind of similar
economics by utilizing that power, maybe not
utilizing the whole footprint.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. But -- go ahead.

MR. WITT: Maybe to answer the question,
another question, we don't have an alternate use
for the site.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. If you didn't
fill it out in 20 years, would you consider
donating the remainder of the land to the city?

MR. WITT: Yeah, I think if we utilize
all the power and then there is excess -- excess
land, I think that's definitely something we
could look into.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. I don't know that
I will be here. You will probably be doing this,
yvou look pretty young, but I don't know that I

will be here.
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MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: But okay. And then I
think maybe Bart has asked this of you, but I
would strongly, strongly encourage that your

first phase be in the Yorkville School District.

I think that would be more favorably

received by myself, I can't speak for the
Aldermen, but definitely by myself and my
community, so just keep that in the back of your
minds, please.

And then any -- maybe you're not
public with this or not, but if this were fully
built out, what kind of dollar value do you put
on this project?

MR. WITT: It's in the billions, and it
depends on what you are measuring. So the users
themselves are probably going to be investing,
you know, it could be upwards of a billion per
building depending on what they are putting in
the building, so --

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

MR. WITT: -- i1t's a sizable number.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

MR. WITT: And we will get -- again, as
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we refine this and get closer, we will give you
all some estimates on tax projections, too.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. So you don't have
those yet then?

MR. WITT: I don't. No, we don't.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. For the property
taxes, and also will you have them for your
projected utility taxes, too?

MR. WITT: Yes.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay.

MR. WITT: Yeah, we can include that,
yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. And when did --
You said three phases. When would you expect
construction to begin on the first phase?

MR. WITT: About two years.

MAYOR PURCELL: About two years from
approval?

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: And what is it, a
two-year process?

MR. WITT: It's not as much a two-year
process, 1it's about a two-year lead time to get

the equipment to actually be installing.
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Most of the equipment you're going
to install, first of all, the electrical
equipment and getting an interconnection with
ComEd, and so that's going to drive a lot of the
process.

We don't want to -- you don't want
to do any site mass grading and have erosion
issues when you are not going to use it for, you
know, a year or so after, and so you want to make
sure that's lined up with when you're actually
going to land the energization of the on-site
substation and, therefore, the buildings.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. And then once you
start the -- So if -- let's say this gets
approved January 1, if it gets approved, I know
we have some things to discuss still, from then
it's two years before you start construction?

MR. WITT: Before you -- yeah, before
you have trucks out there doing a lot of mass
grading, yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: And then from the point
you start construction, approximately how long
until one of these facilities would be open?

MR. WITT: Year, 18 months. 18, 20
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months, yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. So four years
out, something like that?

MR. WITT: Yeah. Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. And this was
asked at the last meeting, and I don't understand
the rules with the state, but one of the members
I think on Zoom asked do you work with organized
labor on this and the unions, do you get some
type of agreement with them?

MR. WITT: It's a good guestion. I
don't know the answer to that. I can get that
for you.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Because I have
been asked that several times. We've got some
good union people in the area --

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: -- a lot right here in
the community --

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: They're -- some of them
are actually looking forward to working on these
projects --

MR. WITT: Yeah.
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MAYOR PURCELL: -- so I'd like to make
sure. Okay.
MR. WITT: So all of our work -- To my

knowledge, all of our work existing in the
greater Chicago area has had union labor on the
projects, so --

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. That's —-- That's
fantastic.

MR. WITT: But I will get that answer
for you. I don't know.

MAYOR PURCELL: No, I appreciate it. I
just -- These are things I hear from the public
and I ask.

And then the other thing that is
important to me and I guess, therefore, the city
as well, we have a real challenge with our school
system, and it's a positive thing, our schools
are growing because the community is growing, and
I would rather be growing than dying like
Chicago, for example, but with growth comes the
need for future buildings and expansions, so I
would like you to consider having a negotiation
with the school district, and we would like to be

involved with those conversations and have you
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write an upfront check to the school district to
help pay for their building expansions.

MR. WITT: Okay. Understood.

MAYOR PURCELL: So it's very important
to me. I cannot express that enough.

I have been here my whole life, I've
seen this before, where the town grows and there
is need for schools, and I want the school system
to be able to get it right, and I think this is
an opportunity for you. You talk about how you
give back to the community, this is a great
opportunity.

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: So, Aldermen, any
Aldermen have other guestions?

(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. I am going to
open it up to anyone in the public. First anyone
here in the meeting, anyone have any guestions?
If you do, please step forward to the microphone
and ask away.

(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: Nobody here at the

meeting?
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(No response.)
MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. How about -- Oh,
Mr. Koch.
ALDERMAN KOCH: Just one more. So the
process, once it's approved from us, what do you
factor for getting the agreement with ComEd?

MR. WITT: Yeah, good question. We are

in -- ComEd is doing cluster studies now to
organize some of their approval process. We are
in the third cluster with them. We have been in

that cluster for the better part of like three,
four months now.

We expect an initial feedback from
them at the -- in the fall, so October-ish
timeline, and they are going to give us more
directive at that time as to what's -- what the
next milestone timeline is going to be.

ALDERMAN KOCH: So for my education
then, is each data center project like on its own
or are they all in that same kind of cluster?

MR. WITT: The way they're doing it is
they are doing -- they are grouping them by
clusters of area, because they are looking at

grade improvements for how they impact each
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other, because it doesn't make a whole lot of
sense to look at one when one is happening right
next door and you are not reviewing that in your
grade improvement, so they are clustering them
together and looking at all those and how they
impact the grid and what the cost is going to be
per project to get them up and running.

ALDERMAN KOCH: Thank you.

MAYOR PURCELL: Other guestions from
Aldermen?

(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: Craig, did you have
something? Please.

ALDERMAN SOLING: As far as your water
discharge goes to the sanitary district, I asked
the question last time, too, and I just want to
reiterate, there is no heavy metals, there is no
glycol, there is no -- nothing that neighbors
really need to be concerned about, correct?

MR. WITT: No. No.

ALDERMAN SOLING: And do you have an
idea of what your discharge is per building
roughly?

MR. WITT: I don't have that number in
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front of me. Katie, I know you are in the front,
I don't know if you maybe have that number.

MS. FRASER: No, I don't have that handy
at the moment, but we can get back to you on that
and get a more final answer.

ALDERMAN SOLING: Thank you.

MAYOR PURCELL: Thank you, Craig. I'm
just looking over my notes here.

Are there any questions from anyone
on zZoom?
(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: No? Any other Aldermen?
I have another gquestion, but any other Aldermen
have questions?

ALDERMAN KOCH: John.

MAYOR PURCELL: Oh, I'm sorry. Please
step to the microphone. I'm sorry, I didn't see
you there.

MR. OVERFRANK: Sorry, I was just
thinking about this.

MAYOR PURCELL: That's what I'm doing,
too. I'm thinking as we're going.

CHUCK OVERFRANK,

testified before the City Council as follows:
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MR. OVERFRANK: Chuck Overfrank
(phonetic), I'm a resident of Yorkville. I was
curious, in one of the pictures, it looks 1like
you might have a battery storage system; is that
correct?

MR. WITT: I can answer that. No
battery storage system. What you might have seen
is a contained generator unit, looks kind of like
a battery from afar, but it's actually a
contained -- enclosure around a generator.

MR. OVERFRANK: There is a series of --

MR. WITT: Yep, there is a series of
those generators running alongside the building,
yeah. No batteries.

ALDERMEN KOCH: Couple more.

MAYOR PURCELL: Go ahead.

ALDERMAN KOCH: So to follow up on that,
so as technology gets better, if the battery
systems would become, you know, a good thing to
have, would you guys be able to add them to
these, or is once your project is built, it's not
really possible?

MR. WITT: You mean for the backup

generation?

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

City Council - Public Hearing - June 24, 2025
34

ALDERMAN KOCH: Yeah, if you want to put
some sort of battery system in.

MR. WITT: Yeah, you could. You could
easily switch out those generators. I mean, the
area they sit in, you could easily take out those
bays for a battery unit.

The battery technology 1is pretty far
off from what they would need for a long-term
viability of generation at this point. I mean,
those generators will last you about three days;
if you have a battery the same size it will last
you about an hour, so I mean, it's a pretty big
gap right now.

ALDERMAN KOCH: No, I knew that --

MR. WITT: Yeah.

ALDERMAN KOCH: -- I'm just wondering,
because going forward I think you might see --

MR. WITT: Hopefully.

ALDERMAN KOCH: -- a lot of research and
development into that.

MR. WITT: Yeah.

ALDERMAN SOLING: One more at the end of
that, are those diesel generators or are they

natural gas?
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MR. WITT: Yes, they are diesel. Yes.

MAYOR PURCELL: Other questions?

(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: So I have a couple more.
Oh. Step forward, please, to the microphone,
and, again, just state your name and ask the
question.

WALT STAGNER,
testified before the City Council as follows:

MR. STAGNER: My name is Walt Stagner.

I live here in Yorkville. I've got a couple
questions.

Will these buildings, the data
centers, be isolated somehow from the power grid?
How does the power grid that these buildings use
interface to everything else? And what happens
if the grid goes down, do these buildings go
down, too, or are you on a separate power
situation?

MR. WITT: Good question. So the
buildings are connected to the grid and then the
diesel generators that we were discussing a
minute ago would be what would come in place if

the grid goes down.
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MR. STAGNER: And how long -- okay. So
I guess that was sort of asked before. So it
would run either until you run out of fuel, 1is
that how that works?

MR. WITT: Ideally the grid would come
on before that, but you would then have a
refueling event if it wasn't coming on within a
three-day period.

MR. STAGNER: And maybe I missed

36

something, but does the City get to know who the

people are that are renting the space?

MR. WITT: Yes, they will. Yes.

MR. STAGNER: Because I've interfaced
with some of the people that have done the data
centers in DeKalb, and I'm not sure that that's
common knowledge among the people that live
there, who 1is actually occupying the data
centers, for example, besides Facebook.

MR. WITT: You mean who is --

MR. STAGNER: Who the tenants are that
actually have the equipment inside the data
centers.

MR. WITT: Yes, the City will know who

that 1is.
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MR. STAGNER: Thank you.
MR. WITT: Yep.

MAYOR PURCELL: Other guestions from the

public?
(No response.)
MAYOR PURCELL: Well, I'll ask a couple
others and -- yep. Go ahead. Yeah, I will ask a

couple others, so if you think of some others,
that's what we are here for.

MR. ROSE: The residents of Kylyn's
Ridge, which is the subdivision Chris knows well,
it's going to sit up against some of these
properties. Curious about --

MAYOR PURCELL: Could you state your
name, please?

MR. ROSE: John Rose (phonetic).

MAYOR PURCELL: Thank you.

JOHN ROSE,

testified before the City Council as follows:

MR. ROSE: Concerned about Daniels
North, Daniels South, Kelaka, Hamman-Kelaka,
basically all the plots around the Rob Roy farm,
and questions about Faxon Road, it's not built

heavily enough to support truck traffic.
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We get a lot of trucks down High
Ridge through Kylyn's Ridge, also not suitable
for truck traffic, but we see a lot of it, and we
are wondering how much will the traffic increase,
what will be the nature of the traffic, and what
should we expect in terms of when these might be
built out.

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: So just a couple of
things. First of all, the Council recently
passed restrictions on truck traffic, I think it
was last meeting, was it, or two meetings ago?

MR. DHUSE: Yes.

MAYOR PURCELL: For some of those roads
you mentioned. The second thing is he can
address traffic issues related to the Project
Steel.

Those other issues, if they're not
related directly to this project, this is a
public hearing for that project, but we have
addressed -- to answer your question, we have
passed just very recently restrictions on truck
traffic through the subdivision.

MR. ROSE: And there was also a question
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about staffing and how many employees would be
using those roads as well.

MR. WITT: Yep. Yes. So good
questions. We will work with the City on what we
describe -- and might have a different name, but
we described it as a construction routing plan
intentionally around that to make sure that the
construction routing for the site makes sense for
the surrounding community and wherever we are
bringing in trucks. That's -- the construction
routing is really where any traffic happens.

The positive of these buildings are
that they are large revenue for the City with
very little impact on services to the community,
especially, you know, revenue for the school
district without any kids going into the schools,
and then, again, improvements of off-site without
very little traffic around.

I mean, you have —-- at any one point
you might have only a hundred employees when this
is fully built out on the site, so very minimal,
minimal employee traffic.

ALDERMAN KOCH: And how --

MAYOR PURCELL: Just one thing to follow
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up on that. For this one specific, and I can say
for others, if and when they get approved, some
of these haven't been approved yet, just zoning
has, we would not have construction traffic going
through any subdivision.

I know that's come up before. We
would not have construction traffic going through
a subdivision, Jjust absolutely not going to
happen, so --

MR. WITT: Yeah, we wouldn't want that
either, just to put that out there.

ALDERMAN KOCH: So would you say like a
hundred people for the whole build-out, so
roughly what would that be per building, because
I'm assuming you have a crew 24/7, right, because
these don't shut down?

MR. WITT: Yeah, so at any -- at any one
time you could have as low as a hundred
employees, so you have probably your I would say
medium to high number would be about ten
employees per building with three shifts, so you
could say 30 employees per building running 24/7,
so 1if you multiply that by our 18 buildings right

now, it's, yeah, 540 employees.
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MAYOR PURCELL: One per acre?

MR. WITT: Yeah, exactly.

MAYOR PURCELL: So just curious, Krysti,
three and a half homes per acre, that's R-2
about, 3.64 or something like that?

MS. NOBLE: Yes, 3.64.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. God, 1it's amazing
what I learn. I'll forget it, though. So let's
say three and a half and two cars. Holy cow, you
could have seven cars per acre versus one.

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: So really the traffic --
the concern about traffic is -- I think it is way
overblown. I agree, during construction we don't
want traffic going through the subdivisions,
understand that, but as far as just employees and
traffic, that's really not a real concern.

MR. WITT: Yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: Ken, did that answer
your question?

ALDERMAN KOCH: Yes.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. So 30 employees
per building. Interesting. This is once they

are completed?
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MR. WITT: Yeah, once they are
completed, and that's three shifts, so ten per
shift.

MAYOR PURCELL: Yeah, so at any one time
it's -- okay. Heck, you have probably more --
more delivery trucks going down your street in a
day than that. Heck, probably my house honestly.

Okay. So I just want you to
understand our position. We are not going to
allow, you know -- 1if and when these many new
things become fashionable, not here in Yorkville,
just not going to happen, so if you'wve got any
grand plans of that, wipe them out right now,
okay?

MR. WITT: We do not. Appreciate that,
yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: I appreciate that, too.
And the other thing, I hear about this, is with
data centers come higher demand for electric,
hence, supply and demand, the electric rates go
up.

So I am curious, 1if we were to tell
you all we don't want you because we don't want

electric rates to go up, I assume some of these
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would be built somewhere else, or is Yorkville
the only town that people are looking because we
are so awesome?

MR. WITT: No, yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: No, we're not awesome?
Come on now.

MR. WITT: Well, you are —-- you are
awesome. There i1s two parts to that. One is so
we are working with ComEd, a lot of what they are
doing and studying 1is figuring out what our cost
to the system is going to be, so we have to pay
that cost upfront, as an upfront payment to them,
for them to commit to then do those improvements
for the grid.

Then there is a second part of that,
which is that this area, ComEd, is a part of a
larger utility network, and to your point, any
data center going anywhere in that utility
network is buying wholesale from that network's
pricing and, therefore, moving prices up and
down.

It's not binary, this area is
getting a data center and, therefore, you know,

the immediate radius has a rate increase, 1t's a
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part of that whole network.

MAYOR PURCELL: So eventually, whether
it's a year or five, ten years, there is going to
be more demand for electricity, unless these
things become super efficient and they run on a
nine volt battery, maybe they could someday, but
as demand goes up, 1it's going to affect the whole
region whether or not these are in Yorkville, 1is
that what I'm hearing you say?

MR. WITT: That's correct, yeah.

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. No, that's
important because I get that a lot, people say,
oh, your rates are going to go way up, it's all
because the city is evil people, and I'm not
going to say I'm a not bad person, but I don't
think I'm going to make the electric rates go up
by myself, so okay.

Other guestions or comments from the
Council?
(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: Anyone else in the
public? I don't want to miss somebody raising
their hand last minute here.

(No response.)
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MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Zoomland, anyone

in Zoomland? One more chance.
(No response.)

MAYOR PURCELL: Okay. Anything else you
want to add, anybody?

MR. WITT: No, appreciate the time.
Thanks for the great gquestions.

MAYOR PURCELL: All right. I will close
the public hearing at 7:52 p.m. Thank you very
much.

(Which were all the proceedings had
in the public hearing, concluding
at 7:52 p.m.)

---o00o---
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS:
COUNTY OF LASALLE )

I, CHRISTINE M. VITOSH, a Certified
Shorthand Reporter of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify:

That the foregoing public hearing
transcript, Pages 1 through 47, was reported
stenographically by me by means of machine
shorthand, was simultaneously reduced to
typewriting via computer-aided transcription
under my personal direction, and constitutes a
true record of the testimony given and the
proceedings had;

That the said public hearing was taken
before me at the time and place specified;

That I am not a relative or employee or
attorney or counsel, nor a relative or employee
of such attorney or counsel for any of the
parties hereto, nor interested directly or
indirectly in the outcome of this action.

I further certify that my certificate
attached hereto applies to the original
transcript and copies thereof signed and

certified under my hand only. I assume no
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responsibility for the accuracy of any reproduced
copies not made under my control or direction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set my
hand at Leland, Illinois, this 17th day of July,

2025.

/s/ Christine M. Vitosh

CHRISTINE M. VITOSH,
Illinois C.S.R. Certificate
No. 084-02883
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27:17, 27:20, 27:24,
28:3, 28:9, 29:3,
29:13, 30:7, 30:21,
31:20, 31:24, 33:6,
33:12, 33:23, 34:3,
34:15, 34:18, 34:21,
35:1, 35:20, 36:5,
36:12, 36:19, 36:23,
37:2, 38:8, 39:3,
40:10, 40:17, 41:2,
41:11, 41:18, 42:1,
42:15, 43:4, 43:7,
44:10, 45:6
wondering [2] - 34:16,
38:4
Works 1] - 2:16
works [1] - 36:4
world 21 - 22:21, 23:1
write [1] - 29:1

Y

w

Walt 1] - 35:10

WALTI[2] - 4:8, 35:8

water [18] - 18:7,
18:10, 18:14, 18:16,
19:1, 19:3, 19:5,
19:6, 19:12, 19:13,
19:17, 19:19, 19:24,
20:1, 20:4, 20:8,
31:14

weeds [1] - 15:19

west [1] - 9:21

WHEREOF[1] - 47:3

WHEREUPON [1] -
5:1

whole[7]- 10:21,
23:7, 29:6, 31:1,
40:13, 44:1, 44:7

wholesale[1]-43:19

Willrett (1] - 2:13

wipe[1]-42:13

WITNESS |21 - 4:2,
47:3

Witt (1] - 7:10

WITT [74] - 4:4, 7:5,
7:7,7:9,14:9, 14:17,
14:23, 15:9, 15:17,
16:10, 17:6, 18:21,
18:24, 19:18, 20:1,

yards 1] - 12:1

year[7] - 8:19, 25:21,
25:22, 25:23, 26:9,
26:24, 44:3

years g] - 8:6, 22:10,
23:15, 25:16, 25:17,
26:17, 27:2, 44:3

YORKVILLE1]- 1:6

Yorkville11] - 1:17,
3:6, 5:22, 10:12,
10:13, 24:5, 33:2,
35:11, 42:11, 43:1,
44:8

young [1] - 23:23

V4

zoning [1] - 40:3

Zoom [3] - 2:1, 27:8,
32:10

zoomland 1] - 45:1

Zoomland 1] - 45:2

Vitosh Reporting Service
815.993.2832

cms.vitosh@gmail.com

2025
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Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number
Legal | [J Consent Agenda #2
Finance |
Engineer | [
City Administrator | [] Tracking Number
Community Development | []
- Purchasing | []
Police | [
Public Works | []
Parks and Recreation | []
Agenda Item Summary Memo
Title: Bills for Payment
Meeting and Date: City Council — July 22, 2025
Synopsis:
Council Action Previously Taken:
Date of Action: Action Taken:
Item Number:
Type of Vote Required: Majority
Council Action Requested: Approval
Submitted by: Amy Simmons Finance
Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:37:00

PRG ID:

CHECK #

543206

543207

543208

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

ACCOUNT #

01-220-54-00-5459
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

52-520-56-00-5620
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-210-54-00-5413
**| COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

0L-210-54-00-5413
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK "TOTAL:

TOTAL AMOUNT PAID:

ITEM AMT

2,800.
2,800.

108.
108.

4,286.
4,286.
4,286.

4,286.

00
00

54
54

63

63

63

63

AP215000
CHECK DATE: 07/22/25
VENDOR # INVOICE INVOICE  ITEM
NUMBER DATE # DESCRIPTION

BFCONSTR B&F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES

20883 05/19/25 01 APR 2025 INSPECTIONS

CAMBRIA CAMBRIA SALES COMPANY INC.

44039 01/24/25 01 PAPER TOWEL

OSWEGO VILLAGE OF OSWEGO

3185 07/08/25 01 TRAINING COORDINATOR SALARY

02 REIMBURSEMENT FOR MAR 2025
3186 07/08/25 01 TRAINING COORDINATOR SALARY
02 REIMBURSEMENT, FOR APR 2025

01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 94216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25205  POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

2,800.00

108.54

8,573.26

11,481.80

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FYy 25

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT

Page 1 of 29


amy simmons
Highlight


DATE: 07/08/25
TIME: 08:57:32
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE
543201 GERLB BRETT GERL
06/28-07/01 07/03/25
D004276 GOLINSKA ANDREW GOLINSKI
06/28-07/01 07/03/25
543202 GROOT GROOT INC
14520518T102 06/01/25
543203 IMPERINV IMPERIAL INVESTMENTS
FS PROPERTY-2 OF 6 07/03/25
D004277 MATSONT THOMAS MATSON

06/28-07/01

01-110
01-120
01-210
01-220
01-410
01-640
11-111

07/03/25

ADMIN

FINANCE

POLICE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
STREETS OPERATIONS
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
FOX HILL SSA

01

01

01
02

01
02

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/11/2025

UMPIRE

UMPIRE

MAY 2025 REFUSE SERVICE
MAY 2025 SENIOR REFUSE SERVICE

FS PROPERTY INSTALLMENT
CONTRACT PAYMENT 2 OF 6

UMPIRE

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

01-540-54-00-5442
01-540-54-00-5441
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

89-890-94-00-8000
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

25-225 PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
51-510  WATER OPERATIONS

52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS

79-790 PARKS DEPARTMENT

79-795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
82-820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT

80.
80.

80.
80.

162,905.
.29

4,514

167,419.

00
00

00
00

53

82

80.00

80.00

167,419.82

150, 000.

150,000.

00

00

*

150,000.00

80.
80.

00
00

*

80.00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT

Page 2 of 29



DATE: 07/08/25
TIME: 08:57:32
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE
D004278 MEIERJ JACKSON MEIER
06/28-07/01 07/03/25
D004279 OLEARYM MARTIN J. O'LEARY
062925 07/02/25
D004280 OLSONM MARK OLSON
06/28-07/01 07/03/25
543204 PILKINGP PAYTON M PILKINGTON
06/28-07/01 07/03/25
543205 WEX WEX BANK
105733065 06/30/25
D004275
01-110 ADMIN
01-120 FINANCE
01-210 POLICE
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

01-410
01-640
11-111

STREETS OPERATIONS
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
FOX HILL SSA

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/11/2025

ITEM
# DESCRIPTION
01 UMPIRE

01 REFEREE

01 UMPIRE

01 UMPIRE

01 JUNE 2025 GASOLINE
02 JUNE 2025 GASOLINE

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

ACCOUNT #

PROJECT CODE

79-795-54-00-5462

INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462

INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462

INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462

CHECK TOTAL:

INVOICE TOTAL:

01-210-56-00-5695
01-220-56-00-5695

CHECK TOTAL:

INVOICE TOTAL:

TOTAL CHECKS PAID:
TOTAL DIRECT DEPOSITS PAID:
TOTAL AMOUNT PAID:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT

165.
165.

100.
100.

80.

80.
80.

6,759.
876.
7,636.

00
00

00
00

00

00
00

44
90
34

165.00

100.00

80.00

80.00

7,636.34

325,216.16
505.00

325,721.16

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/18/2025

ACCOUNT # PROJECT

FY

DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 10:41:33
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE
D004284 DIETERG GARY M. DIETER
070925 07/09/25
543276 FENILIJ JOSHUA FENILI
071025 07/10/25
543277 JSCONST J & S CONSTRUCTION
070325-PAY 4 07/03/25
D004285 OLEARYM MARTIN J. O'LEARY
070925 07/09/25
D004286 PATTONS SHANE PATTON
070925 07/09/25
01-110 ADMIN
01-120 FINANCE
01-210 POLICE
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
01-410 STREETS OPERATIONS
01-640 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
11-111 FOX HILL SSA

01

01

01
02

01

01

UMPIRE

UMPIRE

ENGINEERS PAYMENT ESTIMATE 4

FOR EL
NORTH

UMPIRE

UMPIRE

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

DAMAIN WATER
CONTRACT

MAIN LOOP

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

51-510-60-00-6024
** COMMENT **
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

CODE ITEM AMT
150.00
150.00 =

150.

84.00
84.00 *
84.

170,045.25
170,045.25 *
170,045

150.00
150.00 *
150.

110.00
110.00
110.

25-225 PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
51-510  WATER OPERATIONS

52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS

79-790 PARKS DEPARTMENT

79-795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
82-820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

00

00
.25

00

00
84-840 LIBRARY CAPITAL
87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
89-890 DOWNTOWN II TIF
90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
95-000 ESCROW DEPOSIT

Page 4 of 29
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DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 10:41:33 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/18/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
D004287 RIEHIEMG GRANT RIEHLE-MOELLER
070925 07/09/25 01 UMPIRE 79-795-54-00-5462 100.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 100.00 *
DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL: 100.00
543278 RIETZR ROBERT L. RIETZ JR.
070925 07/09/25 01 UMPIRE 79-795-54-00-5462 100.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 100.00 *
071025 07/10/25 01 UMPIRE 79-795-54-00-5462 84.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 84.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 184.00
543279 VOITIKM MICHAEL VOITIK
071025 07/10/25 01 UMPIRE 79-795-54-00-5462 84.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 84.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 84.00
543280 WINNINGE WINNINGER EXCAVATING INC.
070125-PAY 3 07/14/25 01 ENGINEERS PAYMENT ESTIMATE 3 51-510-60-00-6024 425,680.81
02 FOR ELDAMAIN WATER MAIN LOOP ** COMMENT **
03 SOUTH CONTRACT ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 425,680.81 *
CHECK TOTAL: 425,680.81
TOTAL CHECKS PAID: 596,078.06
TOTAL DIRECT DEPOSITS PAID: 510.00
TOTAL AMOUNT PAID: 596,588.06
1120 Fane 12-112  SUNFLOWER S5A 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL 84-840
01210 pOLCE 15155 MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS 87-870
Y o 23230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 52.520  SEWER OPERATIONS 88-880
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24216 BUILDING & GROUNDS - 59,890
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS . 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
25205 POLICE CAPITAL 79-795  RECREATION DEPARTMENT 90-XXX
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL toton  LIBRARY OPERATIONS 95-000
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL s

FY

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT

Page 5 of 29
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT #

PROJECT CODE

JUN 2025 SOCCER CAMPS

2025 HTD BAND

SUNSET HOTEL TAX-MAY 2025

ALL SEASON HOTEL TAX-JUN 2025

06/03-07/02 610 TOWER WELLS

05/21-06/20 2702 MILL RD

SUMMER SESSION 1 CLASS

DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE #
543209 5STARSOC 5 STAR SOCCER CAMPS INC
62625 06/26/25 01
543210 7THHEAVE RICHARD HOFHERR
2025 HTD 07/09/25 01
543211 AACVB AURORA AREA CONVENTION
05/25-SUNSET 06/27/25 01
06/25-ALL 06/10/25 01
543212 AEPENERG AEP ENERGY
3025129021-070825 07/08/25 01
3025129054-062325 06/23/25 01
543213 ALLSTAR ALL STAR SPORTS INSTRUCTION
254028 07/01/25 01
01-110  ADMIN 12-112
01-120  FINANCE 15-155
01-210  POLICE 23-230
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24-216
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25205
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25212
11-111  FOX HILL SSA 25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

79-795-54-00-5462

INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5620

INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5481
INVOICE

01-640-54-00-5481
INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

51-510-54-00-5480
INVOICE

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

51-510-54-00-5480

INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5462

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

TOTAL:

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

FY 26
ITEM AMT
3,049.23
3,049.23 *
3,049.23
4,500.00
4,500.00 *
4,500.00
8.10
8.10
65.05
65.05 *
73.15
9,359.96
9,359.96 *
7,788.66
7,788.66 *
17,148.62
7,981.00
84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
89-890  DOWNTOWN Il TIF
90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
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ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE

** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

51-510-54-00-5498
87-870-54-00-5498
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5602
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5427
** COMMENT **
** COMMENT **
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL:

79-795-54-00-5440
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION
543213 ALLSTAR ALL STAR SPORTS INSTRUCTION
254028 07/01/25 02 INSTRUCTION
543214 AMALGAMA AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAGO
58340725 07/01/25 01 BOND SERIES 2015A ADMIN FEE
02 BOND SERIES 2015A ADMIN FEE
543215 AMENGLLI ERIC SUSZYNSKI
2025 HTD 07/09/25 01 2025 HTD BAND FINAL PAYMENT
D004282 ANTPLACE ANTHONY PLACE YORKVILLE LP
AUG 2025 07/08/25 01 CITY OF YORKVILLE HOUSING
02 ASSISTANCE PROGRAM RENT
03 REIMBURSEMENT FOR THE MONTH OF
04 AUG 2025
543216 ATT AT&T
6305536805-0625 06/25/25 01 06/25-07/24 RIVERFRONT PARK
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 22216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 5205 POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

25-225 PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
51-510  WATER OPERATIONS

52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS

79-790 PARKS DEPARTMENT

79-795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
82-820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT
7,981.00 *
7,981.

349.32

125.68
475.00 *
475.

2,375.00
2,375.00 *
2,375.

390.00
390.00 *
390.

231.33
231.33 *
231.

FY 26

00

00

00

00

33
84-840 LIBRARY CAPITAL
87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
89-890 DOWNTOWN II TIF
90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
95-000 ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
FY 26
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
543217 BFCONSTR B&F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES
21054 06/30/25 01 MAY 2025 INSPECTIONS 01-220-54-00-5459 2,840.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 2,840.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 2,840.00
543218 BIRDCHLD BIRDCHILD LLC
2025 HTD 07/09/25 01 2025 HTD BAND 79-795-56-00-5620 2,000.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 2,000.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 2,000.00
543219 CAMBRIA CAMBRIA SALES COMPANY INC.
44182 06/27/25 01 PAPER TOWEL 52-520-56-00-5620 218.04
INVOICE TOTAL: 218.04 *
CHECK TOTAL-: 218.04
543220 CAROUSEL HARY WARNER
2025 HTD CAR SHOW 07/09/25 01 2025 HOMETOWN DAYS CAR SHOW 79-795-56-00-5602 585.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 585.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 585.00
543221 COMED COMMONWEALTH EDISON
0505912000-0625 07/01/25 01 05/30-06/30 1908 RAINTREE 51-510-54-00-5480 150.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 150.00 *
3059341222-0525 06/18/25 01 05/16-06/17 9257 GALENA PARK 79-795-54-00-5480 43.61
INVOICE TOTAL: 43.61 *
3387801111-0625 07/01/25 01 05/30-06/30 872 PRAIRIE CR 79-795-54-00-5480 84.75
INVOICE TOTAL: 84.75 *
01-110  ADMIN
12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA B
01-120  FINANCE 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL 84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIE
01-210  POLICE 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS
23-230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS
24-216  BUILDING & GROUNDS 29-890  DOWNTOWN Il TIF
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
25-205  POLICE CAPITAL 90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 79-795  RECREATION DEPARTMENT
25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 22820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS 95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL s
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DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE
543221 COMED COMMONWEALTH EDISON
3741450787-0625 07/01/25
5336617000-0525 06/18/25
6564924000-0625 06/23/25
7581432222-0625 07/01/25
7706362222-0625 06/23/25
8273737000-0625 07/01/25
9193732222-0525 06/18/25
543222 CONTELEC CONSTELLATION TELECOM
5379 07/09/25
01-110 ADMIN
01-120 FINANCE
01-210 POLICE
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
01-410 STREETS OPERATIONS
01-640 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
11-111 FOX HILL SSA

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

ITEM

#

01

01

01

01

01

01

01

01
02
03
04
05
06

DESCRIPTION

06/02-07/01

05/16-06/17

05/21-06/20

05/30-06/30

05/21-06/20

06/02-07/01

05/16-06/17

JUL
JUL
JUL
JUL
JUL

1201 BADGER UNIT B

RT47 & ROSENWINKLE

421 POPLAR

1107 PRAIRIE LIFT

RT47 & KENNEDY

104 E VAN EMMON

4600 N BRIDGE TANK

2025
2025
2025
2025
2025

ADMIN LINES

PUBLIC WORKS LINES
SEWER DEPT. LINES
RECREATION LINES
TRAFFIC SIGNAL

MAINTEMANCE

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

ACCOUNT #

51-510-54-00-5480

INVOICE

23-230-54-00-5482

INVOICE

23-230-54-00-5482

INVOICE

52-520-54-00-5480

INVOICE

23-230-54-00-5482

INVOICE

79-795-54-00-5480

INVOICE

51-510-54-00-5480

INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

01-110-54-00-5440
51-510-54-00-5440
52-520-54-00-5440
79-795-54-00-5440
01-410-54-00-5435
** COMMENT **

PROJECT CODE

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT

53

32.
32.

3,937

153.
153.

1,336.
1,336.

566.
566.

42.
42.

252.
568.
.52
.52
63.

252
252

1,388.

L7
53.

77 *

97
97 *

.73
3,937.

67

26

26 %

69

63
63 *

6,402.

52
17
13
86 %

1,388

08

.86

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001

CHECK #

VENDOR #
INVOICE #

INVOICE
DATE

U

NITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

IPTION

ACCOUNT #

PROJECT CODE

543223

543224

COXLAND

192727

192743

192744

192752

EET

83872

83873

83874

83875

83876

83877

01-110  ADMIN

COX LANDSCAPING LLC

06/25/25

07/07/25

07/07/25

07/08/25

ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES,

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

01-120 FINANCE

01-210  POLICE

01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
11-111 FOX HILL SSA

01

01
02

01

01

01

01

ITEM

# DESCR
01 SUNFLO
01 MAY 20
02 MOWING
01 JUN 20
01

SUNFLOWER ESTATES TREE REMOVAL

INC.

N. RT4

TRAFFI
MARKIN

UTILIT

PRESTW

STORM

GRANDE

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

WER ESTATES MULCHING

25 SUNFLOWER ESTATES

25 FOX HILL MOWING

7 IMPROVEMENTS

C CONTROL SIGNAGE AND
GS

Y PERMIT REVIEWS

ICK

WATER BASIN INSPECTIONS

RESERVE-UNITS 26 & 27

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

12-112-54-00-5495
INVOICE TOTAL:

12-112-54-00-5495

** COMMENT **

INVOICE TOTAL:

11-111-54-00-5495
INVOICE TOTAL:

12-112-54-00-5495
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5465
INVOICE TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5465

** COMMENT **

INVOICE TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5465
INVOICE TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5465
INVOICE TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5465
INVOICE TOTAL:

90-147-00-00-0111

INVOICE TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT
1,625.00
1,625.00 *
1,500.00
1,500.00 *
1,587.00
1,587.00 *
2,150.00
2,150.00 *
6,862.
5,062.75
5,062.75 *
4,999.00
4,999.00 *
2,231.74
2,231.74 *
292.50
292.50 *
1,899.00
1,899.00 *
218.75
218.75 *

00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
146.25

CE TOTAL: 146.25 *
270.50

CE TOTAL: 270.50 *
2,555.25

CE TOTAL: 2,555.25 *
294.75

CE TOTAL: 294.75 *
43.75

CE TOTAL: 43.75 *
726.75

CE TOTAL: 726.75 *
376.50

CE TOTAL: 376.50 *
32,394.75

CE TOTAL: 32,394.75 *
6,777.00

CE TOTAL: 6,777.00 *
104.00

CE TOTAL: 104.00 *
1,021.00

CE TOTAL: 1,021.00 *

59,414

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

.24

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #
543224 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83878 06/25/25 01 KENDALL MARKETPLACE LOT 52 90-154-00-00-0111
02 PHASE 2 & 3 ** COMMENT **
INVOI
83879 06/25/25 01 GRANDE RESERVE UNIT 9 01-640-54-00-5465
INVOI
83880 06/25/25 01 KENDALLWOOD ESTATES-RALLY 90-174-00-00-0111
INVOI
83881 06/25/25 01 WELL MONITORING DASHBOARDS 01-640-54-00-5465
INVOI
83882 06/25/25 01 BRISTOL BAY-UNIT ‘13 90-179-00-00-0111
INVOI
83883 06/25/25 01 CALEDONIA UNIT 3 90-188-00-00-0111
INVOI
83884 06/25/25 01 LAKR MICHIGAN CONNECTION- 51-510-60-00-6011
02 CORROSION CONTROL STUDY **  COMMENT **
INVOI
83885 06/25/25 01 PUBLIC WORKS SITE-BOOMBAH 24-216-60-00-6042
INVOI
83886 06/25/25 01 WELL #10 AND RAW WATER MAIN 51-510-60-00-6029
INVOT
83887 06/25/25 01 BRISTOL RIDGE SOLAR 105 90-201-00-00-0111
INVOI
83888 06/25/25 01 2024 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT-A 51-510-60-00-6025
INVOI
CHECK TOTAL:
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA 55995
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) ey
01-210  POLICE 23230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL gz'gzg
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24216 BUILDING & GROUNDS 52:520
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 55205  POLICE CAPITAL o7
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 83&23
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL s

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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34,607.

00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT ITEM AMT
543225 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83890 06/25/25 01 SOUTHERN SANITARY SEWER 52-520-60-00-6024 34,607.00
02 CONNECTION ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 34,607.00
CHECK TOTAL:
543226 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83891 06/25/25 01 QUIK TRIP GAS STATION 90-208-00-00-0111 371.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 371.00
83892 06/25/25 01 CENTER ST WATER MAIN EXTENSION 51-510-60-00-6025 2,704.75
INVOICE TOTAL: 2,704.75
83893 06/25/25 01 WELL #7 WTP ELECTRICAL 51-510-60-00-6068 588.00
02 IMPROVEMEMENTS ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 588.00
83894 06/25/25 01 KENDALL MARKETPLACE LOT 52 90-154-00-00-0111 195.00
02 PHASE 4 ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 195.00
83895 06/25/25 01 LAKE MICHIGAN-WIFIA LOAN APP, 51-510-60-00-6011 8,055.94
INVOICE TOTAL: 8,055.94
83896 06/25/25 01 RT47 UTILITY RELOCATION 51-510-60-00-6039 540.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 540.00
83897 06/25/25 01 YORKVILLE SOLAR 90-212-00-00-0111 1,133.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,133.50
83898 06/25/25 01 CORNEILS RD SOLAR/BEECHER 90-216-00-00=0111 1,805.50
02 RD SOLAR ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,805.50
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
01-210  POLICE 33230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 54216 BUILDING & GROUNDS 52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25.205  POLICE CAPITAL 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 79795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL 82-820  LIBRARY OPERATIONS

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55

ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

ACCOUNT #

543226 EEI

83899

83900

83901

83902

83903

83904

83905

83906

83907

83908

83910

01-110
01-120
01-210
01-220
01-410
01-640
11-111

ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES,

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

06/25/25

ADMIN

FINANCE

POLICE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
STREETS OPERATIONS
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
FOX HILL SSA

ITEM
# DESCRIPTION
INC.
01 GRANDE RESERVE UNIT 21
01 GRANDE RESERVE UNIT 28
01 2024 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM
01 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE
01 LM-SOUTH RECEIVING STATION
01 LM-SOUTH RECEIVING STATION
02 STANDPIPE
01 LM-NORTHWEST ELEVATED WATER
02 STORAGE TANK
01 LM-RT126 WATER MAIN
02 IMPROVEMENTS
01 WESTBURY VILLAGE-NVR
01 VAN EMMON ST RESURFACING
01 GRANDE RESERVE UNITS 10 & 11
12-112 SUNFLOWER SSA
15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
24-216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
25-205  POLICE CAPITAL
25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
25-215 PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

90-222-00-00-0111
INVOI

90-244-00-00-0111
INVOI

23-230-60-00-6028
INVOI

23-230-54-00-5465
INVOI

51-510-60-00-6011
INVOTI

51-510-60-00-6011
** COMMENT **
INVOI

51-510-60-00-6011
** COMMENT **
INVOI

51-510-60-00-6011
** COMMENT **
INVOI

90-178-00-00-0111
INVOI

23-230-60-00-6089
INVOI

90-223-00-00-0111
INVOI

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
9,518.00

CE TOTAL: 9,518.00
60.75

CE TOTAL: 60.75
2,069.00

CE TOTAL: 2,069.00
11,689.60

CE TOTAL: 11,689.60
42,607.75

CE TOTAL: 42,607.75
12,714.25

CE TOTAL: 12,714.25
2,597.50

CE TOTAL: 2,597.50
19,937.50

CE TOTAL: 19,937.50
384.00

CE TOTAL: 384.00
35,884.82

CE TOTAL: 35,884.82
1,376.50

CE TOTAL: 1,376.50

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
543226 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83911 06/25/25 01 CYRUS ONE 90-227-00-00-0111 512.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 512.00
83912 06/25/25 01 YORKVILLE WATER RATE STUDY 51-510-54-00-5465 5,545.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 5,545.50
83913 06/25/25 01 QUIET ZONE STUDY-BNSF 23-230-60-00-6069 357.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 357.00
83914 06/25/25 01 FAXON ROAD RECONSTRUCTION 23-230-60-00-6046 3,858.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 3,858.50
83915 06/25/25 01 KENNEDY ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS 23-230-60-00-6040 6,496.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 6,496.50
83926 06/25/25 01 2820 BEECHER SOLAR 90-231-00-00-0111 1,950.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,950.50
83927 06/25/25 01 QUIET ZONE STUDY-DOWNTOWN 23-230-60-00-6069 630.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 630.00
83928 06/25/25 01 2024 SANITARY SEWER LINING 52-520-60-00-6025 163.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 163.50
83929 06/25/25 01 PIONEER DEVELOPMENT-PROJECT 90-242-00-00-0111 11,663.50
02 CARDINAL ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 11,663.50
83930 06/25/25 01 HEARTLAND MEADOWS WEST 90-232-00-00-0111 1,542.75
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,542.75
83931 06/25/25 01 EAST ALLEY WATER MAIN 51-510-60-00-6025 13,671.00
02 IMPROVEMENTS ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 13,671.00
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
01-210  POLICE 33230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 54216 BUILDING & GROUNDS 52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25.205  POLICE CAPITAL 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 79795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL 82-820  LIBRARY OPERATIONS

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025 FY 26
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
543226 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83932 06/25/25 01 COSTCO 90-239-00-00-0111 8,795.75
INVOICE TOTAL: 8,795.75 *
83933 06/25/25 01 KENNEDY RD & FREEDOM PLACE 23-230-60-00-6087 985.00
02 INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 985.00 *
83934 06/25/25 01 DWC TRANSMISSION MAIN 51-510-60-00-6011 1,417.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,417.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 211,821.86
543227 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83935 06/25/25 01 ELDAMAIN WATER MAIN LOOP-N 51-510-60-00-6024 25,002.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 25,002.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 25,002.00
543228 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83936 06/25/25 01 ELDAMAIN WATER MAIN LOOP-S 51-510-60-00-6024 35,235.75
INVOICE TOTAL: 35,235.75 *
83937 06/25/25 01 CITY OF YORKVILLE-GENERAL 01-640-54-00-5465 2,659.75
INVOICE TOTAL: 2,659.75 *
83938 06/25/25 01 CHRISTIE PROPERTY 90-243-00-00-0111 348.25
INVOICE TOTAL: 348.25 *
83939 06/25/25 01 BERTRAM DRIVE CONNECTION 23-230-60-00-6098 700.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 700.00 *
83940 06/25/25 01 WELL #9 REHABILITATION 51-510-60-00-6022 878.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 878.50 *
01-110  ADMIN
12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA B
01-120  FINANCE 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL 84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIE
01-210  POLICE 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS
23-230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS
24-216  BUILDING & GROUNDS 29-890  DOWNTOWN Il TIF
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
25-205  POLICE CAPITAL 90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 79-795  RECREATION DEPARTMENT
25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
11-111  FOX HILL SSA 82-820  LIBRARY OPERATIONS

25-215 PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

Page 15 of 29



DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025 FY 26
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
543228 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83941 06/25/25 01 CANNONBALL TRAIL SHARED USE 01-640-54-00-5465 210.00
02 PATH ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 210.00
83942 06/25/25 01 PROLOGIS/PROJECT STEEL 90-246-00-00-0111 3,649.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 3,649.00
83943 06/25/25 01 2026 WATER MAIN IMPORVEMENT 51-510-60-00-6025 12,348.50
INVOICE TOTAL: 12,348.50 *
83944 06/25/25 01 YSD 115 - TEMPORARY STRUCTURES 01-640-54-00-5465 939.25
INVOICE TOTAL: 939.25 *
CHECK TOTAL: 56,969.00
543229 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83945 06/25/25 01 2025 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM 23-230-60-00-6028 84,863.76
INVOICE TOTAL: 84,863.76 *
CHECK TOTAL: 84,863.76
543230 EEI ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
83946 06/25/25 01 LM-NORTH RECEIVING STATION 51-510-60-00-6011 5,469.23
INVOICE TOTAL: 5,469.23
83947 06/25/25 01 MUNICIPAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 01-640-54-00-5465 1,900.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,900.00
83949 06/25/25 01 LM-BLUESTEM WATER MAIN 51-510-60-00-6011 5,421.50
02 IMPROVEMENT %% COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 5,421.50
CHECK TOTAL: 12,790.73
01-110  ADMIN
12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA i
01-120  FINANCE 15155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL 84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
01-210  POLICE 93230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS
i 88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24216 BUILDING & GROUNDS 52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS
i 89-890  DOWNTOWN Il TIF
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25.205  POLICE CAPITAL 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
i 90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 79795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
i 95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL 82-820  LIBRARY OPERATIONS
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ACCOUNT #

PROJECT CODE

01-220-54-00-5462
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-220-54-00-5440
51-510-54-00-5440
01-110-54-00-5440
01-210-54-00-5440
79-795-54-00-5440

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-220-54-00-5440
79-790-54-00-5440

79-795-54-00-5440
51-510-54-00-5440
52-520-54-00-5440

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225-60-00-6010
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION
543231 ENCODE ENCODE PLUS, LLC
3166 07/09/25 01 UDO ORDINANCE ADDED TO PORTAL
543232 FIRSTNET AT&T MOBILITY
287313454005X0703202  06/25/25 01 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
02 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
03 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
04 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
05 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
543233 FIRSTNET AT&T MOBILITY
287313454207X0703202  06/25/25 01 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
02 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
03 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
04 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
05 JUN 2025 MOBILE DEVICES
543234 FOXVALSA FOX VALLEY SANDBLASTING
62155 06/06/25 01 SANDBLASTING & RECOATING
543235 FRECOSYS FOX RIVER ECOSYSTEM
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 22216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 5205 POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

FY
ITEM AMT
88.00
88.00 *
88.00
42.20
121.40
84.40
838.04
80.88
1,166.92 *
1,166.92
404.12
36.24
156.88
255.35
72.48
925.07 *
925.07
1,818.62
1,818.62 *
1,818.62
84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
89-890  DOWNTOWN Il TIF
90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT #

PROJECT CODE

MEMBERSHIP DUES RENEWAL

GENERAL CITY LEGAL MATTERS

KIMBALL HILL I MATTERS

VEHICLE ADDED TO POLICY

2025 HTD BAND

2025 HTD STAGE & LIGHTING

DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE
543235 FRECOSYS FOX RIVER ECOSYSTEM
2026 DUES 07/09/25
543236 GARDKOCH GARDINER KOCH & WEISBERG
24819 06/13/25
25093 07/09/25
543237 GLATFELT GLATFELTER UNDERWRITING SRVS.
226634132 06/19/25
543238 GOODCLEA MICHAEL BRUCCOLERI
2025 HTD 07/09/25
543239 HIFIEVEN HI FI EVENTS, INC.
2025 HTD 07/09/25
01-110 ADMIN 12-112
01-120 FINANCE 15-155
01-210 POLICE 23-230
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24-216
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25-205
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25.212
11-111 FOX HILL SSA 25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

01-110-54-00-5460
INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

01-640-54-00-5461
INVOICE

01-640-54-00-5461
INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

01-640-52-00-5231
INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5620
INVOICE

CHECK TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5602
INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
25-225 PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
51-510 WATER OPERATIONS
52-520 SEWER OPERATIONS
79-790 PARKS DEPARTMENT
79-795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
82-820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT
100.00
100.00 *

100
200.00
200.00 *
1,120.00
1,120.00 *
1,320
2,856.00
2,856.00 *
2,856
3,750.00
3,750.00 *
3,750
9,600.00
9,600.00 *
9,600

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE :
TIME:
ID:

07/14/25
09:49:55
AP211001

CHECK # VENDOR #

INVOICE #

INVOICE
DATE

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

543240 HIGHSTAR

13951

14124

543241 HIVOX

2025 HTD

543242 ILPD4778

20250504790

543243 ILPD4811

20250504811

543244 IMPERINV

01-110
01-120
01-210
01-220
01-410
01-640
11-111

POLICE

ADMIN
FINANCE

HIGH STAR TRAFFIC

06/20/25

06/30/25

DAVID MIKULSKIS

07/09/25

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE

05/31/25

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE

05/31/25

IMPERIAL INVESTMENTS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
STREETS OPERATIONS
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
FOX HILL SSA

01

01

01

01

01
02
03
04

TRAFFIC SIGNS

STREET SIGNS

2025 HTD BAND

LIQUOR LICENSE BACKGROUND

CHECK

MASSAGE & MERCHANT
BACKGROUND CHECKS
BACKGROUND CHECKS
BACKGROUND CHECKS

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE
23-230-56-00-5619

INVOICE TOTAL:
23-230-56-00-5619

INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
79-795-56-00=5602

INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
01-110-54-00-5462

** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-110-54-00-5462

** COMMENT **
79-795-54-00-5462
01-110-54-00-5462

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT

1,524.20
1,524.20 *

68.80
68.80 *
1,593.

5,000.00
5,000.00 *
5,000.

54.00
54.00 *
54.

54.00

189.00

54.00
297.00 *
297.

00

00

00

00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE
01-000-24-00-2488
INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
24-216-54-00-5446
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
01-640-54-00-5450
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL:
01-640-54-00-5450 2
INVOICE TOTAL: 2
CHECK TOTAL:
79-795-56-00-5602
INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
01-410-54-00-5490 1
INVOICE TOTAL: 1

CHECK TOTAL:

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION
543244 IMPERINV IMPERIAL INVESTMENTS
MAY 2025-REBATE 07/10/25 01 MAY 2025 BUSINESS DIST REBATE
543245 INTEGRAT INTEGRATED CONTROL
W15996 07/02/25 01 ADDED TIMERS TO VAV 1-2 TO
02 STOP SHORT CYCLING
543246 INTERDEV INTERDEV, LLC
CW1049870 06/30/25 01 NETWRIX AUDITOR FOR ACTIVE
02 DIRECTORY-HYBRID LICENSE
MSP-1049849 06/30/25 01 MONTHLY IT SUPPORT-JUN 2025
543247 IPOP I POP BAND PARTNERSHIP
2025 HTD 07/09/25 01 2025 HTD BAND
543248 JXENTER JX ENTERPRISES, INC
22563745 07/01/25 01 INJECTOR REPLACEMENTS
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 22216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 5205 POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

25-225 PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
51-510  WATER OPERATIONS

52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS

79-790 PARKS DEPARTMENT

79-795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
82-820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT
3,572.05
3,572.05 *
3,572.
360.00
360.00 *
360.
4,502.54
4,502.54 *
0,051.94
0,051.94 *
24,554.
1,500.00

1,500.00 =

1,500.

7,005.42
7,005.42 %

17,005.

05

00

48

00

42

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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ACCOUNT #

PROJECT

CODE

ITEM AMT

01-000-24-00-2487

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

24-216-60-00-6042
** COMMENT **
** COMMENT **

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION
543249 KENDCROS KENDALL CROSSING, LLC
BD REBATE 05/25 07/10/25 01 MAY 2025 BUSINESS DIST. REBATE
543250 KLUBER KLUBER, INC
9660 06/30/25 01 COMPLETED WORK ON CITY OF
02 YORKVILLE PUBLIC WORKS AND
03 PARKS MAINTENANCE BUILDING
543251 LANEMUCH LANER, MUCHIN, LTD
696620 06/01/25 01 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES THROUGH
02 05-20-25
543252 LAUTAMEN LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
105565 06/26/25 01 APRIL 30, 2025-PROGRESS
02 BILLING
543253 M&D360 M&D 360 PHOTO BOOTH LLC
INV10081 05/16/25 01 2025 HTD PHOTO BOOTH
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 22216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 5205 POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

INVOICE TOTAL: 26,740.40 *
CHECK TOTAL: 26,740.
01-640-54-00-5463 112.50
** COMMENT. **
INVOICE TOTAL: 112.50 ~*
CHECK TOTAL: 112
01-120-54-00-5414 10,000.00
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 10,000.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 10,000.
79-795-56-00-5602 1,500.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,500.00 =
CHECK TOTAL: 1,500.
25-225 PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
51-510 WATER OPERATIONS
52-520 SEWER OPERATIONS
79-790 PARKS DEPARTMENT
79-795 RECREATION DEPARTMENT
82-820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

7,342.56
7,342.56 %

7,342

26,740.40

.56

40

.50

00

00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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ACCOUNT #

01-110-54-00-5485
01-120-54-00-5485
01-220-54-00-5485
01-210-54-00-5485
01-410-54-00-5485
51-510-54-00-5485
52-520-54-00-5485
79-790-54-00-5485
79-795-54-00-5485

INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

51-510-56-00-5638
INVOI

24-216-56-00-5656
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

51-510-56-00-5638
INVOT

51-510-56-00-5638
INVOI

51-510-56-00-5638
INVOI

51-510-56-00-5638
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION
543254 MARCO MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC
558750592 06/26/25 01 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
02 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
03 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
04 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
05 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
06 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
07 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
08 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
09 06/20-07/20 COPIER LEASE
543255 MIDAM MID AMERICAN WATER
250074A 06/24/25 01 AIR & VACUUM VALVE
250637A 06/27/25 01 PIPE, ENDS
543256 MIDWSALT MIDWEST SALT
P482379 05/09/25 01 BULK ROCK SALT
P483163 07/07/25 01 BULK ROCK SALT
P483172 07/07/25 01 BULK ROCK SALT
P483173 07/07/25 01 BULK ROCK SALT
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 94216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 35205  POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

PROJECT CODE

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT

266
266
532

684.
53.
53.
53.

161.

266

2,338.

1,515.
1,515.

844.
844.

3,257.
3,257.

3,322.
3,322.

3,047

3,047.

3,074.
3,074.

.29
.27
.58
73
80
80
79
39
.29
94 *

2,338.

60
60 *

14
14 *

2,359.

36
36 %

69
69 *

.56
56 *

62
62 *

12,702

94

74

.23

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025 FY 26
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
543257 MROWCO MATHEWSON RIGHT OF WAY CO,
24-0387-09 06/30/25 01 LAKE MICHIGAN WATER SYSTEM 51-510-60-00-6011 10,557.50
02 IMPROVEMENT PROJECT ** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 10,557.50 *
CHECK TOTAL: 10,557.50
543258 NARVICK NARVICK BROS. LUMBER CO, INC
97322 06/19/25 01 CONCRETE 25-225-60-00-6010 1,373.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,373.00 *
97353 06/20/25 01 CONCRETE 79-790-56-00-5640 960.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 960.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 2,333.00
543259 NEOPOST QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC
070225-CITY 07/02/25 01 REFILL POSTAGE MACHINE 01-000-14-00-1410 300.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 300.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 300.00
543260 NICOR NICOR GAS
00-41-22-8748 4-0625 07/02/25 01 06/03-07/02 1107 PRAIRIE LN 01-110-54-00-5480 57.60
INVOICE TOTAL: 57.60 *
15-64-61-3532 5-0625 07/02/25 01 06/0%*07/02 1991 CANNONBALL 01-110-54-00-5480 60.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 60.00 *
20-52-56-2042 1-0625 06/30/25 01 05/30-06/30 420 FAIRHAVEN 01-110-54-00=5480 149.01
INVOICE TOTAL: 149.01 *
CHECK TOTAL: 266.61
01-110  ADMIN
12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 25-225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL 84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) 87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
01-210  POLICE 51-510  WATER OPERATIONS
23-230 CITY WIDE CAPITAL 88-880 DOWNTOWN TIF
01-220  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS
24-216  BUILDING & GROUNDS 89-800  DOWNTOWN Il TIF
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 79-790  PARKS DEPARTMENT
25-205  POLICE CAPITAL 90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 79-795  RECREATION DEPARTMENT
25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL 20820 LIBRARY OPERATIONS 95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL s
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

ACCOUNT #

PROJECT CODE

DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE
543261 OSWEGO VILLAGE OF OSWEGO
3182 07/08/25
543262 PIZZO PIZZO AND ASSOCIATES,
341-4 07/01/25
543263 PLEVELLJ JACOB PLEVELL
2025 HTD 07/09/25
543264 PRINTSRC LAMBERT PRINT SOURCE,
4770 06/19/25
4774 06/20/25
4792 07/01/25
4795 07/02/25
01-110 ADMIN
01-120 FINANCE
01-210 POLICE
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
01-410 STREETS OPERATIONS
01-640 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
11-111 FOX HILL SSA

LTD

01
02

ITEM
# DESCRIPTION

01 STATE LOBBYIST CHARGE-JUN 2025
02 STATE LOBBYIST CHARGE-JUN 2025
03 FEDERAL LOBBYIST CHRG-JUN 2025
04 FEDERAL LOBBYIST CHRG-JUN 2025

NATURALIZATION AREA UPKEEP AT
651 PRAIRIE POINTE DR

2025 HTD BAND

LLC

FLAGS OF VALOR

JULY 4TH SIGNAGE

2025 RIVER FEST SIGNS

2025 RIVER FEST SIGNS

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

51-510-54-00-5462
01-640-54-00-5462
51-510-54-00-5462
01-640-54-00-5462

INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

24-216-54-00-5446
** COMMENT **
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5602
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5606
INVOT

79-795-56-00-5606
INVOI

79-795-56-00-5606
INVOI

79-795-56-00-5606
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT
1,166.67
1,166.66
1,562.50
1,562.50
5,458.33 *
5,458.
732.19
732.19 *
732.
3,000.00
3,000.00 *
3,000.
428.00
428.00 *
440.00
440.00 *
2,407.50
2,407.50 *
96.00
96.00 *
3,371.

33

19

00

50

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

DESCRIPTION

ITEM AMT

WORK DONE ON YORKVILLE PUBLIC
WORKS & PARKS DEPARTMENT
FACILITY

2025 HTD BAND PERFORMANCE

WATER TESTING

DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE #
543265 RCWEGMAN R.C. WEGMAN CONSTRUCTION
3 06/30/25 01
02
03
543266 SNOWGIRL STEPHEN FROST
2025 HTD BAND 07/09/25 01
543267 SUBURLAB SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC.
GA5003399 07/01/25 01
GAS002961 06/02/25 01 MAY
543268 UNIMAX UNI-MAX MANAGEMENT CORP
5414 06/16/25 01 JUN
02 651
03 JUN
04 651
05 JUN
06 651
07 JUN
08 651
01-110  ADMIN 12-112
01-120  FINANCE 15-155
01-210  POLICE 23-230
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24-216
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 25205
01-640 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212
11-111  FOX HILL SSA 25.215

2025 WATER TESTING

2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
PRAIRIE POINTE
2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
PRAIRIE POINTE
2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
PRAIRIE POINTE
2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
PRAIRIE POINTE

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE
24-216-60-00-6042 1,61
** COMMENT **
** COMMENT **
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,61
CHECK TOTAL:
79-795-56-00-5602
INVOICE TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
51-510-54-00-5429
INVOICE TOTAL:
51-510-54-00-5429
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

01-110-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
01-120-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
01-210-54-00-5488
** “COMMENT **
79-795-54-00-5488
** COMMENT . **

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

5,377.50

5,377.50 *

1,615,377.50

5,000.00
5,000.00 *

5,000.00
2,578.00
2,578.00 *

938.00
938.00 *
3,516.00
369.55
369.55
1,061.38
318.11
84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25 UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
TIME: 09:49:55 CHECK REGISTER
ID: AP211001
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE ITEM
INVOICE # DATE # DESCRIPTION
543268 UNIMAX UNI-MAX MANAGEMENT CORP
5414 06/16/25 09 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
10 651 PRAIRIE POINTE
11 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
12 PW BLDG
13 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
14 PW BLDG
15 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
16 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING
17 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
18 185 WOLF
19 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
20 BEECHER CONCESSION
21 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
22 BRIDGE CONCESSION
23 JUN 2025 OFFICE. CLEANING AT
24 PRESCHOOL BLDG
25 JUN 2025 OFFICE CLEANING AT
26 VAN EMMON
543269 UPCOMING UP & COMING LLC
2025 HTD 07/09/25 01 2025 HTD BAND
543270 WATERSER WATER SERVICES CO.
40821 06/30/25 01 TEST & CERTIFY RPZ AT VARIOUS
02 LOCATIONS
01-110  ADMIN 12-112  SUNFLOWER SSA
01-120  FINANCE 15-155  MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)
01-210  POLICE 23-230  CITY WIDE CAPITAL
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 24216 BUILDING & GROUNDS
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS 55205  POLICE CAPITAL
01-640  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25-212  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
11-111  FOXHILL SSA 25-215  PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

07/22/2025

ACCOUNT #

01-220-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
01-410-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
51-510-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
52-520-54-00-5488
82-820-54-00-5488
79-790-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
79-795-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
79-795-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
79-795-54-00-5488
** COMMENT **
79-795-54-00-5488
** COMMENT. **
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

79-795-56-00-5602
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

24-216-54-00-5446
** COMMENT **
INVOI

CHECK TOTAL:

25-225
51-510
52-520
79-790
79-795
82-820

PROJECT CODE

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

CE TOTAL:

PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL
WATER OPERATIONS

SEWER OPERATIONS

PARKS DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

ITEM AMT

203
153.
153.
153.
2,106.
230.
230.

230.

230.

6,509.

1,700.
1,700.

1,575.

1,575.

.41

00
00
00
00
00
00

00

.00

00
00 *

6,509

00
00 =*

1,700

00
00 *

1,575

.00

.00

.00

84-840
87-870
88-880
89-890
90-XXX
95-000

FY 26

LIBRARY CAPITAL
COUNTRYSIDE TIF
DOWNTOWN TIF
DOWNTOWN II TIF
DEVELOPER ESCROW
ESCROW DEPOSIT
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DATE: 07/14/25
TIME: 09:49:55
ID: AP211001
CHECK # VENDOR # INVOICE
INVOICE # DATE
543271 WILCOXM CATHERINE B. WILCOX
2025 HTD BALANCE 07/09/25
543272 YBSD YORKVILLE BRISTOL
2025.013 07/01/25
543273 YORKBIGB YORKVILLE BIG BAND
2025 HTD 07/09/25
543274 YORKPRPC YORKVILLE PARK & REC
2025 HTD 07/09/25
543275 YOUNGM MARLYS J. YOUNG
061725-PW 06/29/25
01-110  ADMIN
01-120  FINANCE
01-210 POLICE
01-220 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
01-410  STREETS OPERATIONS
01-640 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
11-111  FOX HILL SSA

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

CHECK REGISTER

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/22/2025

ITEM

#

01

01

01

01

01

DESCRIPTION

2025 HTD

LANDFILL

2025 HTD

2025 HTD

06/17/25

FINAL PAYMENT

EXPENSE-JUL 2025

BAND

START UP CASH

PW MEETING MINUTES

12-112
15-155
23-230
24-216
25-205
25-212
25-215

SUNFLOWER SSA

MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT)

CITY WIDE CAPITAL

BUILDING & GROUNDS

POLICE CAPITAL

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL

26

FY
ACCOUNT # PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT
79-795-56-00-5602 2,750.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 2,750.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 2,750.00
51-510-54-00-5445 26,686.46
INVOICE TOTAL: 26,686.46 *
CHECK TOTAL: 26,686.46
79-795-56-00-5602 1,200.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 1,200.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 1,200.00
79-795-56-00-5602 10,000.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 10,000.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 10,000.00
01-110-54-00-5462 85.00
INVOICE TOTAL: 85.00 *
CHECK TOTAL: 85.00
TOTAL CHECKS PAID: 2,380,672.92
TOTAL DIRECT DEPOSITS PAID: 390.00
TOTAL AMOUNT PAID: 2,381,062.92
25225  PARK & RECREATION CAPITAL 84-840  LIBRARY CAPITAL
51-510  WATER OPERATIONS 87-870  COUNTRYSIDE TIF
52-520  SEWER OPERATIONS 88-880  DOWNTOWNTIF
79790  PARKS DEPARTMENT 89-890  DOWNTOWN I TIF
79-795  RECREATION DEPARTMENT 90-XXX  DEVELOPER ESCROW
82-820  LIBRARY OPERATIONS 95-000  ESCROW DEPOSIT
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

July 3, 2025

PAYROLL SUMMARY

ADMINISTRATION
FINANCE

POLICE
COMMUNITY DEV.
STREETS
BUILDING & GROUNDS
WATER

SEWER

PARKS
RECREATION
LIBRARY

TOTALS $ 396,940.56 $

TOTAL PAYROLL

REGULAR OVERTIME TOTAL IMRF FICA TOTALS
24,087.15 - 24,087.15 1,609.34 1,789.14 27,485.63
14,180.38 - 14,180.38 941.58 1,048.91 16,170.87

150,622.04 5,453.66 156,075.70 503.75 11,605.70 168,185.15
37,034.67 - 37,034.67 2,376.11 2,757.93 42,168.71
29,445.01 - 29,445.01 1,955.14 2,175.27 33,5675.42

6,877.80 106.48 6,984.28 473.71 531.37 7,989.36
24,657.06 622.44 25,279.50 1,621.41 1,854.22 28,755.13
17,277.98 - 17,277.98 1,147.26 1,264.85 19,690.09
40,986.59 233.63 41,220.22 2,486.29 3,096.56 46,803.07
31,712.19 - 31,712.19 1,607.87 2,371.38 35,691.44
20,059.69 - 20,059.69 808.60 1,477.09 22,345.38
6,416.21 $ 403,356.77 $ 15,5531.06 $ 29,972.42 448,860.25

$ 448,860.25
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

BILL LIST SUMMARY
Tuesday, July 22, 2025
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
FY 25
City Check Register - FY 25 (Page 1)
SUB-TOTAL:

FY 26

Manual City Check Register - FY 26 (Pages 2 - 3)
Manual City Check Register - FY 26 (Pages 4 - 5)
City Check Register - FY 26 (Pages 6 - 27)

SUB-TOTAL:
PAYROLL
Bi - Weekly (Page 268)
SUB-TOTAL:
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS:

DATE

07/22/2025

07/11/2025
07/18/2025
07/22/2025

07/03/2025

11,481.80

11,481.80

325,721.16
596,588.06
2,381,062.92

$3,303,372.14

448,860.25

448,860.25

3,763,714.19
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Legal Consent Agenda #3

Finance

Engineer
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PW 2025-66

Public Works
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Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: East Alley Water Main Improvements — Illinois Railway, LLC License Agreement

Meeting and Date: City Council — July 22, 2025

Synopsis: East Alley Water Main Improvements — Recommendation to Accept the Illinois

Railway, LLC License Agreement

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: PW — 7/15/25 Action Taken: Moved forward to CC consent agenda.

Item Number: PW 2025-66

Type of Vote Required: Approval

Council Action Requested: Acceptance of the Illinois Railway License Agreement

Submitted by: Brad Sanderson Engineering

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http.//www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




Memorandum

To: Bart Olson, City Administrator
From: Brad Sanderson, EEI
CC: Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works

Jori Behland, City Clerk
Rob Fredrickson, Finance Director

Date: July 8, 2025
Subject: East Alley Water Main Improvements — Illinois Railway, LLC License
Agreement

During the upcoming fall, the City will be replacing the water main located in East Alley in
downtown Yorkville ahead of the planned revitalization of that area. As a part of the project,
water main must be installed underneath railroad tracks owned by Illinois Railway, LLC. The
City has undergone an extensive permitting process with the railroad including conversations on
the cost and language of the License Agreement. The language of the agreement has been
reviewed by the City Attorney and carries a one-time license fee of $4,400.

We recommend the acceptance and approval of the License Agreement with Illinois Railway,
LLC.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please let us know.



Resolution No. 2025-

A RESOLUTION OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, APPROVING A PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE
AGREEMENT WITH ILLINOIS RAILWAY LLC

WHEREAS, the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois (the “Ci#y”) is a duly
organized and validly existing non-home rule municipality created in accordance with the
Constitution of the State of Illinois of 1970 and the laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, as a part of the City’s East Alley Water Main Replacement Project, it is
necessary to install a water main underneath railroad tracks owned by Illinois Railway, LL (the
“Illinois Railway”); and

WHEREAS, Illinois Railway has agreed to grant the City a license for a 9.05 inch iron
carrier fresh water pipe line inside a twenty-four (24) inch casing under its railway tracks for a one
time fee of $4,400; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to construct this water main on Illinois Railway’s property as
a part of the improvements the City has undertaken to its public water supply system and therefore
the City is prepared to approve the Pipe Line Crossing License in the form attached to this
Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the United
City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated in this Resolution as the findings of the
Corporate Authorities.

Section 2. That the Pipe Line Crossing Agreement by and between the City of Yorkville

and Illinois Railway, LLC, attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof by reference, is

Resolution No. 2025 -
Page 1



hereby approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said
License on behalf of the United City of Yorkville.

Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval as provided by law.

Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois this

day of ,A.D. 2025.

CITY CLERK
KEN KOCH DAN TRANSIER
ARDEN JOE PLOCHER CRAIG SOLING
CHRIS FUNKHOUSER MATT MAREK
RUSTY CORNEILS RUSTY HYETT

APPROVED by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois

this  dayof ,A.D.2025.

MAYOR
Attest:
CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 2025 -
Page 2



Agreement No. 410501

PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE

THIS LICENSE (“License”) shall be effective on the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective
Date”), by lllinois Railway, LLC (“Licensor”) and City of Yorkville (“Licensee”). Licensor and Licensee may
sometimes be referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:
1. TERM:

This License shall take effect as of the Effective Date, and unless sooner terminated per the terms outlined
in Section 9 and 10 of this License, shall remain in effect regardless of performance or non-performance of any of
the covenants and agreements contained in this License and regardless of any fee having been paid in advance for
any period without regard to any loss or damage incurred by either Party as a result of such termination or
cancellation. Licensor will not execute this License until it receives a signed original from Licensee, and in no event
is entry under this License permitted until Licensor returns a fully-executed copy to Licensee.

2. LOCATION:

In consideration of the license fee or other sums of money Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor, and of
the covenants and agreements of Licensee as set forth in this License, Licensor hereby grants a license and
permission to Licensee to construct, install, use, maintain, repair, relocate, operate and replace a fresh water
Pipe Line, as more particularly described in Licensee’s application, marked Exhibit “A”, attached to this License
and made a part of it by this reference, situated on, across, along or over Licensor’s property at or near the City
of Yorkville, County of Kendall, and State of lllinois (the “Premises”). The term Pipe Line shall be deemed to
mean the actual line(s) and any and all appurtenances and that portion of Licensor’s property, in so far as they
relate to said Pipe Line. The location of the Pipe Line is more particularly described on the drawing marked
Exhibit “B”, attached to this License and made a part of it by this reference, but generally described as follows:

A 9.05" (inch) ductile iron carrier fresh water Pipe Line inside 24" steel (inch) casing, crossing
Licensor’s property, located at or near Mile Post No. 49.70, as shown on Exhibit “B”.

3. LICENSE FEE:

A. Licensee shall pay to Licensor as one time License Fee the sum of four thousand four hundred dollars
(USD $4,400.00), payable in advance on or prior to the Effective Date of this License. Licensee shall pay
to Licensor any and all sales tax, if any and if applicable, which may occur as a result of the payment of
the above license or other fees payable under this License.

4. SPECIFICATIONS:
A. The Pipe Line shall be constructed, installed, used, maintained, repaired and operated in strict
accordance with any and all current requirements and specifications adopted by the American Railway

Engineering and Maintenance of Way Association, and in compliance with any and all law, statute,
regulation or order of any federal, state or municipal governmental body or any agency thereof or

410501



Agreement No. 410501

created thereby (collectively, “Laws”). Provided however, that all materials and workmanship employed
in the construction, installation, use, maintenance, repair and operation of the Pipe Line shall be subject
to the approval of the Licensor’s Chief Engineer or authorized representative.

B. An underground Pipe Line crossing under track(s) at a ninety degree (90°) angle, shall be encased in
conduit for a MINIMUM of forty-eight feet (48’), twenty-four feet (24’) on either side measured from
the centerline of the track(s) or the full width of Licensor’s property if less than forty-eight (48’) feet.
Crossings of a degree substantially greater or less than ninety degrees (90°) shall be encased in conduit
for the full width of the track structure. The top of the encasement pipe shall be a MINIMUM of five
and one half (5%’) feet beneath surface of ground at all points within Licensor’s property.

C. Any appurtenance to the Pipe Line shall be constructed and maintained to a MINIMUM clearance of no
less than fifteen (15’) feet from the centerline of any track(s). The side clearance of fifteen (15’) feet
shall be maintained for a height of twenty-seven feet (27’). All Pipe Line(s) shall be constructed, as nearly
as possible to cross under any track(s) at a right angle to said track(s).

D. Licensee shall, except in emergencies, give not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior written notice to
Licensor of the day, hour and location that it proposes to undertake any construction, installation, repair,
relocation, replacement or maintenance work to the Pipe Line or otherwise on the Premises and in the
event of an emergency shall notify Licensor as soon as possible. After completion of construction,
relocation, installation or replacement of the Pipe Line, Licensee shall be required to execute Licensor’s
standard Right of Entry for any maintenance or repair work on the Pipe Line that requires entry onto
Licensor’s property or right-of-way. The Right of Entry Permit fee shall be waived for emergency repair
and routine maintenance on the pipeline.

E. Licensee shall require each of its contractors and subcontractors to observe and conform to the
conditions and requirements specified in this License; and for the purposes of the safety, protective and
indemnification provisions of this License, such contractors and subcontractors, their agents, servants
and employees, and other persons on the Licensor property at the invitation of the Licensee, its
contractors or subcontractors, shall be deemed the agents or employees of the Licensee.

F. Licensee shall, at no expense to Licensor, obtain all permits and approvals required to exercise its rights
provided for pursuant to this License and Licensee shall install, maintain and operate its facilities in
accordance with all requirements of such permits, approvals, the Law and any lawful public authority.
Licensee shall be responsible for any taxes, assessments and charges made against the Pipe Line and the
construction or use of the Pipe Line or other of Licensee’s facilities on Licensor’s property or the
operation of any of them.

G. Licensor shall have the right, but not the duty, to furnish flagging or other protection or to perform work
to support its tracks or otherwise protect its property or facilities at any time, at Licensee’s sole risk and
expense.

5. PRESENT OCCUPATIONS:
Licensee shall make appropriate arrangements with any person or entity occupying Licensor’s property
which may be affected by the relocation, installation, construction or any maintenance or repair of the Pipe Line.

Licensee’s Pipe Line will not unreasonably interfere with the use of Licensor’s property, or create any undue
hardship on the person or entity occupying said property.
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RISK, LIABILITY, INDEMNITY:

Licensee acknowledges that persons and property on or near the Premises are in constant danger of
injury, death or destruction, incident to the operation of the railroad tracks, whether by Licensor or
others; and Licensee accepts this License subject to such dangers.

a.

LICENSEE, AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION AND AS A CONDITION WITHOUT WHICH THIS LICENSE
WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN GRANTED, AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND SAVE HARMLESS
LICENSOR, ITS PARENTS, OWNERS, AND AFFILIATES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTNERS,
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MEMBERS,
MANAGERS, AGENTS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES (THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND TO
ASSUME ALL RISK, RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR DEATH OF, OR INJURY TO, ANY
PERSONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, PATRONS,
INVITEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES, AND FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO ANY
PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THAT BELONGING TO THE PARTIES (TOGETHER
WITH ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS INCURRED OR
SUSTAINED BY THE INDEMNITEES, WHETHER IN DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DEMANDS,
ACTIONS AND CAUSES OF ACTION OR IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNIFICATION
RIGHTS CONFERRED BY THIS LICENSE) ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER
OR DEGREE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO, OR RESULTING FROM
THE GRANT OF THIS LICENSE OR THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, RENEWAL,
ALTERATION, CHANGE, RELOCATION, EXISTENCE, PRESENCE, USE, OPERATION,
REPLACEMENT, OR REMOVAL OF ANY STRUCTURE INCIDENT TO IT, OR FROM ANY ACTIVITY
CONDUCTED ON OR OCCURRENCE ORIGINATING ON THE AREA COVERED BY THE LICENSE,
INCLUDING ANY TEMPORARY USAGE AREA, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROXIMATELY CAUSED
BY THE INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OR SOLE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF THE PARTY SEEKING
INDEMNIFICATION.

THE RISKS OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS AND LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY
ASSUMED BY LICENSEE UNDER THIS LICENSE, SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO,
CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, EMPLOYEES, OR INVITEES OF EITHER OF THE PARTIES,
AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS SHALL ARISE UNDER ANY
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACT OR FEDERAL EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY ACT.

LICENSEE SHALL, AT ITS SOLE COST AND EXPENSE, JOIN IN OR ASSUME, AT THE ELECTION AND
DEMAND OF LICENSOR, THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS LICENSE. THE WORD “LICENSOR” AS USED IN THIS INDEMNITY
SECTION SHALL INCLUDE THE ASSIGNS OF LICENSOR AND ANY OTHER RAILROAD COMPANY
THAT MAY BE OPERATING UPON AND OVER THE TRACKS IN THE VICINITY OF THE PREMISES.

AS A PRECONDITION TO LICENSEE’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION,
THE INDEMNITEES WILL (i) FULLY COOPERATE WITH LICENSEE IN ANY INVESTIGATION AND
PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH ALL INFORMATION IN THE POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE
INDEMNITEES RELATING TO ANY MATTER FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES SEEK
INDEMNIFICATION, AND (ii) PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH TIMELY NOTICE OF ANY MATTER OR
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INCIDENT FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES MAY MAKE A CLAIM FOR INDEMNIFICATION BY
LICENSEE.

INSURANCE:

A. Licensee shall purchase and maintain insurance as specified below covering the License, all the work,
services, and obligations assumed or performed hereunder, from the Effective Date until termination,
unless the duration is stated to be otherwise, with insurance companies assigned a current Financial
Strength Rating of at least A and Financial Size Category of X by A. M. Best Company:

i Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to limit of
$1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander
with an annual aggregate limit of no less than $2,000,000. Policy coverage is to be based on usual
Insurance Services Office policy forms to include, but not be limited to: Operations and Premises
Liability, Completed Operations and Products Liability, Personal Injury and Advertising Liability, and
Contractual Liability Insurance. Completed Operations coverage is to be maintained for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. General Liability
policies procured by Licensee shall be amended to delete all railroad exclusions including exclusions
for working on or within fifty feet (50’) of any railroad property, and affecting any railroad bridge or
trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing (CG 24 17 endorsement or equivalent).

ii. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance providing statutory workers’
compensation benefits mandated under applicable state law and Employers’ Liability Insurance
subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident, $1,000,000
each employee for bodily injury by disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease.
If coverage is provided through a monopolistic state fund, a stop gap endorsement on either the
Commercial General Liability or Workers’ Compensation Policy is required to meet the Employers’
Liability Insurance requirement.

iii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Policy coverage shall be based on Insurance Services Office
policy forms referred to as Business Automobile Policy to cover motor vehicles owned, leased,
rented, hired or used on behalf of Licensee. If applicable to this License and applicable under federal
law, Licensee shall provide an MCS 90 endorsement.

iv. Umbrella Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to a limit of $4,000,000 each
occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander. Policy coverage
is to be at least as broad as primary coverages. Umbrella coverage is to be maintained for a period
of not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. Umbrella
Liability shall apply to Commercial General Liability, Employers’ Liability, and Business Automobile
Liability Insurances.

The required limits of insurance may be satisfied by a combination of Primary and Umbrella or Excess
Liability Insurance.

B. Allinsurance required of Licensee with the exception of Workers” Compensation and Employers’ Liability
shall include Licensor and any subsidiary, owner, parent or affiliates of Licensor, and their respective
partners, successors, assigns, legal representatives, officers, directors, members, managers, agents,
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shareholders, and employees (“Required Parties”) as additional insured and include wording which
states that the insurance shall be primary and not excess over or contributory with any insurance carried
by Licensor and its affiliates. With respect to Commercial General Liability Insurance, Required Parties
shall be included as additional insured for Ongoing Operations and for Completed Operations to the
extent permitted by law.

All insurance shall provide Licensor a minimum of thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of insurer’s
intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage.

If Licensee cannot obtain an occurrence based policy for any required coverage, the policy may be
written on a claims-made basis with a retroactive date on or before the Effective Date of this License.
Licensee shall maintain such policy on a continuous basis. If there is a change in insurance companies
or the policy is canceled or not renewed, Licensee shall purchase an extended reporting period of not
less than three (3) years after the License termination date.

Licensee shall file with Licensor on or before the Effective Date of this License a valid certificate of
insurance for all required insurance policies. Each certificate shall identify the Required Parties as
additional insured as required and state that Licensor shall receive a minimum of thirty (30) days’
advance written notice of insurer’s intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage. Licensee
shall supply updated certificates of insurance that clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in
the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as required by this License.

All insurance policies required of Licensee shall include a waiver of any right of subrogation written in
favor of the Required Parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee may self-insure for any of the above required insurance
coverages subject to the requirements specified in this paragraph. Licensee shall provide Licensor with
audited financial statements and Licensor may, at its discretion, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, deem such financial statements acceptable prior to authorizing Licensee to self-insure.
Licensee shall provide a letter of self-insurance to Licensor specifically stating which lines of coverage
are self-insured and the amount of self-insurance maintained. The amount of any excess insurance that
attaches to self-insurance below the required limits of insurance shall be identified in the letter and
evidenced on a certificate of insurance. This letter of self-insurance shall be signed by Licensee’s Risk
Manager or another designated authorized signatory. With respect to Workers’ Compensation, Licensee
shall also provide state-issued self-insured authorization documents to Licensor, where applicable by
state law.

Licensee represents that this License has been thoroughly reviewed by Licensee’s insurance agent or
broker who have been instructed by Licensee to procure the insurance coverage required by this License.
Upon signature of this License and renewal of insurance, if Licensee fails to maintain or provide evidence
to Licensor of any insurance coverage required under this License, Licensor may terminate this License
effective immediately.

Licensee’s compliance with obtaining the required insurance coverage shall in no way limit the
indemnification rights and obligations specified in this License.

WAIVER:
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Licensee waives the right to question the validity of this License or any of the terms and provisions of it,
or the right or power of Licensor to execute and enforce this License. This License is made without covenant on
the part of Licensor to warrant its title to the property involved with the Pipe Line, or to give or to defend
Licensee in the peaceful possession of the property and Licensee shall waive all right to claim damages in the
event Licensee shall be evicted, ejected or required to surrender possession of the property by anyone owning
or claiming title to or any interest in the property, or by reason of failure of title of Licensor, or for any other
cause whatsoever. Licensee further agrees to indemnify and save harmless Licensor and to assume all risk,
responsibility and liability (including any expenses, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred or sustained by Licensor)
arising from, growing out of, or in any manner or degree directly or indirectly attributable to or resulting from
any deficiency or insufficiency of Licensor’s title affecting the right of Licensor to make this grant.

9. REPAIRS AND RELOCATION:

A. Licensee will at all times maintain the Pipe Line in a safe and secure manner and in a condition
satisfactory to Licensor. Licensor may request Licensee to change the location of the Pipe Line, or any
part of it, or to make reasonable repairs or changes as the judgment of Licensor deems necessary in
order to avoid interference with or danger in the use or operation of Licensor’s railroad, or any of its
present or future appurtenances. In the event itis desired by Licensor to use its property or any portion
of it, occupied or impacted by the Pipe Line, then Licensee shall, at its sole expense, and within thirty
(30) days after notice from Licensor to do so, (or on shorter notice in case of an emergency), make
changes to the Pipe Line as required or remove the Pipe Line, or as much of the Pipe Line as is located
upon the portion of the property as required by Licensor.

B. If Licensee shall fail to perform any of its obligations contained in this License as to the maintenance of
safe conditions in and about the Pipe Line or to make any necessary repairs, or to relocate the Pipe Line,
then Licensor may cause such condition to be made safe, or change of location to be made, or repairs
to be made, or Pipe Line to be removed from Licensor’s property. Licensor acting as the agent of
Licensee, may perform such work as is necessary in the judgment of Licensor, and Licensee shall, on
demand, promptly reimburse Licensor the cost of the work, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the cost as a
charge for the supervision, accounting, and use of tools; or Licensor may terminate this License by giving
Licensee not less than ten (10) days advance written notice of its intention to do so.

C. Incase Licensor shall at any time, or from time to time, require the removal of only a portion of the Pipe
Line, this License shall continue in force and be applicable to the portion or portions of the Pipe Line
remaining from time to time until the entire Pipe Line has been removed and the License Fees or other
fees payable under this License shall be adjusted accordingly.

10. TERMINATON:

If Licensee fails to keep or perform any of Licensee’s covenants contained in this License, upon ninety
(90) days written notice to Licensee and an opportunity to cure with such cure being completed within such
ninety (90) day period or if such cure cannot be completed within ninety (90) days, in such time as necessary so
long as Licensee is diligently pursuing such cure and in no event longer than one hundred eighty (180) days,
Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License.

In addition to the foregoing, Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License and the rights granted

hereunder, after delivering to Licensee written notice of such termination no less than ninety (90) days prior to
each anniversary of the effective date thereof, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

410501
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o

If Licensee shall permanently discontinue the use of operations of the Pipe Line; or

b. If Licensor shall be required by any change in applicable Federal law after the Effective Date to
remove, relocate, reconstruct, or discontinue operation of Licensor’s railroad and any such
removal, relocation, reconstruction, or discontinuance of operation of Licensor’s railroad
cannot be accomplished without removal of the Pipeline; or

C. If Licensor determines and substantiates to Licensee that the Pipe Line endangers or threatens

Licensor’s employees or the safe operation or maintenance of the railroad.

RESTORATION:

Upon termination of this License, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of this License,

Licensee shall promptly remove the Pipe Line from Licensor’s property, and restore the property to its prior
condition, or a condition satisfactory to Licensor. If Licensee fails to remove the Pipe Line within ninety days
(90) after termination of this License, Licensor may remove same, and charge the expense of such removal to
the Licensee on the basis provided in Section 9.B of this License.

12.

410501

MISCELLANEOUS:

This License is executed by all Parties under current interpretation of any and all applicable Laws.
Further, each and every separate division (paragraph, clause, item, term, condition, covenant or
agreement) contained in this License shall have independent and severable status from each other
separate division, or combination of them, for the determination of legality, so that if any separate
division is determined to be unconstitutional, illegal, violative of trade or commerce, in contravention
of public policy, void, voidable, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, that separate division shall be
treated as a nullity, but such holding or determination shall have no effect upon the validity or
enforceability of each and every other separate division or any other combination of them.

In the event this License is part of a package of agreements for Licensee, this License and all other such
documents shall be read as compatible parts of the package and not in contradiction to each other, such
that in the event of apparent conflict in any duties under this License or the package of agreements,
Licensor shall designate which clause(s) shall survive or control any others.

Except as otherwise specified in this License, any notice or other communication required or permitted
by this License shall be in writing and (i) delivered by first class mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) deposited
into the custody of a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, as follows:

If to Licensor: If to Licensee:

lllinois Railway, LLC

ATTN: Real Estate ATTN: City of Yorkville
252 Clayton Street, 4™ Floor 651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Denver, Colorado 80206 Yorkville, IL 60560

Phone: (630) 770-9915
WITH A COPY TO:
ATTN: General Counsel
252 Clayton Street, 4th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80206
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No oral promises, oral agreements, or oral warranties shall be deemed a part of this License, nor shall
any alteration, amendment, supplement or waiver of any of the provisions of this License be binding
upon either Party, unless same be supplemented, altered, changed or amended by an instrument in
writing, signed by Licensor and Licensee.

This License is made subject to the rights previously or simultaneously granted by or through Licensor
for any surface, sub-surface or aerial uses antedating this License, including but not limited to, the
construction, maintenance, operation, renewal and/or relocation of fences, pipelines, communication
lines, power lines, railroad tracks and signals, and any and all appurtenances applicable to them.
Licensor excepts and reserves the right to grant additional uses of the same or similar nature subsequent
to the execution of this License, without payment of any sum for damages, so long as such use does not
unreasonably interfere with the use of Pipe Line by Licensee.

This License and all of the provisions contained in it shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and Licensee agrees to supply notice in writing to
Licensor of any name changes. Notwithstanding the forgoing, Licensee agrees not to assign this License
or any rights or privileges granted under it, without the prior written consent of Licensor, which it may
give at its sole discretion, and any and every attempted assignment without prior written consent shall
be void and of no effect. This covenant shall also apply whether any of the foregoing is made voluntarily
by Licensee or involuntarily in any proceeding at law or in equity to which Licensee may be a party,
whereby any of the rights, duties and obligations of License may be sold, transferred, conveyed,
encumbered, abrogated or in any manner altered without the prior notice to and consent of Licensor.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall remain liable to Licensor as a guarantor of Licensee’s
successor in interest to this License.

Nothing in this License shall be construed to place any responsibility on Licensor for the quality of the
construction, maintenance or other work performed on behalf of Licensee hereunder or for the
condition of any Licensee’s facilities.

Any approval given or supervision exercised by Licensor under this License, or failure of Licensor to
object to any work done, material used or method of construction, reconstruction or maintenance, shall
not be construed to relieve Licensee of its obligations under this License.

The failure of the Licensor to seek redress for any violation of or to insist upon the strict performance of
any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this License or any of the rules and regulations from time
to time issued by the Licensor, shall not prevent a subsequent act, which would have originally
constituted a violation, from having all of the force and effect of an original violation.

Licensee further indemnifies Licensor against any and all liens that may be placed against Licensor’s
property in the course of construction of this crossing, and agrees to immediately satisfy any liens so
placed.

In the event that Licensor shall incur any costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees and costs, in
enforcing Licensee’s covenants and agreements under this License, Licensee shall reimburse Licensor
for all such costs, expenses and legal fees as an additional fee under this License.

This License shall be governed under the laws of the State of Illinois, and venue shall be proper in the
federal or state courts of the State of lllinois for any action arising under the terms of this License or
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performance of it. The section headings of this License have been inserted for convenience of reference
only and they shall not be referred to in the interpretation of this License. This License shall be read
with all changes of gender and number required by the context. Time shall be of the essence in this
License and each of the provisions of it.

. Licensor’s remedies under this License shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any remedy shall not

preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

All of the obligations, representations and warranties of the Licensee accruing under this License during
the existence of this License or any renewal or extension of it shall survive the termination or expiration
of the Term.

Licensor shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, delay or non-performance caused by accidents,
labor difficulties, acts of God, governmental action or by any other cause which is unavoidable or beyond

its reasonable control.

Licensee agrees that it shall not register this License or any notice or reference in respect of this License
against title.

All exhibits attached to this License are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth in this License.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License as of the last date of execution set forth below:

Licensor: lllinois Railway, LLC Licensee: City of Yorkville
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

410501
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Exhibit A

®
POWERED BY RAIL & REAL ESTATE

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

|:| Check the box if this is a RUSH application. Add $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD) in addition to the application fee listed

below.

PIPELINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS

Proposed plans must be approved by the railroad and a crossing agreement must be fully executed between the railroad
and the applicant before construction can begin. Material and installation are to be in strict accordance with specifications of
the American Railway Engineering Association and requirements of the railroad. One original of this form shall be submitted,
accompanied by letter- sized Engineer Stamped Plans, elevation section of crossing from field survey, location in respect to Mile
Post, width of railroad right of way, location of adjacent structures that may impede the crossing, and all information
required in Figures 1 and 2 of AREMA Specifications, Part 5. If open cutting or tunneling is necessary, details of sheeting and
method of supporting tracks or driving tunnel shall be shown.

Provide location (i.e. address, city, street, railroad milepost} and engineer stamped plans of the proposed leased premises with
dimensions, coordinates and directions. Also depict any planned improvements on the leased premises with dimensions from

nearest track (may incur additional costs or agreements for above ground occupancy). In addition, annual fees will be assessed
pursuant to awritten lease agreement. Please return the completed application, proposed plans indicating the location of the
pipe, and a check for the non-refundable fee of $6,000 USD {$7,611 CAD).

Make check(s) payable to: OmniTRAX Inc.
C/O AR Real Estate Department
252 Clayton Street, 4 Floor
Denver, CO 80206

If the application is approved, the applicant agrees to reimburse property owner for any cost incurred by property owner
incident to installation, maintenance, and/or supervision necessitated by this installation and further agrees to assume all
liability for accidents or injuries which arise as a result of this installation as provided in the agreement to be executed.

Incomplete applications may result in processing delays. Applications submitted without the required fees will not be processed.

Please note, if the submitted appliication and prints require review by any independent environmental (HAZMAT) or other
outside consultants, this review will be at applicant’s sole cost and in addition to the aforementioned fees.

***Canadian residents/businesses, this fee is a taxable supply, please include applicable GST***

STANDARD APPLICATION PROCESS 1S 60 DAYS. REQUESTS FOR RUSH SERVICE: Once a COMPLETE application and required
fees are received, including the rush fee of $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD), a draft agreement will be made available for
review within twenty one {21) business days. Please be sure to mark the box above.

Once an executable agreement is submitted to you, the license must be fully negotiated and executed within thirty (30)
days. Thereafter, the application and materials will be archived and resubmission {including fees) will be required.

S§S
PLEASE INITIAL HERE INDICATING YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THIS POLICY:
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Omm'lw( APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

If you have not reviewed the Railroad’s Utility Accommodaticn Policy, please contact our Real Estate office at
omnitrax.real.estate@omnitrax.com or 303.398.0441 to receive a copy prior to submittal of this application

SECTION 1:

1. Complete Legal Name of Applicant: _Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

2. Agreementto be in the name of (if different fromabove): _United City of Yorkville

3. Type of Entity (please mark one): Corporation____LLC____Individual__Municipality X __
Partnership___ General____ Limited___ Other

4. If applicable, state/province of incorporation ororganization: _ Yorkville, IL

5. Federal Tax Identification number (U.S. Leases):

6. Mailing Address: _651 Prairie Pointe Dr, Yorkville, IL 60560

7. Overnight Delivery Service Address (if different):

8. Contact Person;_Sydney Shaffer Title: Project Engineer

9. PhoneNo.: [ 630 ) 466 -6763 Fax No.: (630 ) 466 - 6701

10. Email: _sshaffer@eeiweb.com
11. Email Address Where Notices Can be Sentto: sshaffer@eeiweb.com
12. Billing Contact Name, Phone Number, and Address Required:

Sydney Shaffer 630-466-6763

52 Wheeler Rd. Sugar Grove, IL 60554

13. Railroad Name: _lllinois Railway
Nearest Milepost:__IR: 50 DOT No.: _ 065028W

Track Station {from): Track Station (to):

Property Address REQUIRED:

202 S Bridge St Yorkville, IL 60560

Section:___ 33 Township: 37N Range: 7E
City:_Yorkville County:__Kendall State: IL
Geographical Coordinates Required
Latitude: __41.64212 Longitude: -88.44665
Located on the (N/S/E/W) E side of {landmark, intersection)

S Bridge St and E Hydraulic Ave

SECTION 2:

All specifications meet or exceed Railroad’s Utility Accommaodation Policy INITIAL HERE:

OR Variance requested—PLEASE DESCRIBE IN DETAIL (attach separate sheet if necessary):
See attached variance letter.

¢ Temporary track support or rewrapping required? ( ) Yes )} No If yes, please describe:
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°m"""“y( APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

*  Wires, poles, obstructions to be relocated? { ) Yes ¥} No If yes, please describe

¢  Product to be conveyed: Water

*  Flammable? ( }Yes ) No Temp

e Max. WorkingPressure; 70 PSI. Field Test Pressure____150 PSI.

Typetest: 2 Hour 150psi Pressure Test as described in Section 41-2.14 of the Standard Specifications for Water
and Sewer Construction in lllincis
¢ Location of shut-off valve:_27 ft south and 27 ft northwest of the railroad crossing at E Hydraluic Ave and East Alley

s  PIPE SPECIFICATIONS:

CARRIER PIPE CASING PIPE

Material Ductile Iron Steel
Material Specificationsand Grade ANSI/AWWA A21 51/C151 CLASS 52  ASTM A139 (ANSI B36.10); Grade B
Min. Yield Strength of Mat. PSI 42,000 35,000
Mill Test PressurePSI 500 2,800
Inside Diameter 8in. 15.25 in.
Wall Thickness 0.33in. 0.219in.
Outside Diameter 9.05in. 16in.
Type of Seam
Laying Lengths 20 ft 20 ft
Kind ofJoints Mechanical Welded
Total Length within RR R/O/W 50 ft 50 ft

VENTS: # 0 Size Ht. above ground

SEALS: Bothends X __Oneend BURY: Base of rail to top of casing 5 ft.Lin.

BURY (Not beneathtracks):ift. 6 __in. BURY (Roadway pipe): 5 ft. 6 in.

CATHODIC PROTECTION: (X} Yes ( }No
PROTECTIVE COATING: (X) Yes { } No Kind: Bituminous
Type, size, and spacing of insulators or supports;_2.5", Cascade Stainless Steel casing Spacers, Every 10’

¢+ Method ofInstallation: Dry Jacking and Boring
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(Jm.nl'l'l!y(O

ettt APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

By submitting this application for credit, you authorize OmniTRAX or affiliate, to make any inquiries necessary to deterrmine credit worthiness. You
release your banking instruction release details that would assist to determine creditworthiness.

1 hereby certify that the information contained herein is complete and accurate. This information has been furnished with the understanding that it is
to be used to determine the amount and conditions of the credit to be extended. Furthermore, T hereby authorize the financial institutions listed in this
credit application to release necessary information to the company for which credit is being applied for in order to verify the information contained
herein. Our terms of sale and service are NET 30 DAYS from the date listed on the invoice. Invoices that are beyond granted terms will be
assessed a late fee of 18% APR (1.5% monthly) additional Terms and Conditions apply. A $20.00 charge will apply for any NSF/Non-Sufficient
Checks.

Date: 3/31/25

Signature: ’SW"%%%

Name Printed: __ Sydney Shaffer

Title: Project Engineer

Phone No.: 630-466-6763

e Fli: 630-466-6701

BE SURE TO RETURN THE COVER SHEET WITH YOUR APPLICATION
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IMPROVEMENT PLANS

EAST ALLEY WATER MAIN
IMPROVEMENTS

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
IEPA PERMIT SUBMITTAL: MARCH 2025
BID ISSUE: MAY 2026

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE OFFICIALS INDEX OF SHEETS
JOHN PURCELL MAYCR 1. COVER SHEET
2-3. GENERAL NOTES AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIICATIONS
JORI BEHLAND CITY CLERK SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES AND LEGEND
! 4 EAST ALLEY PLAN AND PROFILE
BART OLSON CITY ADMINISTRATCR STA 10+00 TO STA 14400
6=7. TYPICAL DETALS
ERIC DHUSE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS
CHRIS FUNKHOUSER ALDERMAN
KEN KQCH ALDERMAN
MATT MAREK ALDERMAN
RUSTY CORNEILS ALDERMAN
ARDEN JOE PLOCHER ALDERMAN
CRAIG SOLING AL DERMAN
RUSTY HYETT ALDERMAN
DANIEL V. TRANSIER ALDERMAN
LOCATION MAP
N.T.S.
LLENL
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
Call 651 PRAIRIE POINTE DRIVE
Before SITE REFERENCE MARK 1 YORKVILLE, IL 60560
You Dig NORTHEAST BOLT COVER ON THE TRAFFIS LIGHT 3ASE §30-553-4350

AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF AN EMMON ST AND
47

ELEVATION = 585,30

7 ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION
¢ | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THESE PLANS WERE PREPARED
SITE REFERENCE MARK 2 ;gﬁ&"‘xw." UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISIH,

TR

e

AR LI TR T

ILLINOIS RAILRDAD SPIKE IN THE SOUTHWEST SIDE 07 THE . h ) DATED AT SUGAR BROVE, ILLINGIS,
ONE-GALL SYSTEM UTILITY FOLE AT THE ENTRANCE TO BOE'S BEST SERTIC Engineering Enterprises, Inc. waen
ELEVATION = 58481 Consulting Engineers THIE __10TH DAY OF 2025.

T

Simply Call 811 G Domcss el

Sugar Grove, lllinals 60E54 VERGHICA, HALL PE.
i ILLINOIS LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 052-052961
630.466.6700 / www.eiweb.Com EXPIRATION DATE: 11/30,/25
PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM # 184-002003 REVISIGNS
s cen 0 s s TR, e

TOSOTY "ON 1usWaa.3y
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ZENERAL NOTES AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

THE “STANDARD SPECKICATONS S0R ROAD AW BRIDGE SCNSTRUCTION ADCRTED MANUARY 1, 2093,

THE "STANDARD SPECRICATONS “0R WATER AND SEWER WAN CONSTRUCTION N ILLINGIS', ssvsuw

IDINGN, DATED 3014, AND REVISIONS THERETD, THESE MPRDVEMENT PLANS AND DETAILS, SPECIAL
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SEFORe DML TN GEOMG - MY SLALL B RESPOHGBLE FOR AMY DAACE T THE ©
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-
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oy FEDERAL,
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CT TUE COST AMD TUE OF COMRLETION OF

THis PROJECT BEFORE SUEMITING &
iR

-

SRICR 70 SUBMITING THER BID, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL THE A“TENTION OF THE ENGMEER TO
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WDRK THAT IS S40WN ON THE PLANS TO B PERFORMED BY THE GONTRACTOR, FOR WHICH THEFS IS
NO 24T ITEW, SHALL BE CONSIOERED INCIDENTAL TD THE COST GF THE PROJEGT.

UNDERGROE CONTRACTER SHALL BE RESPONSIELE 10 PLACE trl GRADE AMD CEORDINATE ¥iTh

T T ATt hAEUNC STTORE P Soa 15 Ghich A, pmEs,

AAHOLES, HYGRANTE. BLFTALS BOs VAILVES, Cc, I Tl Sl b pa
AT T SiaL L BE FONCCRED NEATENTLL T DER- TS O COSTACH

o

CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ANY AREA DISIURGED To A COMDITION ECUAL TO 0F EETER T
ORIGNAL USE  THIS SFalL NGLUGE FINISH ERAGING, ESTABUISHMENT OF A VEGETATE DGVEE
(N R i, Cemeh ALE AP s PAVENERT BEF AEMERT

THE SONMACTOR SUALL BE RESSONSIELE FOR PROMANS SafE D EALTHRL HORKHG CONPIToNS
THROUGHEUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SROPOSED WPRO

-

U ENGINEER WL BE BIVEN FORTY S0H (40) HOURS HOTE FOR MY, STAKNG TUAT IS 10 BE
JoNE, OUS [TEMS DF WORK COMERED BY THIS CONTRACT WILL BE STAKED ONCE.
ADDITONAL STokm FLaIRED DU T THE. LICESE OF THE DORTRACICR SIALL 6 BAlD o &Y
THE CONTRACTOR AT THE GURRENT HOURLY RATE,

v

H

HE CONTRASTOR SHALL INFORM THE ENGMEER BEFORE WORIC GIMMENGES O EACH CATEQDRY OF
CONSTRUCTION, | £ WATER WAIN, GRADSG, PAVEENT AND DRAINAGE IMFROUE)

28 TOUR, NOGE SHALL B GHER FOE ANY TTEM 147 REGUNES FINAL TESTING NG NEPECTIH
EUCH S CONCRETE WORK, PAVING, WATER MAINS OR SANITART SEWERS.

THE ENGINEER SHALL FEPLACE AL, LOT IRCNS DAMACED O REVOUED JURIG CONSTRUCTION OF THS
SROJEET AND THE GONTRACTOR GHALL PAY SARD COST OF R

H

SEFORE ACCEFTANCE 3Y THE CITY AND FINAL PAYMENT, ALL WRK S-ALL BE INSFECTED AMD
SPEROVED By TIE ENGNEER | AAL PATLENT SHALL B ADE AFTER AL BF THE SONTRACTOR'S
WORK HAS BEEM APPROVED AND ACCEP

THE CONTRACTOR WILL HAVE N THER FCESESSON QN THE JOB ST & CORY OF THE RLAKS AND
SPECICATIONS DURINE CONSTRUCTIC.

=

2

F_ANY APPROYED ECUAL ITEMS ARE REGLIRED, THE GONTRAGTOR SHALL GONTAGE THE ENGINEER FOR
APPROVAL.

4l DA MID/0R FELD TILE ENCOUNTERED BY THE CONTRACICR DURHC THE INSTALLATION OF THE
0 CHIGNAL GONDITIGN. | T4IS WORK SALL BE GO
HCInes TaL T THE TONTRAGT

G

AL RDAT SIHS, STREET SGHS AND TRAFFIE SIGE WHICH NEED TD BE RELOCATED 0 MOVED DLE
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SDON AS THE STE IWPROVEMENTS ARE COMPLETER. #NY CHANGE. IN LEWGTH.
ALIGHMENT SHiL BE SHOWN IN RED.

THE CRNTRACTOR 15 RECONYELE FOR CORROINATIG AT REQURED ISFESTIONS: OF CBSERVATONS
T THE ENGINEER AND/OR UNITER SITY QF YORKYALLE.
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THE ENGINEER AND CITY ARE NOT RESONSIBLE FOR THE GONSTRU
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23, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT THE WATER AN TO AVOID GONFLGTS WITH THE CHSTING WATER
AND SANITARY SERVEES.

24, THE COMIRACTOR SHALL GONREM DERTHS D LOCATIONS OF EXISTINC LTLIMES A0, SERVCES PFICR
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ADMISTWENTS OF THE B-BOXES SHALL BE CONSIDERED NGIDENTAL T THE WATER MAN OR WATER

SERVICE CONSTRUCTION.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE REASONABLE EFFORTS TO PROTECT SDEWALK AND QURE AND EUTIER
THAT 12 NOT DIRECTLY WPACTED BY THE WATER WAM TRENCH. “SIDEWALK AND CURB: AND GUTIER
2ok DUHG SORSTEICTION WL BE REVOYED D RarLice) 18 DEENED HEcetaiRy o The
GITY AND ENGINEER, ANY UNNZCETSARLY SIDEWAUS A CLRE AND GUTTER WL EE
SERLAeD ‘AT W Bre TRACTORS EXFENDE

ros o gie conr

ST

27. BITUMINOUE PAYENENT DVER T-E UTLITY TRENCH SHALL BE S4WCUT BEFORE EXGAVATIN AMD SMKUT PSR To
PATHNG To LEAE & EAT LNE PO PARUGN TGl (REIDENTAL, UAX FATWOIT WO MR PN
REMEVAL SAL B CWHIG GHART, AN PAVELENT REMOVAL ERYOND THESE LIuIcS SHALL
T AR PrORE
MAX PAY WOTH FOR. PAELIENT REMQVAL, FUAL CEPTH
PIPE MAX PAYEMENT
BAY HOm
SRvEE
g
o
&
a
r

38 ALL A4 TRENCH BACKILL S4AL BE COWPACTED 1o 05K STAMDARD PROCTOR N MANLUM 12° UFTS USNG
MHJAL EQUPWENT, ALL NCH-STRUCTURAL BACKPLL SHML 3 COMPACTES T ESE STWIARD FROCTOR USNG
MAWIAL EQUPWENT, NO SETTLING WLL DF ALLOWED SEE NOTE 15 I THE WATER WAN CONSTRUGTION HOTES.

20, BEUONR PER “STANDARD SPEFICATIONS FIT WATER 4N SEWER WAM DOHSTRUGTION M ILLIWES® SHALL S5
PROVDED MR ALL KATER WAM RERAROLESS OF T LOCATON O THE TRENCH.

30. AL SIODNG & BACKTLL o5 INGDENTAL T0 THE COST ITEW BENG INSTALLED,  BECONS AKD BACKFIL. MATEHAl
WL NOT BE WEASIRED iR PATHENT

SN 0T B 02 € WATER WA REUIGED 10 COUPLLTE TE COECTIN TO W EXSTNG WATER KA (L2, SETWEEN
25 G, TIE DG CTIN Dt AL 55 CNSRSHED NGBRNTAL T0 1
JonnEErR TS BTN £ O o

3. PRICR 10 DS ToR Sl INSTAL INLET LTI 0K ALL AFEN LID PAVELENT
L A Son8, MLETs THBUTARY 7o THE CONSTRLIC TN ARE N ACCERD e WTE e AectAL
PROISCHS AND OETALS.

35, ALL PESHENTS AND USINESSES SHALL BE KOTFIER A MINMUM 07 45 HOURS PRIDY T0 SHUTING DOWN THER
ATER SIIVICE AND GANEWAY REMEVA

4 PR 10 T START SF GORSTRUTTON, TIE CONTRATOR 40 CHCIEER SHAL RWENGRY T LI, SZE,
TIPS 80 COURIGH O AL SRSTIG SRS 44 S04 CALAGED DU CONSIRLTIR SHaLL B R
THE BN TRACTD

36 ALL SONS SuALL BE ERESTED M ETRIST ECWFORMANCE WITH SECTIOH 780 OF 1€ STAMDARD SPECIFCATIONS AN
BY STATE FREQLALINND CONTRACOR PERSCHHEL SUCH AS A SUBCORTRACTOR THAT SIECWLDES IN TRAFIC
AHD SIH PLACDAENT. D ENSURE THIE CPERATION 15 PERFRS RECTLY THERE WLL B 4
WALKTHROUT DY THE 408 WTH THE ENGHEER A% PART OF THE GWERALL PUNGH LT,

36 AL YRRKC INVLWTEG SIS AL BE SVTRNER BY THE FOLLORRI SEURENENTS:
A, GNS SHALL MOT BE UDVED UNTIL PROGRESS OF WORK NECESSTATES IT.

B THE CONTRAGTOR WL B RECARED T2 TEWPORARILY RESET AL SIBSS THAT INTERFERE WTH THER

SURNG CXITSTRUGTON CPEATIONS: | M. SUGH & s WWeT B WA HTRINED STEASHT A0 Can

s
FoR THE
GURATION OF THE TEVFORART SETTHG. T S MuST bRty Coton 1

c 315 SHAL BE MSTALLED GR PELOCKTED 14 PERMMMENT LICATCHS AS SHIWY 0N THE BLAKS ONEE
ok ROtmwaT 1 COUPLEVD. TG WO SHALL Be. PA TOR LS T AP Te Pt 1

B, AL FEMIWED SON5 WL BE FETURNED 0 THE GITY, AS AFFLEBLE.

B LCraOm GOSTS ay BE REQURED AT TEPORSRT OR PERWANENT St LOCATONS 1 MNTAR] PR0PER S
i

117 s e e conmaconts e TAN EASTHG BN CONDITIENS PRIOR To BIBNNS OH
S PRGUET 43 AR CRPEIA N WE. B ALLARED. P EALIE 3 Y EE e IENBONS o8

36, THE GINTRACTOR SHALL MANTAN EXISTING SIDE STREET ACCFSS, DOETRK: DANEWAY KIDEES AMD FEDESTRAN
SoreE e a0 o ey L AL S CURNG OHSTRUETEN €F T PROEGT, [NES SR Rt
W

[P Shefue o7 FORvaL T & NCTeD O T PAe SO I E0at soepoaTons, o 4
£ UG 5L OC NCLUGED M FIL GOT O TIC VTEW 0ONG NOMOVD.

40, THE CONTRARTOR SHALL BF RESFONSELE DR FROECTING FRES- OONCRETE Fiok DAMATE AND VANDALISH, AT
DARAZED OF VAUDALIED SONCRETE SHALL B REWOVED 4D REFLWED AT T-E CONTAGTOR' EVFEVSE.

SHATL E RO 10 WAke ANGELENTS [0 T PACECY SuaNG, STORC A ovien
ATE, STAUCTUAES, POLES, CABES A PPE LIES, BUFDTE CnETILCTN
LL'VOR ey NAGE 19 I STREETE Gt WALHATS AnD
{E it HEPAIES 28 NECESARY T0 TR SATCEACHON o THE EHGNEER: 4D
NG AND/OR. SHOR NG USED FOR THIS IWPROVZMENT SHALL

3
T AT THER GWKi EXPENSE, RMY SHEET)
5

= ADIIR SHALL PROTECT AU ENSTIN (EC. CURR, SHEWALK, PAVENENT) THAT ASE WOT
CALLEG LT T2 BE FEMUED O THE PR At ATLITE AT E. BAUEED DU LENGTRLCT SHLL B
RESTORAED T0 4 GOKDNIOH EQUAL 10 THAT EETIG CEFORE THE DAMACE GECURRED.

45 WHIKE NEW WORK NEETS DUSTING FEATURES TD REMAMN, THE CONTRACTIR SHALL FELD CHECK ML DIMEMSIONS.
2D FLEYATONS SEFORE FAGCXEDNG WITH COSTRUCTRN.  WMEDIATELY NGTIY THE EMGNER 1 AKY
DISCREPANGES.

a4 HE CONRACTE it BE RECUIRED 10 GwPLY WIT sl STATE FEOLLATIONS AEGARENRS AR, WATER AD HORE
PR, THE CENTRACTOR 15 PAG-BITED FACH SURNIG AYY WATERAL WTHN O ADJRCERT 10 THE

A5 ALL TYPE | AND § BASRIGADES 5-ALL BE WEIGHTED DI TH THG SANIEATS EACHL (ONE WEIGHTED SMDBAD

ACRUSS EAGH BUTTIM RAILL AL TIFE Il DARRIGADES. SHALL FERUIRE FOUR SANIBACS EAEL
% AL ommRED wes

CHSTING. BTORE TIE DAMAGE INEUTRLD AT THE COST o X CO

[P T T S Do or ST SGERA, R A G Pauient A AL 0T B
TERA 0T 1O SASACE AT TMER PSS AL ERESS SIGAVATED MATCRAL NOT Ft SALTAGE AL B
HALLING ek TREKRG TO biSPesaL LOGATONS.

[2 RELOGATED WAILBOKES To HE INSTALLED SUCH THAT FAGE OF BOX AND BOX HEKHT WEET AL LOGAL AND
FEDEFAL GURELNES.

WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION

1 AL WATER WA EONSTRUETCN SHALL BE (N ATCORDANCE W T “STANLABD SPECFICATINS FOR WATER i
SEAER WA CONSTRLETCH I LLINYSS, LATEST DTN, AND REVISIONS THER NOTES 4HD DN THE PLANS,
AND 1N AGEDROANCE WTH COOES #HD DRINNSNEES OF THE UMIED: GITY 0F YORKALLE, KLINDIS

2 AL WATER WAl SHAIL B BUGTLE 11OH, PP CLASS 52 M VEQAMCAL GR Bt SINTS AU SHALL

conram 7 1AW CISEL AUl 2139 (AW CTEG) W A1 AZLTT (AW CITR IS L B

ST W e et

3 AL FITINSG S B CUETLE 0 e SHAL WA Th M1 ARLS3 G4RA G163} FITIGS

& SHAIL B MANUFAGTURED W THE. UNIED STATES
AL PPE AND FITTINGS SHALL HE CEMENT LINED IN ACOORDANE WTH WHSI AZ0.4 (AWHA CIO83.

ALL FITINGS SHALL BE NECHANIGAL JDINT 4D INSTALLED W~ RETARER: CLANDS VWLESS OTERHITE DIOWN D4
e Frawios

o

6 ALL MECHANCAL JONT AITIFGS. VALWES A0 MYDRANTS SralL BE RESTRANED WTH RETAINEN GLANDS. AETANER
R L e T et S 700 o8 ARPRED BSRL

' ALL WATER WAIN AHD FITTINGE SHALL BE WRAFPETH WITH POLYETHY_ENE, POLTETHYLENE SHALL HAVE A THICKMESS

OF G-ML IN SCOIRDANCE WTH HGI AT 5 (AWOA CI053

& ETHER HORIZONTAL O WERTGAL MAY B LAD MTH STANDATD PIPE BY CEMLECTKNS AT
mz LGNS, WAL CEFLECTETES A PIPE JONTS ST LATNS SRS, F3R THE YATKL PIE Lo e SHal b
N ACCORGANE Ak CEDU. W FAIBEER: GASKET PIPE IS LUD ON A CURVE, THE PIPE SHALL B8 JSITEC

A R DT S T LIRS 0 e ks ALSwAT - THERCHEE SHAL 5o BADE WEES

O BURYES FoR THIS FURFOSE,

9 AL GATE VALVES AU BE FESLITNT WEDGE TYEE CONFORMING M) 41 CSIS AHD HAVE & HOV=RISNG STEW.

10 WG Ch LnCen S, 2 LS v val e EE BTG IN vALvE
VALLTE GR &' CAST Reh ALk "SR B CLATE, CUNEE 0f PAVEINT ALEySR SOLRALKE. ¥
TR NI R R En T D L N AR

10, ALL VALVES 16-INCHES: O LARGER SHALL BE BUTTERFLY VALYES WTH & NON-FISMG STEM. SHALL HA
STANDIRD CRERATTNG MUT D SHALL DSEN I & COUNTER-CLOCKWISE DECTION, BUTTDYILY VALAE:
SLBE <1 WATERGUS BUTIEHPLY GeLYS. 1 ACSORINEE M TPhA G0k GUTTRALY WLAES ALl BE I
VALVE VALTS.

AL T s SHAL B cASt RO THe B 8 - TAR WD f4-S 02
S S B SamICaEn b MRE T ST AR THATIRS (UALUE BOR T ATAARIONS [P
AERLIRED AR CONSDERID WEOBVIALY.

12, 8L HERANTE ZAALL OE N SCCOFANGE WM AWWA GTOQ AND SHALL BE A CLOW F-7545 (EDALLDN) OF &
AMERCAN P DereiRGL — WATEROUS Wa-27280 T OuE J STERMER NOEIE AND Tw 2. HeSE NOIREY,
I T sTakbah e, 8 HaTiHas $TGATD SN NUT ANG JBOLE NG ERE e TLNGE.

WERANTE SMALL HAME AN ADALIARY GATE VALWE WM 4 CAST IRCh ALY

10, FEPAIR COPLNGS UL BE SMTH BLAR (ROGUELL) DI COLFLNG TPE 441 O EQUN.. COLPLINGS SHALL B
PROWGED AT LOCATIONS SHOWN O THE FLANS GR A4S RECLIRED T MAKE PFE COMECTON:

AL TES, B0, FINE MITRITS AN WLES SHALL BE SOEUATELT SFTORTED WIH A CONGRETE BASE, AM0

15, ALL WATER WAINS THALL HAVE A MMM DEPTH OF COVER OF §-8°
16, ALL PRESSURE TAPS TD A EXISTING CITY MAIN SHAL. BE WADE WTH &
ERRTERCI% DUCHLE R, MEAAMIA. ST TrRtS SLEEVE FoR ShUE SEE TArs MTH THE MR

EonTROL

ML
T Tars AND A 4sLL BE WADE WTH STAMERS STEEL TAPANG SIEEVES AN SHALL B MUELLER HeJoe,
e el G A A O ROMAL SET  BLow o et

CEAT TASBNG VALE 3w SiaLL BE WETALEE w 3 TIERS St HE TAFRNG 2Emie
'SHALL B COMSTRUCTED W A VALVE VAULT WIH cob
7. NO WATER SERYIGE TAPS SHALL BE MALE PRIOR T THE GITY REGEIMNG THE IEPA OPERATING FERAIT,
8, WATER MANS AND WATE SERMICE LINES 1L BE PROTECTED FROW SAMITARY SEWSRS, STORM SENERS, COMBIED
SEMER HEUSE SDIER SSLE COMMECTONS Aup PRANE I JCORANGE WIS 5% DIMRCHVETTAL
I: WATER SLIFPLIES, CRAPTER - PLLOTION CCHTROL BSAN, PART B4 CESN,
CREVATIO AND. WANTEHANGE GAILIDE, SECTON 8541 4D SMATALY SPArATIH FIA FINELID WATER WA

15, WHENDVER POSSELE. A WATER MAIN_WUST HE LAD AT LEAST TEN FECT HORLZONTALLY FROM ANY EMSTNG OR
PROPDSED DRAIN O SEWER LNE, SHOULD LOCAL COMITIONS EXST WeICH Well PREYENT A LATERAL

o
MAMVM EXPECTED SURCKARGE HEAD TO ASSURE WATER TKGHTIESS BEFORE BACKS

20, WHENEVER WATER MAINS MUST £R053 HOUSE SEWERS, STORM SEYENS OR SAMTARY SEWCRS. THE WATER MAIN
St 8 S et B aflANn T TIE el o T WA WAl 5 B hotes dne e
w s ERTIGAL SEPARADN MUST BE W MO oF T

SRTER M OATED ST TN FLET SRETIALLT D At SEWER O ORAN CHUSSED a5 MIST B

DISTlc? FRoM THE WATER MAN T3 T atvem o N LB 15 b7 e T FEET W Atk St
VIR & EMGTH O WATOE MAN PR DWR/UMDST T ST O O CROSSED S BT THE
ERTE WL G ElliisTant Fria E SOV AN A5 WD THEALFADN 3 PORHRE WIERE A WATER wn
HUST CROSS LNDER £ s VERTAL SIPARATON OF CHTEEN INGHES BETWEEN Ta: NVERT OF THE SR
JHE cRotin OF THE WATER Al SHALL BE MANTANED, 'ALOS WK MEANS TO SuPrORT THE SCHER LNE To
FREVENT THEIR SETTLMG AWD BREX

21, VALVE WAULTS SHALL BE ADUUSTED WTH FRECAST CONCRETE ADNUSTNG RING 0 A MAXMM OF 08",
22, HYTROSTATIC TESTS — ME DIMTIAGTUR SHALL PERFORM HYGROSTATIC TESTS M ADCGRD

SEGNON 41 OF TE STAMDARD SPECEIGRTONS FIR WATOY AHO SEWER Wi COVSIRLICTION 1N LBV, LATEST
SN, AND AFPUCAS S PRGNONS OF aan, G400 AND G007, o€ WATER WA o, wANTAIY » 160 51
i FoR TEar FREEil Lkt Tua 2

m

S W DTSN

UF 10 4 Hiouks BURaG TUE TEST TeE
DI BRATN O e A ALOMD(E LERCATE SHALL FE A5 ST Fol
WAL M5 SEWER Ma GNSTRIGION W INGIS, (AT e, T T

BY TE Y FERATOR (N CHARGE SHALL BE PRES:S Nr Pl e
CONTRAGICR SHAL VB A FERGLNE GGt SUPPUED, 89 T erre FOR THE S

21 0ISMFCTON OF ME WATER usm - b SUEDGR 0
BE etk

TUE REWLE AP MICE WS, TIE waTER WS

EORIE BY THE CIIT, WATSR NUST PASS THO CONSECUTIVE DAYS OF SAWPLRG TE5T5 BY A STATE APSRDYED
L,

4 SATER VALNES s FBE WRANTE S4AL 1t O COESATED B AMMTED DT 0F SERULLE MATER DEPARTUONT
(CAEC GONTACT N KATLR CCPARTMINT AT 6305654372

25 BUFTALO BINES SLL MOT B ST DRECILY N DAVVENT, I THE SUTALD BOUIS BETALED WIHN P,

e
F HE BUFFALC BDK HALL PE 5 FAVEMENT GRADE AND AN INSFECTION FRAME,
NEENAH Fe1F73 G EAST KRDAN 1570,

wa

THEATEF
ST umum FLELISHED B THE Ll
ST BBl DARGE T THE

SOIL EROBION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

HE SONTRACTOR SHALL PHOVES SOL ERGSIC JND SEDWENTATION CONTROL N ACCORIUNCE #ITH THE “PRECEDUFES
40 STAGARR, % shaERosiou AL SETIENTATN SONTROL K ML

NSFTEASTER LLNOES (LD e S0
7 ILINOSS ERGSION A0 SDMENTATION GONTROL STEERING COMMITTEE AN

D403 FOR T IS BN ARGHMEHIAL FRETEE TN ACENEY
ITIORIY AN Bi AGGOR

AL STamLIZAION

1

a

“

3

TOPSGIL AND VEGETATYE COMER — STRIP TOPSOIL AND REWGE DISTING WEGETATION. STOCKPLE ON-SITE (FOR
FEUSE) AT LOGATION JESIGNATED.
A SCHEDULER TO. REIATS CEMUDED PO LCHGER THaN S0 AT F FECURED, ALL TEMRDRARY SLEORG SHALL

 CONSCERED INGDENTAL 5 T DOST G THE CONTRACT

PERMANENT SEEIHNS — IWMEDATELY FOLLDMNG FHISH GRAIING AND TOPSOL PLACEVENT INSTALL SEEDING N
AFEAS A5 DESIGHATED ON PLANS.

FAVED AREAR « WSTALL THE %GREGATE BATE AS SOON AF FOSTELE IN THE CORBTRUCTIGN SEQUENCE TO
RO FENE) STABLZATON.

ELOPE PROTEENEN — PASTECT SEESNG DN STEEP SLOPES WM ERSION COMTRCL BLAKET.

SEDMENT CONTROL

1

2

ADUACENT FROFETY _ FROTECT ADJAGENT PROFERTY FROM SEDIEMT DEFONTKN BY  _ PRESERNG A
T TR ST OR BY ST RARRFRS o A TPES AT TW | CAFR FRRIMETTR OF TF 10T,

SEDAENTATN CONTRDL S4ALL GF PROVIOED IN ALL AREAS ARSUND THE FEMETER OF AL STOOKPRE AREAS.
STORM SEWER INLET PROTECTIN

A TASI AREAS - INSTALL AND MANTAIN IHLET FROTECTDRS AT EACH OF GRATE STGRM

STRUCTURE UNIL ARCA TRIBL 1Y TO SHD CATCH BASIN HAS BGEN CORPLE LY
REVEGETATID.

B PAICD MMEAS _ SSTAL sra) AMIIA N BLET ERUTECTIRS AT s mLE STLSTLIES

UNTIL AREAS. TRIBLITARY TO SARS INLET HAVE 3CEN PAYED AMD /OR CONL
REVECETATID.

DI1CH CHECKS SHALL BE BISTALLT AHD STSKED IN PLAGE A= 250 LIMEAR FEET AIMUM SPABING IN ALL SWALES.

11 BT CHFCKS. SAA % DERGIFRFD REINTHTAL TO BONTRAGT.

FROVSION SHAL. B WADE 1O WINMIZE THE TRAKSPORT G SEIMENT (MUD) Y RUMGEE 03 VEHIELE TFACND
ONT ETATE, COUNTY 2 TOMMIP HIma™s OF Lock STRETE F MECESSaRy, STA'E, SOUNTY Cf TONEHP
HES¥ATS O [OCAL STREETS SHALL BC CLEIED DAL AT T 10 GF EACH RORK DAY OF A3 FEARED 10
REER WL AND/OR OTHER DEGWS GFF OF ANV HIGHWAY

RENOVAL OF CONTRCL MEASUES ~ DEPOSES OF AL TEMPDRART EROSION AND SECBMENT CONTRUL WEASURES
WTHN 39 BAYS AFTER FiteL STTE STABLIZATION 15 AGHEVED,

Sl ERiol o) SEOMENTATION GONTROL MEASUREE T0 B GHECKED WEBKLY AMD AFTER EACH Rt CLEAN
AN RESTORL A8 REGLIRED.

Engineering Enterprises, Inc,

é CONSULYING ENGINEERS

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINGIS

EAST ALLEY

WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS
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AWWA CB5123 SECTION 5.5: DISINFECTION PROCEDURES WHEN CUTTING
INTO OR REPAIRING EXISTING MAIN:

551 GEVERAL. THE PLANNED, UNPLANNED. OR EMERGENCY REPAIR OF A WATER MAIN
OR APPLRTENANCE (E.G,, YALYE) IS TIME-SENSITIVE, SO AN WRORTANT GOAL IS TO
MINIMIZE THE DISRUPTION OF WATER SERVICE TO CUSTOMERS. NOWETHELESS, THE REPAIR
WORK HEEOS TO BE ACCOMPLSHED USING SANITARY AND SAFE PROCEDURES 87

VL TRANCD ERCUS WITH PROFGT SUPLIVIN 4D GUDANGE REFER 10 PRCIENTING
AND CORRECTIVE WMEASURES DESCRIBED PREVICUSLY IN SEC. 5.2 513, SEC
524, AND SEC. 525 FOLLOW ALL PERSOHAL PROTECTION PREARLTIONS WAEN
WORKING WITH CHLORINE SOLUTIONS.

552 BASIG DISINFEGTION. WORK SHOLLD FOLLOW BASIC DISINFEGTION AND
CONTAMINATION PRCVENTION. PROGLDURTS:

1. PREVENTING CONTAMINANTS FROM ENTERING THE EXISTNG PIPE DURING THE REPAR
SUGH AS BY MAINTANING POSITIVE PRCSSURC IN THE LCAKING PIPC UNTIL THE RTPAIR
SITE GN THE PIPE 15 FULLY EXPOSED, BY MANTAINING A DEWATERED TRENGH, AND BY
KEEPING ALL PIPE WATERIALS BEING USER IN THE REPAR IN & GLEAN AND SAMITARY

2. INSPECTION, CLEANING, AND DISINFECTION (BY SPRAYING OR SWASEING WTH A
MNIMUM 1 PERGENT GHLORINE SOLUTION) GF
EXPOSED PCRNONS OF EXISTING PIPE INTERIOR SURFACES
PIPE MATERIALS USED IN THE RZPAR
HANDHELE WATERIALS AND TOOLS USED TO MAKE THE REPAIR
. AS APPROARIATE, ADVISING AFFECTED CUSTOMERS TO ADEQUATELY FLUSH THER
SERVICE LINES UPON RETURM TO SERVICE.
5.5.3 SELECNON OF DISINFECTIGN PROCEOURE. THE DISNFECTION PROCEDURE SELECTED
SHOJLD BE DETERMINED BY THE CONDITIONS AND SEVERITY GF THE MAIN BREAK. MANY
5 IR BREAKS £l O SEPARGD LD CONIROLLED CONOH 05 WIHOLT

DEPR SEUR\ZNC THE WATER MAIN, SUCH AS WHEN AFFLYINC A CLAMF TO A

. THUS PREVEN'“NG CONTAMINANTS FRGM ENTERING THE W.!TER SYS'EM
e MOST STeRT STAATONG, THE WATER HAM. G o MARTATED PEESORIELD. Tl
THE BREAK SITE IS SECURED AND THE FIPE IS FLLLY EXPGEED. SOME GRGUMSTANGES
{E.G., SEVERE EROSION OF THE LOCAL ENVIRONMENT OR ICING OF THE ROADWAY) THAT
IMPAGT PUBLIG SAFETY WAY REQUIRE THAT WATER PRESSURE BE SUBSTANTIALLY
FEDUCED BEFORE EXPDSING THE PIPE IN THE AREA OF THE LEAK. SOME SITUATIONS
BECOME GATASTROPHIC WHEN THERE IS A PIPE BLOWOUT AND 4 LOSS OF WATER
PRESSURE BEFCRE SHUTDCWN, REQUIRING DISINFECTION PROCEDURES EGUIVALENT T0
THOSE OF A MEW MAIN INSTALLATION. THE PROCEDURES DETALED N SEC. 5551
THROUCH SEC. 5.5.3.3 DESCRIBE THE CONTAMINATION RISKS AND THE ASSOCIATED
DISIMFECTION AME SAMPLMG REQUIREMENTE FOR DIFFERENT SCENARIOS OF PIPELINE
FEPAR. FOR SPEGIFIC SITUATIONS THAT ARE NOT COVERED IN SEG. 5.5.31 THROUGH
SEC. 5.5.3.5, CAREFUL EVALUATIGN WILL BE NEEDED TO DETERWINE THE APPROPRIATE
DISINFEGTION ANE S4kPLING METHODS. REQUIRED.
NOTE THAT THE PROCEDURES EXPLAINED N SEC. 5.5. SEC. 5.5.0.2, AND SEC. 5.53.3
FOR DISTRIBUTION MAINS WAY NEED TO BE MCOIFED FOR LARGE TRANSMISSICN MAINS.
LARGE WAINS MAY NEED ADDITIONAL WORK {(SUCH AS VALVE REPLACEMENT OR A
SPECIAL ORDER REGUIFED FOR CONNECTION), MAY BE GUT OF SERVICE FCR MORE THAN
A DAY, OR MAY NOT BE APPROPRIATE FOR A SCOUR FLUSH, THESE MODIFICATIONS
NEED 70 BE MADE OM A CASE-@Y-CASE BASIS, BUT THI PROCEDURES QUTUNED (N
ANS /AWWA GE51 SHOULD STILL BE TAKEN INTG GONSIZERATION.
5.5.3.1 CONTROLLED PIPE REPAIR WITHOUT DEPRESSURIZATION. IN THIS ETU.!“EM
ACTIMTES ARE WELL COMTROLLED, AND A FULL SHUTGOWN |8 NOT EL,
ANTAI ROSTE FRASSIAE 10 T ATEA O SO D AN THE AREAK
SITE AT ALL TMES.
THE REPAR SITE IS EXPOSED, AND THE TRENGH IS ADEGUATELY DEWATERED SG THAT
THE REPAIR SITE CAN BE CLEANED AND DISINFECTED BY SPRAYING OR SWABBING WITH
A MINMUM 1 PERGENT CALDRINE SOLUTION, THE WATER MAIN IS TREN RETURNED TO
SERVICE WITH FLUSHHG TO OBTAIN THREE VOLUMES OF WATER TURNOVER, WAKNG SURE
THAT THE MUSHED WATIR 1 VISUALLY CLLAR, NO BACTCRIOLOGCAL TCSTING |13
MECESSARY. IT IS ADVISAHLE TO CHECK FOR A TYPICAL SYSTEM CHLORI
AND, |F IT IS NOT FOUND, TO COMTINUE FLUSHING UNTIL RESIDUALS ARE RESTORED TO
LEVELS MAINTAINED 1N THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEW BY THE WATER UTILITY (F THE
SYSTEM OPERATES WITH A DISINFECTANT RESIDUAL).
46.5.3.2 CONTROLLED FIFE REPAIR WITH DEFRESSURIZATION AFTER SHUTDOWM. IN THIE
SITUATIGN, AFTER THE REPAIR S1F HAS BEEN FXPOSED AND SECURED FROM TRENGH
SOIL/ WATER CONTAMINATION, THE WATER MAIN IS DEPRESSURIZED BY A SHUTGOWN T
REPAIR. THE REFAIR SITE SHOULD BE CLEANEL AND DiSINFECTED BY
SPRATING OR SWaBEING WITH A MINIMUM © PERCEMT CHLORIME SCLUTION. THE WATER
MAIN IS THEN RETURNED TO SERVIGE WITH FLUSHING TD SGOUR THE PIPE AND QATAN
THREE VOLUMES OF WATER TURNOVER, WAKING SURE THAT THE FLUSHED WATER IS
VISUALLY GLEAR. IT IS ADVSABLE TO CHEGK FOR & TYPIGAL SYSTEM GHLORINE
RESIDUAL AND, IF IT 1S NOT FOUND, T0 COWTNJE FLUSHING DNTIL RESIDUALS ARE
RESTORED TO LEVELS MAINTAINED IN "HE JISTRIBUTION SYSTEM BY THE WATER UTILTY
{IF THE SYSTEM OPERATES WTH A DISWFECTANT RESIDUAL).

AWWA CE51-23 SECTION 5.5: DISINFECTION PROCEDURES WHEN CUTTING
INTO OR REPAIRING EXISTING MAINS (CONTINUED}

WHEN THE EXISTIMNG PIPE HAS TO BE OPENED AND THE INTERIOR SURFACES OF THE
WATER SYSTEM EXPOSED TO THE ENVIRONMENT, ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES NEED TO BE
WED. THE EXSTING PIPE SHOULD HE INSPECTED AN CLEANED, UTILZNG FLUSKING
WATER INTQ THE TRENCH WHERE POSSIBLE UNTIL THE FLUSH WATER RUNS WISLALLY
CLEAR. THE REFAIR SITE SHOULD BE ACCESSIBLE, AND THE TRENCH AJEQUATELY
DEWAIERED SO [HAT IHE RSPAIR SIIE CAN Be CLEANED AND UISIRFECTED BY SPRAVING
OR SWABBING WITH A MINIMUM 1 PERCENT CHLORINE SOLUTICN. ADDITIONALLY, ANY
ACCESSIBLE UPSTREAM AND DOWNSTREAM INTERIOR OF THE EXSTING PIPE SHOLLD BE
DISINFECTED BY SWABBING DR SPRAYING WTH & WINMUN 1 PERCENT CHLORIKE
SOLUTION. IF THE REPAIR REQUIRES A FUL_ PIPE SECTION REPLACEMENT, THE NEW PIPZ
SHOULD BE INSPECTED, GLEANED, AND CISNFECTED FROM BOTH ENDS BY SWABBING
TH A MINIMLW 1 PERCENT CHLORINE SOLUTION. THE WATER MAIN WAY THEN BE
RETURNED TO SERVICE AFTER FLUSHING TO SCOUR THE PIFE ANC OBTAIN THREE
VOLUMES GF WATER TLRNOVER. THE HED WATER EHOULD RUN WISUALLY CLEAR,
HAVE A WEASUFABLE GHIGRINE RESDUAL IF THE SYSTEM OPFRATES WTH A RESIDUAL,
D EE GHECKED WTH BACTERIOLOGICAL “ESTING. THE FIPELINE HAY BE RETURNED TO
SERVICE BEFORE OBTAINNG BACTERIOLOGICAL RESULTS
5.5.3,3 UNGONTROLLED FIFE BREAK WITH A UKELIHGED OF WATER CONTAMINATION OF
LOSS OF SAN TARY CONDITIONS DURING REPAIR. N SITUATIONS WHERE THE EXISTING
WA
TC BE REPAIRED COLLD NOT BE PROTECTED AND KEPT FREE OF CONTAMINATION AND
THERE ARE OIWOLS SIGNS OF CONTAMINATION (E.G, WUDDY “RENGH WATER FLOWNG
INTO THE BROKEN FIPE, A LEAKING SEWER FIFE IN THE “RENCH, OR A CATASTROPHIC
FIFE FAILURE WHERE PIFE IS OFEN ARD THERE IS A LIKELHOOD THAT COKTAMINATION
WAS DRAWN INTG THE ACTIVE SYSTEM) OR WHEN 4 GONTROLED REPAIR SITUATION
TURNS INTC 4 SITUATION IN WHICH THIEC INTCRNAL FIPC AND WATCR HAWC GCGOMOC
COMTAMINATED, THE PROCEDURES OUTLINED IN SEC. 4.3, SEC. 4.4, 3EC. 4.5, OR SEC.
4.5 SHOULD BE FOLLOWED HERE PRACTICAL THESE METHODS SPECIY CHLORINE DOSES
OF 25 70 200 MG/L: HOWEVER, SUCH LEVELS MAY PRESENT GREATER HARW IF THE
LINE CR SERVICES CANNOT EE RELIAELY ISOLATED OR SHUT DOWN AND EXPOSURE OF
CUS ICMERS 10 HIGH CONCEN RATIONE DF CHLORINE CANNDI BE CONIROLLED, FHES
CHLORINE RESIDUALS UP TO 4 HG/L (BASED CH ANNUAL AVETABES) ARE ALLOWED BY
FEDERAL DRINKING WATER REGULATIONS: THEREFCRE, THIS LEVEL IS SUCCESTED AS A
MINIMUM T BE MAINTANED FOR AT LEAST 16 H N CONGNCTICN WTH FLUSHING,
COUFORM SAMPLING, AND ASSOCIATED CUSTOMER EDUCATION, SUGH SITUATIONS
REQUIRE CAREFUL REWIEW AND NEED TO BALANCE THE PUBLIC HEALTH RISKS OF THE
PIFELINE FALURE AS WELL AS THE REPAR PROCESS.
WHERE PRACTICAL AND APPIOPRATE CONSIDERING THE RISKS OF PUBUC EXPOSURE TO
HIGR GONGENTRATIONS GF CHLORINE, AND IN ADDITIGN 10 THE PRGTEDURES
PREVICUSLY DESGRIBED IN THIS STANDARD. THE SECTION GF FIPE IN WHICH THE BREAK
IS LGOATED SHALL BE ISOLATEIL ALL SERVCE GONMEGTIONS SHUT OFF, AND THE
SECTION FLUSHED AND CISINFECTEB. F THE SLUG CHLORINATION METHOD IS EWPLOYED,
THE DCSE WAY BE INREASED 1D AS MUCH AS 700 MGA AND THE GNTACT TME
REDUCED TG A5 LITILE A5 15 M. AFTER GHLORINATIN AND REPAIR, PERFDRM SOOUR
FLUSHING AT 3.0 FT/S {0.01 M/S) CR CREATER FOR A MINIWUM OF THREE FIFE
VOLUVES AND GONTIMUE UNTIL DSCOLGRED WATER IS NOT OBSERVED AND THE
CHLORINE RESICUAL IS RESTORED To THE LEVELS WAINTAINED IN THE OISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM BY THE WATER UTILTY,
FOR LARGER-DIAMETER PIPE {12 IN. AND GREATER), IF A WATER VELOCITY OF 3.0 F7/5
(0,81 M/S) CANNOT BE ACHIEVED, IT 15 DESIRABLE TO FLUSH AT THE MaxiMUM FLOW
FOR THE WAIN UNTIL THREE PIPE VOLIMES HAVE BEEN DISPLACED BEFORE RETURNING
THE MAIN TC SERMICE. THE FLUSHED WATER SHOULD RUN WISUALLY GLEAR AND HAWE
TYFICAL SYSTEM CHLORINE RESDUAL (F THE SYSTSM OPERATES WITH 4 DISINFECTANT
RESIDUAL).
FOR VERY LARGE-DIAMEER PIPE (WHERE PERSCNNEL OR EGUPMENT MAY SAFELY
ENTER THE FIFE), IN LIEU OF FLUSHING FOLLOWING DISINFECTION, THE INTERIOR OF THE
FIPE AT THE REPAIR SITC MA™ BE GLEANED BY SWEEPING OR HIGH-PRESSURE WASH
USNG POTABLE WATER BEFORE DISNFECTION. STANDING WATER AND DEBRIS FRON THE
GLEANING MUST SE REMGVED FRDW THE PIPE BEFORE DISINFEGTION. THE AFFECTED PIPE
SHALL BE DISINFECTED BY SWABBING OR SPRAYING WITH A MINILW 1 PERCENT
CHLORINE. SCLLITION.
AFTER FOLLOWING THE APPRGPRIATE METHIDS ABOVE, BEFORE RETURNING THE PIPE TO
SERVICE, THE EFFICACY OF THE DISNFECTION PROCEDURE SHALL BE VERFIED BY
TESTIG FOR THE ABSENCE OF COLIFORM BAGTERIA. I ALLOWED BY LOGAL
REGULATIONS, THE PIPELIE WAY BE RETURMED T LMTED SERVICE BEFORE DETAINING
BACTERIOLOGICAL REFILTS WTH PROPER NOTIFICATION OF THE AFFECTED CUSTOMERS.
5,54 TEMPGRARY SERVICE LINES. TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE LINES TO CUSTOMERS
DURING MAIN REPAR ACTMITES SHALL BE DISINFECTED BEFORE USE. MATERIALS SHALL
MEET THE NSF/ANSI/CAN &' CERTIFICATION FOR POTABLE WATER USE. DISMFECTION
SHOULD BE ACCOMPLISHED BY THE PROCEDURES IN SEC. 4.8 OR SEC. 5 FOLLOWED BY
SCOUR FLUSHING AT 3.0 FT/5 (091 U/S) OF GRFATFR FOR A MIMMUM OF THRFF FIPF
VOLUMES (SEE TABLE 3), OR UNTIL THE WATER RUNS VISUALLY CLEAR AND PREFERABLY
A \SURABLE CHLORINE RESIDUAL IS RESTORFD.
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Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number

Legal Consent Agenda #4

Finance

Engineer

City Administrator
Community Development
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Police

Tracking Number

PW 2025-67

Public Works
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Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: 2025 Water Main Replacement — Illinois Railway, LLC License Agreements

Meeting and Date: City Council — July 22, 2025

Synopsis: 2025 Water Main Replacement — Recommendation to Accept the Illinois Railway,

LLC License Agreements

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: PW —7/15/25 Action Taken: Moved forward to CC consent agenda.

Item Number: PW 2025-67

Type of Vote Required: Majority

Council Action Requested: Acceptance of the Illinois Railway, LLC License Agreements

Submitted by: Brad Sanderson Engineering

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CitvofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council
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Memorandum

To: Bart Olson, City Administrator
From: Brad Sanderson, EEI
CC: Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works

Jori Behland, City Clerk
Rob Fredrickson, Finance Director

Date: July 15, 2025
Subject: 2025 Water Main Replacement — Illinois Railway, LLC License Agreements

During the upcoming summer, the City will be replacing significant stretches of water main
located in downtown Yorkville. As a part of the project, water main must be installed underneath
railroad tracks owned by Illinois Railway, LLC in four separate locations. The City has
undergone an extensive permitting process with the railroad including conversations on the cost
and language of the License Agreements. There are four license agreements, one for each
crossing located at Adams and Hydraulic, State and Hydraulic, S. Main and Hydraulic, and West
Alley and Hydraulic. The License Agreement language has been reviewed by the City Attorney
and each carry a one-time license fee of $3,700 for a total fee amount of $14,800.

We recommend the acceptance and approval of the License Agreements with Illinois Railway,
LLC.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please let us know.



Resolution No. 2025-

A RESOLUTION OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, APPROVING PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE
AGREEMENTS WITH ILLINOIS RAILWAY LLC

WHEREAS, the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois (the “City”) is a duly
organized and validly existing non-home rule municipality created in accordance with the
Constitution of the State of Illinois of 1970 and the laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, as a part of the City’s 2025 Water Main Replacement Project, it is necessary
to install water mains underneath railroad tracks owned by Illinois Railway, LL (the “Illinois
Railway™) at the crossings located at Adams and Hydraulic, State and Hydraulic, S. Main and
Hydraulic and West Alley and Hydraulic; and

WHEREAS, Illinois Railway has agreed to grant the City licenses to install water mains
at the four crossings each for a one-time fee of $3,700, for a total of $14,800 ; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to construct these water mains on Illinois Railway’s property
as a part of the City’s Water Main Replacement Project for the purpose of improving its public
water supply system and therefore the City is prepared to approve the Pipe Line Crossing Licenses
in the forms attached to this Resolution and approve the payment of a total of $14,800.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the United
City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Resolution as the findings of
the Corporate Authorities.

Section 2. That the Pipe Line Crossing Agreements by and between the City of Yorkville
and Illinois Railway, LLC, in the forms attached hereto, for the railroad crossings located at Adams

and Hydraulic, State and Hydraulic, S. Main and Hydraulic and West Alley and Hydraulic are

Resolution No. 2025 -
Page 1



hereby approved and the payment of $3,700 per crossing is hereby authorized. The Mayor and
City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said Licenses on behalf of the United City
of Yorkville.

Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval as provided by law.

Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois this

day of ,A.D. 2025.

CITY CLERK
KEN KOCH DAN TRANSIER
ARDEN JOE PLOCHER CRAIG SOLING
CHRIS FUNKHOUSER MATT MAREK
RUSTY CORNEILS RUSTY HYETT

APPROVED by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois

this  dayof ,A.D.2025.

MAYOR
Attest:
CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 2025 -
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PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE

THIS LICENSE (“License”) shall be effective on the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective
Date”), by lllinois Railway, LLC (“Licensor”) and City of Yorkville (“Licensee”). Licensor and Licensee may
sometimes be referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:
1. TERM:

This License shall take effect as of the Effective Date, and unless sooner terminated per the terms outlined
in Section 9 and 10 of this License, shall remain in effect regardless of performance or non-performance of any of
the covenants and agreements contained in this License and regardless of any fee having been paid in advance for
any period without regard to any loss or damage incurred by either Party as a result of such termination or
cancellation. Licensor will not execute this License until it receives a signed original from Licensee, and in no event
is entry under this License permitted until Licensor returns a fully-executed copy to Licensee.

2. LOCATION:

In consideration of the license fee or other sums of money Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor, and of
the covenants and agreements of Licensee as set forth in this License, Licensor hereby grants a license and
permission to Licensee to construct, install, use, maintain, repair, relocate, operate and replace a fresh water
Pipe Line, as more particularly described in Licensee’s application, marked Exhibit “A”, attached to this License
and made a part of it by this reference, situated on, across, along or over Licensor’s property at or near the City
of Yorkville, County of Kendall, and State of lllinois (the “Premises”). The term Pipe Line shall be deemed to
mean the actual line(s) and any and all appurtenances and that portion of Licensor’s property, in so far as they
relate to said Pipe Line. The location of the Pipe Line is more particularly described on the drawing marked
Exhibit “B”, attached to this License and made a part of it by this reference, but generally described as follows:

A 9.05"(inch) carrier inside a 16" (inch) casing diameter, fresh water Pipe Line crossing
Licensor’s property, located at or near Mile Post No. 49.91, as shown on Exhibit “B”.

3. LICENSE FEE:

A. Licensee shall pay to Licensor as one time License Fee the sum of three thousand seven hundred dollars
(USD $3,700.00), payable in advance on or prior to the Effective Date of this License. Licensee shall pay
to Licensor any and all sales tax, if any and if applicable, which may occur as a result of the payment of
the above license or other fees payable under this License.

4, SPECIFICATIONS:

A. The Pipe Line shall be constructed, installed, used, maintained, repaired and operated in strict
accordance with any and all current requirements and specifications adopted by the American Railway
Engineering and Maintenance of Way Association, and in compliance with any and all law, statute,
regulation or order of any federal, state or municipal governmental body or any agency thereof or
created thereby (collectively, “Laws”). Provided however, that all materials and workmanship employed
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in the construction, installation, use, maintenance, repair and operation of the Pipe Line shall be subject
to the approval of the Licensor’s Chief Engineer or authorized representative.

B. An underground Pipe Line crossing under track(s) at a ninety degree (90°) angle, shall be encased in
conduit for a MINIMUM of forty-eight feet (48’), twenty-four feet (24’) on either side measured from
the centerline of the track(s) or the full width of Licensor’s property if less than forty-eight (48’) feet.
Crossings of a degree substantially greater or less than ninety degrees (90°) shall be encased in conduit
for the full width of the track structure. The top of the encasement pipe shall be a MINIMUM of five
and one half (5%’) feet beneath surface of ground at all points within Licensor’s property.

C. Any appurtenance to the Pipe Line shall be constructed and maintained to a MINIMUM clearance of no
less than fifteen (15’) feet from the centerline of any track(s). The side clearance of fifteen (15’) feet
shall be maintained for a height of twenty-seven feet (27’). All Pipe Line(s) shall be constructed, as nearly
as possible to cross under any track(s) at a right angle to said track(s).

D. Licensee shall, except in emergencies, give not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior written notice to
Licensor of the day, hour and location that it proposes to undertake any construction, installation, repair,
relocation, replacement or maintenance work to the Pipe Line or otherwise on the Premises and in the
event of an emergency shall notify Licensor as soon as possible. After completion of construction,
relocation, installation or replacement of the Pipe Line, Licensee shall be required to execute Licensor’s
standard Right of Entry for any maintenance or repair work on the Pipe Line that requires entry onto
Licensor’s property or right-of-way. The Right of Entry Permit fee shall be waived for emergency repair
and routine maintenance on the pipeline.

E. Licensee shall require each of its contractors and subcontractors to observe and conform to the
conditions and requirements specified in this License; and for the purposes of the safety, protective and
indemnification provisions of this License, such contractors and subcontractors, their agents, servants
and employees, and other persons on the Licensor property at the invitation of the Licensee, its
contractors or subcontractors, shall be deemed the agents or employees of the Licensee.

F. Licensee shall, at no expense to Licensor, obtain all permits and approvals required to exercise its rights
provided for pursuant to this License and Licensee shall install, maintain and operate its facilities in
accordance with all requirements of such permits, approvals, the Law and any lawful public authority.
Licensee shall be responsible for any taxes, assessments and charges made against the Pipe Line and the
construction or use of the Pipe Line or other of Licensee’s facilities on Licensor’s property or the
operation of any of them.

G. Licensor shall have the right, but not the duty, to furnish flagging or other protection or to perform work
to support its tracks or otherwise protect its property or facilities at any time, at Licensee’s sole risk and
expense.

5. PRESENT OCCUPATIONS:
Licensee shall make appropriate arrangements with any person or entity occupying Licensor’s property
which may be affected by the relocation, installation, construction or any maintenance or repair of the Pipe Line.

Licensee’s Pipe Line will not unreasonably interfere with the use of Licensor’s property, or create any undue
hardship on the person or entity occupying said property.
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RISK, LIABILITY, INDEMNITY:

Licensee acknowledges that persons and property on or near the Premises are in constant danger of
injury, death or destruction, incident to the operation of the railroad tracks, whether by Licensor or
others; and Licensee accepts this License subject to such dangers.

a.

LICENSEE, AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION AND AS A CONDITION WITHOUT WHICH THIS LICENSE
WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN GRANTED, AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND SAVE HARMLESS
LICENSOR, ITS PARENTS, OWNERS, AND AFFILIATES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTNERS,
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MEMBERS,
MANAGERS, AGENTS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES (THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND TO
ASSUME ALL RISK, RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR DEATH OF, OR INJURY TO, ANY
PERSONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, PATRONS,
INVITEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES, AND FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO ANY
PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THAT BELONGING TO THE PARTIES (TOGETHER
WITH ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS INCURRED OR
SUSTAINED BY THE INDEMNITEES, WHETHER IN DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DEMANDS,
ACTIONS AND CAUSES OF ACTION OR IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNIFICATION
RIGHTS CONFERRED BY THIS LICENSE) ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER
OR DEGREE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO, OR RESULTING FROM
THE GRANT OF THIS LICENSE OR THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, RENEWAL,
ALTERATION, CHANGE, RELOCATION, EXISTENCE, PRESENCE, USE, OPERATION,
REPLACEMENT, OR REMOVAL OF ANY STRUCTURE INCIDENT TO IT, OR FROM ANY ACTIVITY
CONDUCTED ON OR OCCURRENCE ORIGINATING ON THE AREA COVERED BY THE LICENSE,
INCLUDING ANY TEMPORARY USAGE AREA, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROXIMATELY CAUSED
BY THE INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OR SOLE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF THE PARTY SEEKING
INDEMNIFICATION.

THE RISKS OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS AND LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY
ASSUMED BY LICENSEE UNDER THIS LICENSE, SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO,
CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, EMPLOYEES, OR INVITEES OF EITHER OF THE PARTIES,
AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS SHALL ARISE UNDER ANY
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACT OR FEDERAL EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY ACT.

LICENSEE SHALL, AT ITS SOLE COST AND EXPENSE, JOIN IN OR ASSUME, AT THE ELECTION AND
DEMAND OF LICENSOR, THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS LICENSE. THE WORD “LICENSOR” AS USED IN THIS INDEMNITY
SECTION SHALL INCLUDE THE ASSIGNS OF LICENSOR AND ANY OTHER RAILROAD COMPANY
THAT MAY BE OPERATING UPON AND OVER THE TRACKS IN THE VICINITY OF THE PREMISES.

AS A PRECONDITION TO LICENSEE’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION,
THE INDEMNITEES WILL (i) FULLY COOPERATE WITH LICENSEE IN ANY INVESTIGATION AND
PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH ALL INFORMATION IN THE POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE
INDEMNITEES RELATING TO ANY MATTER FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES SEEK
INDEMNIFICATION, AND (ii) PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH TIMELY NOTICE OF ANY MATTER OR
INCIDENT FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES MAY MAKE A CLAIM FOR INDEMNIFICATION BY
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LICENSEE.
7. INSURANCE:

A. Licensee shall purchase and maintain insurance as specified below covering the License, all the work,
services, and obligations assumed or performed hereunder, from the Effective Date until termination,
unless the duration is stated to be otherwise, with insurance companies assigned a current Financial
Strength Rating of at least A and Financial Size Category of X by A. M. Best Company:

i Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to limit of
$1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander
with an annual aggregate limit of no less than $2,000,000. Policy coverage is to be based on usual
Insurance Services Office policy forms to include, but not be limited to: Operations and Premises
Liability, Completed Operations and Products Liability, Personal Injury and Advertising Liability, and
Contractual Liability Insurance. Completed Operations coverage is to be maintained for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. General Liability
policies procured by Licensee shall be amended to delete all railroad exclusions including exclusions
for working on or within fifty feet (50) of any railroad property, and affecting any railroad bridge or
trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing (CG 24 17 endorsement or equivalent).

ii. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance providing statutory workers’
compensation benefits mandated under applicable state law and Employers’ Liability Insurance
subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident, $1,000,000
each employee for bodily injury by disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease.
If coverage is provided through a monopolistic state fund, a stop gap endorsement on either the
Commercial General Liability or Workers’ Compensation Policy is required to meet the Employers’
Liability Insurance requirement.

iii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Policy coverage shall be based on Insurance Services Office
policy forms referred to as Business Automobile Policy to cover motor vehicles owned, leased,
rented, hired or used on behalf of Licensee. If applicable to this License and applicable under federal
law, Licensee shall provide an MCS 90 endorsement.

iv. Umbrella Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to a limit of $4,000,000 each
occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander. Policy coverage
is to be at least as broad as primary coverages. Umbrella coverage is to be maintained for a period
of not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. Umbrella
Liability shall apply to Commercial General Liability, Employers’ Liability, and Business Automobile
Liability Insurances.

The required limits of insurance may be satisfied by a combination of Primary and Umbrella or Excess
Liability Insurance.

B. Allinsurance required of Licensee with the exception of Workers” Compensation and Employers’ Liability
shall include Licensor and any subsidiary, owner, parent or affiliates of Licensor, and their respective
partners, successors, assigns, legal representatives, officers, directors, members, managers, agents,
shareholders, and employees (“Required Parties”) as additional insured and include wording which
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states that the insurance shall be primary and not excess over or contributory with any insurance carried
by Licensor and its affiliates. With respect to Commercial General Liability Insurance, Required Parties
shall be included as additional insured for Ongoing Operations and for Completed Operations to the
extent permitted by law.

All insurance shall provide Licensor a minimum of thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of insurer’s
intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage.

If Licensee cannot obtain an occurrence based policy for any required coverage, the policy may be
written on a claims-made basis with a retroactive date on or before the Effective Date of this License.
Licensee shall maintain such policy on a continuous basis. If there is a change in insurance companies
or the policy is canceled or not renewed, Licensee shall purchase an extended reporting period of not
less than three (3) years after the License termination date.

Licensee shall file with Licensor on or before the Effective Date of this License a valid certificate of
insurance for all required insurance policies. Each certificate shall identify the Required Parties as
additional insured as required and state that Licensor shall receive a minimum of thirty (30) days’
advance written notice of insurer’s intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage. Licensee
shall supply updated certificates of insurance that clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in
the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as required by this License.

All insurance policies required of Licensee shall include a waiver of any right of subrogation written in
favor of the Required Parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee may self-insure for any of the above required insurance
coverages subject to the requirements specified in this paragraph. Licensee shall provide Licensor with
audited financial statements and Licensor may, at its discretion, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, deem such financial statements acceptable prior to authorizing Licensee to self-insure.
Licensee shall provide a letter of self-insurance to Licensor specifically stating which lines of coverage
are self-insured and the amount of self-insurance maintained. The amount of any excess insurance that
attaches to self-insurance below the required limits of insurance shall be identified in the letter and
evidenced on a certificate of insurance. This letter of self-insurance shall be signed by Licensee’s Risk
Manager or another designated authorized signatory. With respect to Workers’ Compensation, Licensee
shall also provide state-issued self-insured authorization documents to Licensor, where applicable by
state law.

Licensee represents that this License has been thoroughly reviewed by Licensee’s insurance agent or
broker who have been instructed by Licensee to procure the insurance coverage required by this License.
Upon signature of this License and renewal of insurance, if Licensee fails to maintain or provide evidence
to Licensor of any insurance coverage required under this License, Licensor may terminate this License
effective immediately.

Licensee’s compliance with obtaining the required insurance coverage shall in no way limit the
indemnification rights and obligations specified in this License.

WAIVER:

Licensee waives the right to question the validity of this License or any of the terms and provisions of it,
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or the right or power of Licensor to execute and enforce this License. This License is made without covenant on
the part of Licensor to warrant its title to the property involved with the Pipe Line, or to give or to defend
Licensee in the peaceful possession of the property and Licensee shall waive all right to claim damages in the
event Licensee shall be evicted, ejected or required to surrender possession of the property by anyone owning
or claiming title to or any interest in the property, or by reason of failure of title of Licensor, or for any other
cause whatsoever. Licensee further agrees to indemnify and save harmless Licensor and to assume all risk,
responsibility and liability (including any expenses, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred or sustained by Licensor)
arising from, growing out of, or in any manner or degree directly or indirectly attributable to or resulting from
any deficiency or insufficiency of Licensor’s title affecting the right of Licensor to make this grant.

9. REPAIRS AND RELOCATION:

A. Licensee will at all times maintain the Pipe Line in a safe and secure manner and in a condition
satisfactory to Licensor. Licensor may request Licensee to change the location of the Pipe Line, or any
part of it, or to make reasonable repairs or changes as the judgment of Licensor deems necessary in
order to avoid interference with or danger in the use or operation of Licensor’s railroad, or any of its
present or future appurtenances. In the event itis desired by Licensor to use its property or any portion
of it, occupied or impacted by the Pipe Line, then Licensee shall, at its sole expense, and within thirty
(30) days after notice from Licensor to do so, (or on shorter notice in case of an emergency), make
changes to the Pipe Line as required or remove the Pipe Line, or as much of the Pipe Line as is located
upon the portion of the property as required by Licensor.

B. If Licensee shall fail to perform any of its obligations contained in this License as to the maintenance of
safe conditions in and about the Pipe Line or to make any necessary repairs, or to relocate the Pipe Line,
then Licensor may cause such condition to be made safe, or change of location to be made, or repairs
to be made, or Pipe Line to be removed from Licensor’s property. Licensor acting as the agent of
Licensee, may perform such work as is necessary in the judgment of Licensor, and Licensee shall, on
demand, promptly reimburse Licensor the cost of the work, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the cost as a
charge for the supervision, accounting, and use of tools; or Licensor may terminate this License by giving
Licensee not less than ten (10) days advance written notice of its intention to do so.

C. Incase Licensor shall at any time, or from time to time, require the removal of only a portion of the Pipe
Line, this License shall continue in force and be applicable to the portion or portions of the Pipe Line
remaining from time to time until the entire Pipe Line has been removed and the License Fees or other
fees payable under this License shall be adjusted accordingly.

10. TERMINATON:

If Licensee fails to keep or perform any of Licensee’s covenants contained in this License, upon ninety
(90) days written notice to Licensee and an opportunity to cure with such cure being completed within such
ninety (90) day period or if such cure cannot be completed within ninety (90) days, in such time as necessary so
long as Licensee is diligently pursuing such cure and in no event longer than one hundred eighty (180) days,
Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License.

In addition to the foregoing, Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License and the rights granted

hereunder, after delivering to Licensee written notice of such termination no less than ninety (90) days prior to
each anniversary of the effective date thereof, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:
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o

If Licensee shall permanently discontinue the use of operations of the Pipe Line; or

b. If Licensor shall be required by any change in applicable Federal law after the Effective Date to
remove, relocate, reconstruct, or discontinue operation of Licensor’s railroad and any such
removal, relocation, reconstruction, or discontinuance of operation of Licensor’s railroad
cannot be accomplished without removal of the Pipeline; or

C. If Licensor determines and substantiates to Licensee that the Pipe Line endangers or threatens

Licensor’s employees or the safe operation or maintenance of the railroad.

RESTORATION:

Upon termination of this License, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of this License,

Licensee shall promptly remove the Pipe Line from Licensor’s property, and restore the property to its prior
condition, or a condition satisfactory to Licensor. If Licensee fails to remove the Pipe Line within ninety days
(90) after termination of this License, Licensor may remove same, and charge the expense of such removal to
the Licensee on the basis provided in Section 9.B of this License.

12.

410367.a

MISCELLANEOUS:

This License is executed by all Parties under current interpretation of any and all applicable Laws.
Further, each and every separate division (paragraph, clause, item, term, condition, covenant or
agreement) contained in this License shall have independent and severable status from each other
separate division, or combination of them, for the determination of legality, so that if any separate
division is determined to be unconstitutional, illegal, violative of trade or commerce, in contravention
of public policy, void, voidable, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, that separate division shall be
treated as a nullity, but such holding or determination shall have no effect upon the validity or
enforceability of each and every other separate division or any other combination of them.

In the event this License is part of a package of agreements for Licensee, this License and all other such
documents shall be read as compatible parts of the package and not in contradiction to each other, such
that in the event of apparent conflict in any duties under this License or the package of agreements,
Licensor shall designate which clause(s) shall survive or control any others.

Except as otherwise specified in this License, any notice or other communication required or permitted
by this License shall be in writing and (i) delivered by first class mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) deposited
into the custody of a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, as follows:

If to Licensor: If to Licensee:

ATTN: Real Estate ATTN: City of Yorkville
252 Clayton Street, 4™ Floor 651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Denver, Colorado 80206 Yorkville, IL 60560

Phone: (630) 770-9915
WITH A COPY TO:
ATTN: General Counsel
252 Clayton Street, 4th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80206

No oral promises, oral agreements, or oral warranties shall be deemed a part of this License, nor shall
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any alteration, amendment, supplement or waiver of any of the provisions of this License be binding
upon either Party, unless same be supplemented, altered, changed or amended by an instrument in
writing, signed by Licensor and Licensee.

This License is made subject to the rights previously or simultaneously granted by or through Licensor
for any surface, sub-surface or aerial uses antedating this License, including but not limited to, the
construction, maintenance, operation, renewal and/or relocation of fences, pipelines, communication
lines, power lines, railroad tracks and signals, and any and all appurtenances applicable to them.
Licensor excepts and reserves the right to grant additional uses of the same or similar nature subsequent
to the execution of this License, without payment of any sum for damages, so long as such use does not
unreasonably interfere with the use of Pipe Line by Licensee.

This License and all of the provisions contained in it shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and Licensee agrees to supply notice in writing to
Licensor of any name changes. Notwithstanding the forgoing, Licensee agrees not to assign this License
or any rights or privileges granted under it, without the prior written consent of Licensor, which it may
give at its sole discretion, and any and every attempted assignment without prior written consent shall
be void and of no effect. This covenant shall also apply whether any of the foregoing is made voluntarily
by Licensee or involuntarily in any proceeding at law or in equity to which Licensee may be a party,
whereby any of the rights, duties and obligations of License may be sold, transferred, conveyed,
encumbered, abrogated or in any manner altered without the prior notice to and consent of Licensor.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall remain liable to Licensor as a guarantor of Licensee’s
successor in interest to this License.

Nothing in this License shall be construed to place any responsibility on Licensor for the quality of the
construction, maintenance or other work performed on behalf of Licensee hereunder or for the
condition of any Licensee’s facilities.

Any approval given or supervision exercised by Licensor under this License, or failure of Licensor to
object to any work done, material used or method of construction, reconstruction or maintenance, shall
not be construed to relieve Licensee of its obligations under this License.

The failure of the Licensor to seek redress for any violation of or to insist upon the strict performance of
any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this License or any of the rules and regulations from time
to time issued by the Licensor, shall not prevent a subsequent act, which would have originally
constituted a violation, from having all of the force and effect of an original violation.

Licensee further indemnifies Licensor against any and all liens that may be placed against Licensor’s
property in the course of construction of this crossing, and agrees to immediately satisfy any liens so
placed.

In the event that Licensor shall incur any costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees and costs, in
enforcing Licensee’s covenants and agreements under this License, Licensee shall reimburse Licensor
for all such costs, expenses and legal fees as an additional fee under this License.

This License shall be governed under the laws of the State of lllinois, and venue shall be proper in the
federal or state courts of the State of lllinois for any action arising under the terms of this License or
performance of it. The section headings of this License have been inserted for convenience of reference
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only and they shall not be referred to in the interpretation of this License. This License shall be read
with all changes of gender and number required by the context. Time shall be of the essence in this
License and each of the provisions of it.

. Licensor’s remedies under this License shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any remedy shall not

preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

All of the obligations, representations and warranties of the Licensee accruing under this License during
the existence of this License or any renewal or extension of it shall survive the termination or expiration
of the Term.

Licensor shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, delay or non-performance caused by accidents,
labor difficulties, acts of God, governmental action or by any other cause which is unavoidable or beyond

its reasonable control.

Licensee agrees that it shall not register this License or any notice or reference in respect of this License
against title.

All exhibits attached to this License are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth in this License.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License as of the last date of execution set forth below:

Licensor: lllinois Railway, LLC Licensee: City of Yorkville
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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Exhibit A

®
omnitrA)
POWERED BY RAIL & REAL ESTATE

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

I:l Check the box if this is a RUSH application. Add $1,500 USD (51,903 CAD) in addition to the application fee listed

below.

PIPELINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT

UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS

Proposed plans must be approved by the railroad and a crossing agreement must be fully executed between the railroad
and the applicant before construction can begin. Material and installation are to be in strict accordance with specifications of
the American Railway Engineering Association and requirements of the railroad. One original of this form shall be submitted,
accompanied by letter- sized Engineer Stamped Plans, elevation section of crossing from field survey, location in respect to Mile
Post, width of railroad right of way, location of adjacent structures that may impede the crossing, and all information
required in Figures 1 and 2 of AREMA Specifications, Part 5. If open cutting or tunneling is necessary, details of sheeting and
method of supporting tracks or driving tunnel shall be shown.

Provide location (i.e. address, city, street, railroad milepost} and engineer stamped plans of the proposed leased premises with
dimensions, coordinates and directions. Also depict any planned improvements on the leased premises with dimensions from
nearest track (may incur additional costs or agreements for above ground occupancy). In addition, annual fees will be assessed
pursuant to awritten lease agreement. Please return the completed application, proposed plans indicating the location of the
pipe, and a check for the non-refundable fee of $6,000 USD {$7,611 CAD).

Make check{s) payable to: OmniTRAX Inc.
C/O AR Real Estate Department
252 Clayton Street, 4 Floor
Denver, CO 80206

If the application is approved, the applicant agrees to reimburse property owner for any cost incurred by property owner
incident to installation, maintenance, and/or supervision necessitated by this installation and further agrees to assume all
liability for accidents or injuries which arise as a result of this installation as provided in the agreement to be executed.

Incomplete applications may result in processing delays. Applications submitted without the required fees will not be processed.

Piease note, if the submitted application and prints require review by any independent environmental (HAZMAT) or other
outside consultants, this review will be at applicant’s sole cost and in addition to the aforementioned fees.

***Canadian residents/businesses, this fee is a taxable supply, please include applicable GST***

STANDARD APPLICATION PROCESS IS 60 DAYS. REQUESTS FOR RUSH SERVICE: Once a COMPLETE application and required
fees are received, including the rush fee of $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD), a draft agreement will be made available for
review within twenty one {21) business days. Please be sure to mark the box above.

Once an executable agreement is submitted to you, the license must be fully negotiated and executed within thirty (30)
days. Thereafter, the application and materials will be archived and resubmission (including fees) will be required.

PLEASE INITIAL HERE INDICATING YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THIS POLICY: AMN
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Ommﬂ?y( APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

If you have not reviewed the Railroad’s Utility Accommodaticn Policy, please contact our Real Estate office at
omnitrax.real.estate@omnitrax.com or 303.398.0441 to receive a copy prior to submittal of this application

SECTION 1:

1. Complete Legal Name of Applicant: _Engineering Enterprises Inc.

2. Agreement to be inthe name of {if different from above): __ Ynited City of Yorkville

3. Type of Entity {please mark one): Corporation____LLC____Individual__ Municipality X___
Partnership___General____Limited____ Other

4. If applicable, state/province of incorporation ororganization: _1he United City of Yorkville, IL

5. Federal Tax Identification number (U.S. Leases):

6. Mailing Address:651 Prairie Pointe Dr., Yorkville, IL 60560

7. QOvernight Delivery Service Address (if different):

8. Contact Person:Adam Nocn Title: _Project Engineer

9. Phone No.: {__ 6303770-9915 Fax No.: (630 ) 466-6701

10. Email:ancon @eeiweb.com
11. Email Address Where Notices Can be Sentto:anoon@eeiweb.com
12. Billing Contact Name, Phone Number, and Address Required:

Adam Noon 630-770-9915

52 Wheeler Rd., Sugar Grove, IL 60554

13. Railroad Name:lllinois Railway
Nearest Milepost:IR: 50 DOT No.: __065033T

Track Station {from): Track Station (to):

Property Address REQUIRED:
308 W. Hydraulic Ave, Yorkville, IL 60560

Section: 32 Township: 37 Range: 7
City; Yorkville County; Kendall State: __IL
Geographical Coordinates Required
Latitude: 41.642432 Longitude: -88.450318
Located on the (N/S/E/W) s side of {landmark, intersection)

Adams S$t. and W. Hydraulic Ave.

SECTION 2:

All specifications meet or exceed Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Policy INITIALHERE:

OR Variance requested—PLEASE DESCRIBE IN DETAIL (attach separate sheet if necessary):

See attached variance letter.

s Temporary track support or rewrapping required? ( ) Yes i} No If yes, please describe:




410367.a

Agreement No. 410367

®
om""w( APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

& Wires, poles, obstructions to be relocated? { ) Yes {y#f No If yes, please describe

*  Product to be conveyed: Water

*  Flammable? ( }Yes (# No Temp

*  Max. WorkingPressure: 70 PSI. Field Test Pressure:____ 150  pg|.
Typetest: 2 Hour 150psi Pressure Test as described in Section 41-2.14 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer

Construction in lllinois
e Location of shut-off valve: W. Hydraulic Ave. and Adams 5t. as well as 312 Morgan 5t.

» PIPESPECIFICATIONS:  ANSI/AWWA A21,51/C151, ANSI/AWWA A21.4/C104

CARRIER PIPE CASING PIPE
Material Ductile Iron Steel
Material Specifications and Grade ANSI/AWWA A21.51/C151 Class 52 ASTM A139 (ANSI B36.10); Grade B
Min. Yield Strength of Mat. PSI 42,000 35,000
Mill Test PressurePSI 500 2,800
Inside Diameter 8in. 15.25in.
Wall Thickness 0.331in. 0.219in.
Outside Diameter 9.05in. 16 in.
Type of Seam
Laying Lengths 20 f. 20 ft.
Kind ofJoints Mechanical Welded
Total Length within RR R/O/W Soft. S0
VENTS: # 0 Size Ht. above ground
SEALS: Both ends, X One end BURY: Base of rail to top of casing 3.3 ft.o_in.
BURY (Not beneathtracks):iﬂ.o in. BURY (Roadway pipe}: 5.5 ft. 0 in.

CATHODIC PROTECTION: §/) Yes { }No

PROTECTIVE COATING: (4 Yes { } Na Kind_Bituminous
Type, size, and spacing of insulatars or supports: 2.5", Cascade Stainless Steel Casing Spacers, Every 10

e  Method ofInstallation: Dry Jacking and Boring
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(]
Ommi
POWERED BY RAIL & REAL ESTATE

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

By submitting this application for credit, you authorize OmniTRAX or affiliate, to make any inquiries necessary to determine credit worthiness. You
release your banking instruction release details that would assist to determine creditworthiness.

T hereby certify that the information contained herein is complete and accurate. This information has been firnished with the understanding that it is
to be used to determine the amount and conditions of the credit to be extended. Furthermore, I hereby authorize the financial institutions listed in this
credit application to release necessary information to the company for which credit is being applied for in order to verify the information contained
herein. Our terms of sale and service are NET 30 DAYS from the date listed on the invoice. Invoices that are beyond granted terms will be
assessed a late fee of 18% APR (1.5% monthly) additional Terms and Conditions apply. A $20.00 charge will apply for any NSF/Non-Sufficient
Checks.

Date: 11/26/24

Signature: __ Sgrer D COWIZESEYIA

Name Printed: _Adam Nocn

Title: __Project Engineer

Phone No.:_630-770-9915

Fax No: 630-466-6701

BE SURE TO RETURN THE COVER SHEET WITH YOUR APPLICATION
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PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE

THIS LICENSE (“License”) shall be effective on the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective
Date”), by lllinois Railway, LLC (“Licensor”) and City of Yorkville (“Licensee”). Licensor and Licensee may
sometimes be referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:
1. TERM:

This License shall take effect as of the Effective Date, and unless sooner terminated per the terms outlined
in Section 9 and 10 of this License, shall remain in effect regardless of performance or non-performance of any of
the covenants and agreements contained in this License and regardless of any fee having been paid in advance for
any period without regard to any loss or damage incurred by either Party as a result of such termination or
cancellation. Licensor will not execute this License until it receives a signed original from Licensee, and in no event
is entry under this License permitted until Licensor returns a fully-executed copy to Licensee.

2. LOCATION:

In consideration of the license fee or other sums of money Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor, and of
the covenants and agreements of Licensee as set forth in this License, Licensor hereby grants a license and
permission to Licensee to construct, install, use, maintain, repair, relocate, operate and replace a fresh water
Pipe Line, as more particularly described in Licensee’s application, marked Exhibit “A”, attached to this License
and made a part of it by this reference, situated on, across, along or over Licensor’s property at or near the City
of Yorkville, County of Kendall, and State of lllinois (the “Premises”). The term Pipe Line shall be deemed to
mean the actual line(s) and any and all appurtenances and that portion of Licensor’s property, in so far as they
relate to said Pipe Line. The location of the Pipe Line is more particularly described on the drawing marked
Exhibit “B”, attached to this License and made a part of it by this reference, but generally described as follows:

A 9.05" (inch) carrier inside 16" (inch) casing diameter, fresh water Pipe Line crossing
Licensor’s property, located at or near Mile Post No. 49.85, as shown on Exhibit “B”.

3. LICENSE FEE:

A. Licensee shall pay to Licensor as one time License Fee the sum of three thousand seven hundred dollars
(USD $3,700.00), payable in advance on or prior to the Effective Date of this License. Licensee shall pay
to Licensor any and all sales tax, if any and if applicable, which may occur as a result of the payment of
the above license or other fees payable under this License.

4. SPECIFICATIONS:
A. The Pipe Line shall be constructed, installed, used, maintained, repaired and operated in strict
accordance with any and all current requirements and specifications adopted by the American Railway

Engineering and Maintenance of Way Association, and in compliance with any and all law, statute,
regulation or order of any federal, state or municipal governmental body or any agency thereof or
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created thereby (collectively, “Laws”). Provided however, that all materials and workmanship employed
in the construction, installation, use, maintenance, repair and operation of the Pipe Line shall be subject
to the approval of the Licensor’s Chief Engineer or authorized representative.

B. An underground Pipe Line crossing under track(s) at a ninety degree (90°) angle, shall be encased in
conduit for a MINIMUM of forty-eight feet (48’), twenty-four feet (24’) on either side measured from
the centerline of the track(s) or the full width of Licensor’s property if less than forty-eight (48’) feet.
Crossings of a degree substantially greater or less than ninety degrees (90°) shall be encased in conduit
for the full width of the track structure. The top of the encasement pipe shall be a MINIMUM of five
and one half (5%’) feet beneath surface of ground at all points within Licensor’s property.

C. Any appurtenance to the Pipe Line shall be constructed and maintained to a MINIMUM clearance of no
less than fifteen (15’) feet from the centerline of any track(s). The side clearance of fifteen (15’) feet
shall be maintained for a height of twenty-seven feet (27’). All Pipe Line(s) shall be constructed, as nearly
as possible to cross under any track(s) at a right angle to said track(s).

D. Licensee shall, except in emergencies, give not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior written notice to
Licensor of the day, hour and location that it proposes to undertake any construction, installation, repair,
relocation, replacement or maintenance work to the Pipe Line or otherwise on the Premises and in the
event of an emergency shall notify Licensor as soon as possible. After completion of construction,
relocation, installation or replacement of the Pipe Line, Licensee shall be required to execute Licensor’s
standard Right of Entry for any maintenance or repair work on the Pipe Line that requires entry onto
Licensor’s property or right-of-way. The Right of Entry Permit fee shall be waived for emergency repair
and routine maintenance on the pipeline.

E. Licensee shall require each of its contractors and subcontractors to observe and conform to the
conditions and requirements specified in this License; and for the purposes of the safety, protective and
indemnification provisions of this License, such contractors and subcontractors, their agents, servants
and employees, and other persons on the Licensor property at the invitation of the Licensee, its
contractors or subcontractors, shall be deemed the agents or employees of the Licensee.

F. Licensee shall, at no expense to Licensor, obtain all permits and approvals required to exercise its rights
provided for pursuant to this License and Licensee shall install, maintain and operate its facilities in
accordance with all requirements of such permits, approvals, the Law and any lawful public authority.
Licensee shall be responsible for any taxes, assessments and charges made against the Pipe Line and the
construction or use of the Pipe Line or other of Licensee’s facilities on Licensor’s property or the
operation of any of them.

G. Licensor shall have the right, but not the duty, to furnish flagging or other protection or to perform work
to support its tracks or otherwise protect its property or facilities at any time, at Licensee’s sole risk and
expense.

5. PRESENT OCCUPATIONS:
Licensee shall make appropriate arrangements with any person or entity occupying Licensor’s property
which may be affected by the relocation, installation, construction or any maintenance or repair of the Pipe Line.

Licensee’s Pipe Line will not unreasonably interfere with the use of Licensor’s property, or create any undue
hardship on the person or entity occupying said property.

410368.a
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RISK, LIABILITY, INDEMNITY:

Licensee acknowledges that persons and property on or near the Premises are in constant danger of
injury, death or destruction, incident to the operation of the railroad tracks, whether by Licensor or
others; and Licensee accepts this License subject to such dangers.

a.

LICENSEE, AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION AND AS A CONDITION WITHOUT WHICH THIS LICENSE
WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN GRANTED, AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND SAVE HARMLESS
LICENSOR, ITS PARENTS, OWNERS, AND AFFILIATES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTNERS,
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MEMBERS,
MANAGERS, AGENTS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES (THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND TO
ASSUME ALL RISK, RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR DEATH OF, OR INJURY TO, ANY
PERSONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, PATRONS,
INVITEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES, AND FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO ANY
PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THAT BELONGING TO THE PARTIES (TOGETHER
WITH ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS INCURRED OR
SUSTAINED BY THE INDEMNITEES, WHETHER IN DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DEMANDS,
ACTIONS AND CAUSES OF ACTION OR IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNIFICATION
RIGHTS CONFERRED BY THIS LICENSE) ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER
OR DEGREE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO, OR RESULTING FROM
THE GRANT OF THIS LICENSE OR THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, RENEWAL,
ALTERATION, CHANGE, RELOCATION, EXISTENCE, PRESENCE, USE, OPERATION,
REPLACEMENT, OR REMOVAL OF ANY STRUCTURE INCIDENT TO IT, OR FROM ANY ACTIVITY
CONDUCTED ON OR OCCURRENCE ORIGINATING ON THE AREA COVERED BY THE LICENSE,
INCLUDING ANY TEMPORARY USAGE AREA, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROXIMATELY CAUSED
BY THE INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OR SOLE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF THE PARTY SEEKING
INDEMNIFICATION.

THE RISKS OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS AND LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY
ASSUMED BY LICENSEE UNDER THIS LICENSE, SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO,
CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, EMPLOYEES, OR INVITEES OF EITHER OF THE PARTIES,
AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS SHALL ARISE UNDER ANY
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACT OR FEDERAL EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY ACT.

LICENSEE SHALL, AT ITS SOLE COST AND EXPENSE, JOIN IN OR ASSUME, AT THE ELECTION AND
DEMAND OF LICENSOR, THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS LICENSE. THE WORD “LICENSOR” AS USED IN THIS INDEMNITY
SECTION SHALL INCLUDE THE ASSIGNS OF LICENSOR AND ANY OTHER RAILROAD COMPANY
THAT MAY BE OPERATING UPON AND OVER THE TRACKS IN THE VICINITY OF THE PREMISES.

AS A PRECONDITION TO LICENSEE’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION,
THE INDEMNITEES WILL (i) FULLY COOPERATE WITH LICENSEE IN ANY INVESTIGATION AND
PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH ALL INFORMATION IN THE POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE
INDEMNITEES RELATING TO ANY MATTER FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES SEEK
INDEMNIFICATION, AND (ii) PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH TIMELY NOTICE OF ANY MATTER OR
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INCIDENT FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES MAY MAKE A CLAIM FOR INDEMNIFICATION BY
LICENSEE.

7. INSURANCE:

A. Licensee shall purchase and maintain insurance as specified below covering the License, all the work,
services, and obligations assumed or performed hereunder, from the Effective Date until termination,
unless the duration is stated to be otherwise, with insurance companies assigned a current Financial
Strength Rating of at least A and Financial Size Category of X by A. M. Best Company:

i Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to limit of
$1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander
with an annual aggregate limit of no less than $2,000,000. Policy coverage is to be based on usual
Insurance Services Office policy forms to include, but not be limited to: Operations and Premises
Liability, Completed Operations and Products Liability, Personal Injury and Advertising Liability, and
Contractual Liability Insurance. Completed Operations coverage is to be maintained for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. General Liability
policies procured by Licensee shall be amended to delete all railroad exclusions including exclusions
for working on or within fifty feet (50) of any railroad property, and affecting any railroad bridge or
trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing (CG 24 17 endorsement or equivalent).

ii. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance providing statutory workers’
compensation benefits mandated under applicable state law and Employers’ Liability Insurance
subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident, $1,000,000
each employee for bodily injury by disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease.
If coverage is provided through a monopolistic state fund, a stop gap endorsement on either the
Commercial General Liability or Workers’ Compensation Policy is required to meet the Employers’
Liability Insurance requirement.

iii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Policy coverage shall be based on Insurance Services Office
policy forms referred to as Business Automobile Policy to cover motor vehicles owned, leased,
rented, hired or used on behalf of Licensee. If applicable to this License and applicable under federal
law, Licensee shall provide an MCS 90 endorsement.

iv. Umbrella Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to a limit of $4,000,000 each
occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander. Policy coverage
is to be at least as broad as primary coverages. Umbrella coverage is to be maintained for a period
of not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. Umbrella
Liability shall apply to Commercial General Liability, Employers’ Liability, and Business Automobile
Liability Insurances.

The required limits of insurance may be satisfied by a combination of Primary and Umbrella or Excess
Liability Insurance.

B. Allinsurance required of Licensee with the exception of Workers” Compensation and Employers’ Liability

shall include Licensor and any subsidiary, owner, parent or affiliates of Licensor, and their respective
partners, successors, assigns, legal representatives, officers, directors, members, managers, agents,
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shareholders, and employees (“Required Parties”) as additional insured and include wording which
states that the insurance shall be primary and not excess over or contributory with any insurance carried
by Licensor and its affiliates. With respect to Commercial General Liability Insurance, Required Parties
shall be included as additional insured for Ongoing Operations and for Completed Operations to the
extent permitted by law.

All insurance shall provide Licensor a minimum of thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of insurer’s
intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage.

If Licensee cannot obtain an occurrence based policy for any required coverage, the policy may be
written on a claims-made basis with a retroactive date on or before the Effective Date of this License.
Licensee shall maintain such policy on a continuous basis. If there is a change in insurance companies
or the policy is canceled or not renewed, Licensee shall purchase an extended reporting period of not
less than three (3) years after the License termination date.

Licensee shall file with Licensor on or before the Effective Date of this License a valid certificate of
insurance for all required insurance policies. Each certificate shall identify the Required Parties as
additional insured as required and state that Licensor shall receive a minimum of thirty (30) days’
advance written notice of insurer’s intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage. Licensee
shall supply updated certificates of insurance that clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in
the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as required by this License.

All insurance policies required of Licensee shall include a waiver of any right of subrogation written in
favor of the Required Parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee may self-insure for any of the above required insurance
coverages subject to the requirements specified in this paragraph. Licensee shall provide Licensor with
audited financial statements and Licensor may, at its discretion, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, deem such financial statements acceptable prior to authorizing Licensee to self-insure.
Licensee shall provide a letter of self-insurance to Licensor specifically stating which lines of coverage
are self-insured and the amount of self-insurance maintained. The amount of any excess insurance that
attaches to self-insurance below the required limits of insurance shall be identified in the letter and
evidenced on a certificate of insurance. This letter of self-insurance shall be signed by Licensee’s Risk
Manager or another designated authorized signatory. With respect to Workers’ Compensation, Licensee
shall also provide state-issued self-insured authorization documents to Licensor, where applicable by
state law.

Licensee represents that this License has been thoroughly reviewed by Licensee’s insurance agent or
broker who have been instructed by Licensee to procure the insurance coverage required by this License.
Upon signature of this License and renewal of insurance, if Licensee fails to maintain or provide evidence
to Licensor of any insurance coverage required under this License, Licensor may terminate this License
effective immediately.

Licensee’s compliance with obtaining the required insurance coverage shall in no way limit the
indemnification rights and obligations specified in this License.

WAIVER:
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Licensee waives the right to question the validity of this License or any of the terms and provisions of it,
or the right or power of Licensor to execute and enforce this License. This License is made without covenant on
the part of Licensor to warrant its title to the property involved with the Pipe Line, or to give or to defend
Licensee in the peaceful possession of the property and Licensee shall waive all right to claim damages in the
event Licensee shall be evicted, ejected or required to surrender possession of the property by anyone owning
or claiming title to or any interest in the property, or by reason of failure of title of Licensor, or for any other
cause whatsoever. Licensee further agrees to indemnify and save harmless Licensor and to assume all risk,
responsibility and liability (including any expenses, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred or sustained by Licensor)
arising from, growing out of, or in any manner or degree directly or indirectly attributable to or resulting from
any deficiency or insufficiency of Licensor’s title affecting the right of Licensor to make this grant.

9. REPAIRS AND RELOCATION:

A. Licensee will at all times maintain the Pipe Line in a safe and secure manner and in a condition
satisfactory to Licensor. Licensor may request Licensee to change the location of the Pipe Line, or any
part of it, or to make reasonable repairs or changes as the judgment of Licensor deems necessary in
order to avoid interference with or danger in the use or operation of Licensor’s railroad, or any of its
present or future appurtenances. In the event itis desired by Licensor to use its property or any portion
of it, occupied or impacted by the Pipe Line, then Licensee shall, at its sole expense, and within thirty
(30) days after notice from Licensor to do so, (or on shorter notice in case of an emergency), make
changes to the Pipe Line as required or remove the Pipe Line, or as much of the Pipe Line as is located
upon the portion of the property as required by Licensor.

B. If Licensee shall fail to perform any of its obligations contained in this License as to the maintenance of
safe conditions in and about the Pipe Line or to make any necessary repairs, or to relocate the Pipe Line,
then Licensor may cause such condition to be made safe, or change of location to be made, or repairs
to be made, or Pipe Line to be removed from Licensor’s property. Licensor acting as the agent of
Licensee, may perform such work as is necessary in the judgment of Licensor, and Licensee shall, on
demand, promptly reimburse Licensor the cost of the work, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the cost as a
charge for the supervision, accounting, and use of tools; or Licensor may terminate this License by giving
Licensee not less than ten (10) days advance written notice of its intention to do so.

C. Incase Licensor shall at any time, or from time to time, require the removal of only a portion of the Pipe
Line, this License shall continue in force and be applicable to the portion or portions of the Pipe Line
remaining from time to time until the entire Pipe Line has been removed and the License Fees or other
fees payable under this License shall be adjusted accordingly.

10. TERMINATON:

If Licensee fails to keep or perform any of Licensee’s covenants contained in this License, upon ninety
(90) days written notice to Licensee and an opportunity to cure with such cure being completed within such
ninety (90) day period or if such cure cannot be completed within ninety (90) days, in such time as necessary so
long as Licensee is diligently pursuing such cure and in no event longer than one hundred eighty (180) days,
Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License.

In addition to the foregoing, Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License and the rights granted

hereunder, after delivering to Licensee written notice of such termination no less than ninety (90) days prior to
each anniversary of the effective date thereof, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

410368.a
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o

If Licensee shall permanently discontinue the use of operations of the Pipe Line; or

b. If Licensor shall be required by any change in applicable Federal law after the Effective Date to
remove, relocate, reconstruct, or discontinue operation of Licensor’s railroad and any such
removal, relocation, reconstruction, or discontinuance of operation of Licensor’s railroad
cannot be accomplished without removal of the Pipeline; or

C. If Licensor determines and substantiates to Licensee that the Pipe Line endangers or threatens

Licensor’s employees or the safe operation or maintenance of the railroad.

RESTORATION:

Upon termination of this License, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of this License,

Licensee shall promptly remove the Pipe Line from Licensor’s property, and restore the property to its prior
condition, or a condition satisfactory to Licensor. If Licensee fails to remove the Pipe Line within ninety days
(90) after termination of this License, Licensor may remove same, and charge the expense of such removal to
the Licensee on the basis provided in Section 9.B of this License.

12.

410368.a

MISCELLANEOUS:

This License is executed by all Parties under current interpretation of any and all applicable Laws.
Further, each and every separate division (paragraph, clause, item, term, condition, covenant or
agreement) contained in this License shall have independent and severable status from each other
separate division, or combination of them, for the determination of legality, so that if any separate
division is determined to be unconstitutional, illegal, violative of trade or commerce, in contravention
of public policy, void, voidable, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, that separate division shall be
treated as a nullity, but such holding or determination shall have no effect upon the validity or
enforceability of each and every other separate division or any other combination of them.

In the event this License is part of a package of agreements for Licensee, this License and all other such
documents shall be read as compatible parts of the package and not in contradiction to each other, such
that in the event of apparent conflict in any duties under this License or the package of agreements,
Licensor shall designate which clause(s) shall survive or control any others.

Except as otherwise specified in this License, any notice or other communication required or permitted
by this License shall be in writing and (i) delivered by first class mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) deposited
into the custody of a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, as follows:

If to Licensor: If to Licensee:

ATTN: Real Estate ATTN: City of Yorkville
252 Clayton Street, 4™ Floor 651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Denver, Colorado 80206 Yorkville, IL 60560

Phone: (630) 770-9915
WITH A COPY TO:
ATTN: General Counsel
252 Clayton Street, 4th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80206
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No oral promises, oral agreements, or oral warranties shall be deemed a part of this License, nor shall
any alteration, amendment, supplement or waiver of any of the provisions of this License be binding
upon either Party, unless same be supplemented, altered, changed or amended by an instrument in
writing, signed by Licensor and Licensee.

This License is made subject to the rights previously or simultaneously granted by or through Licensor
for any surface, sub-surface or aerial uses antedating this License, including but not limited to, the
construction, maintenance, operation, renewal and/or relocation of fences, pipelines, communication
lines, power lines, railroad tracks and signals, and any and all appurtenances applicable to them.
Licensor excepts and reserves the right to grant additional uses of the same or similar nature subsequent
to the execution of this License, without payment of any sum for damages, so long as such use does not
unreasonably interfere with the use of Pipe Line by Licensee.

This License and all of the provisions contained in it shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and Licensee agrees to supply notice in writing to
Licensor of any name changes. Notwithstanding the forgoing, Licensee agrees not to assign this License
or any rights or privileges granted under it, without the prior written consent of Licensor, which it may
give at its sole discretion, and any and every attempted assignment without prior written consent shall
be void and of no effect. This covenant shall also apply whether any of the foregoing is made voluntarily
by Licensee or involuntarily in any proceeding at law or in equity to which Licensee may be a party,
whereby any of the rights, duties and obligations of License may be sold, transferred, conveyed,
encumbered, abrogated or in any manner altered without the prior notice to and consent of Licensor.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall remain liable to Licensor as a guarantor of Licensee’s
successor in interest to this License.

Nothing in this License shall be construed to place any responsibility on Licensor for the quality of the
construction, maintenance or other work performed on behalf of Licensee hereunder or for the
condition of any Licensee’s facilities.

Any approval given or supervision exercised by Licensor under this License, or failure of Licensor to
object to any work done, material used or method of construction, reconstruction or maintenance, shall
not be construed to relieve Licensee of its obligations under this License.

The failure of the Licensor to seek redress for any violation of or to insist upon the strict performance of
any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this License or any of the rules and regulations from time
to time issued by the Licensor, shall not prevent a subsequent act, which would have originally
constituted a violation, from having all of the force and effect of an original violation.

Licensee further indemnifies Licensor against any and all liens that may be placed against Licensor’s
property in the course of construction of this crossing, and agrees to immediately satisfy any liens so
placed.

In the event that Licensor shall incur any costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees and costs, in
enforcing Licensee’s covenants and agreements under this License, Licensee shall reimburse Licensor
for all such costs, expenses and legal fees as an additional fee under this License.

This License shall be governed under the laws of the State of lllinois, and venue shall be proper in the
federal or state courts of the State of lllinois for any action arising under the terms of this License or
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performance of it. The section headings of this License have been inserted for convenience of reference
only and they shall not be referred to in the interpretation of this License. This License shall be read
with all changes of gender and number required by the context. Time shall be of the essence in this
License and each of the provisions of it.

. Licensor’s remedies under this License shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any remedy shall not

preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

All of the obligations, representations and warranties of the Licensee accruing under this License during
the existence of this License or any renewal or extension of it shall survive the termination or expiration
of the Term.

Licensor shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, delay or non-performance caused by accidents,
labor difficulties, acts of God, governmental action or by any other cause which is unavoidable or beyond

its reasonable control.

Licensee agrees that it shall not register this License or any notice or reference in respect of this License
against title.

All exhibits attached to this License are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth in this License.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License as of the last date of execution set forth below:

Licensor: lllinois Railway, LLC Licensee: City of Yorkville
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

410368.a
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Exhibit A

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

D Check the box if this is a RUSH application. Add $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD) in addition to the application fee listed
below.

PIPELINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS

Proposed plans must be approved by the railroad and a crossing agreement must be fully executed between the railroad
and the applicant before construction can begin. Material and installation are to be in strict accordance with specifications of
the American Railway Engineering Association and requirements of the railroad. One original of this form shall be submitted,
accompanied by letter- sized Engineer Stamped Plans, elevation section of crossing from field survey, location in respect to Mile
Post, width of railroad right of way, location of adjacent structures that may impede the crossing, and all information
required in Figures 1 and 2 of AREMA Specifications, Part 5. If open cutting or tunneling is necessary, details of sheeting and
method of supporting tracks or driving tunnel shall be shown.

Provide location (i.e. address, city, street, railroad milepost) and engineer stamped plans of the proposed leased premises with
dimensions, coordinates and directions. Also depict any planned improvements on the leased premises with dimensions from

nearest track (may incur additional costs or agreements for above ground occupancy). In addition, annual fees will be assessed
pursuant to awritten lease agreement. Please return the completed application, proposed plans indicating the location of the
pipe, and a check for the non-refundable fee of $6,000 USD {$7,611 CAD).

Make check(s) payable to: OmniTRAX Inc.
C/O AR Real Estate Department
252 Clayton Street, 4™ Floor
Denver, CO 80206

If the application is approved, the applicant agrees to reimburse property owner for any cost incurred by property owner
incident to installation, maintenance, and/or supervision necessitated by this installation and further agrees to assume all
liability for accidents or injuries which arise as a result of this installation as provided in the agreement to be executed.

Incomplete applications may result in processing delays. Applications submitted without the required fees will not be processed.

Please note, if the submitted application and prints require review by any independent environmental (HAZMAT) or other
outside consultants, this review will be at applicant’s sole cost and in addition to the aforementioned fees.

***Canadian residents/businesses, this fee is a taxable supply, please include applicable GST***

STANDARD APPLICATION PROCESS 1S 60 DAYS. REQUESTS FOR RUSH SERVICE: Once a COMPLETE application and required
fees are received, including the rush fee of $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD), a draft agreement will be made available for
review within twenty one (21) business days. Please be sure to mark the box above.

Once an executable agreement is submitted to you, the license must be fully negotiated and executed within thirty (30)
days. Thereafter, the application and materials will be archived and resubmission {including fees) will be required.

PLEASE INITIAL HERE INDICATING YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THIS POLICY: AMN
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APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

if you have not reviewed the Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Policy, please contact our Real Estate office at
omnitrax.real.estate@omnitrax.com or 303.398.0441 to receive a copy prior to submittal of this application

SECTION1:

1. Complete Legal Name of Applicant: Engineering Enlerprises Inc.

2. Agreement to be in the name of (if different from above): United City of Yorkville

3. Type of Entity {please mark one): Corporation____LLC___Individual____Municipality X ___
Partnership____General____Limited _ Other

4. If applicable, state/province of incorporation or organization: The United City of Yorkville

5. Federal Tax Identification number (U.S. Leases):

6. Mailing Address: 651 Prairie Pointe Drive Yorkville, IL 60560

7. Overnight Delivery Service Address (if different):

8. Contact Person: Adam Noon Title: Project Engineer

9. Phone No.: {630 ) 770-9915 Fax No.:( 630 ) 4666701

10. Email: _anoon@eeiweb.com
11. Email Address Where Notices Can be Sent to: anoon@eeiweb.com

12. Billing Contact Name, Phone Number, and Address Required:
Adam Noon  630-770-9915

52 Whealer Rd., Sugar Grove, IL 60554

13. Railroad Name: llinois Railway

Nearest Milepost; IR:50 DOT No.; 065032L
Track Station (from): Track Station (to):
Property Address REQUIRED:

201 State St, Yorkville, IL 60560

Section: 32 Township: 37 Range:7
C|ty Yorkville County: Kendall State: IL

Geographical Coordinates Required
Latitude: 41.642378 Longitude: -88 449325

Located on the (N/S/E/W) S side of (landmark, intersection)
W. Hydraulic Ave. and State St.

SECTION 2:
All specifications meet or exceed Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Policy INITIAL HERE:

OR Variance requested — PLEASE DESCRIBE IN DETAIL {attach separate sheet if necessary):

See attached variance letter.

e Temporary track support or rewrapping required? ) Yes {4 No If yes, please describe:




Agreement No. 410368

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

*  Wires, poles, obstructions to be relocated? { ) Yes () No If yes, please describe

e Product to be conveyed: Water
¢ Flammable? { )Yes {) No Temp

e Max. WorkingPressure: 70 PSI. Field Test Pressure: 150 PSI.
2 Hour 150 psi Pressure Tesi as described in Section 41-2 14 of the Slandard Specifications for Water and Sewer Construction n lilinois

State St. and W. Hydraulic Ave. and State St. and W. Van Emmon St.

Typetest:

e Location of shut-offvalve:
o  PIPESPECIFICATIONS: ANSI/AWWA A21.51/C151, ANSI/AWWA A21.4/C104

CARRIER PIPE CASING PIPE

Material Ductile Iron Steel

Material Specifications and Grade ANSUAWWA A21.51/C151 Class 52 ASTM A139 (ANSI B36.10); Grade B

Min. Yield Strength of Mat. PSI 42,000 35,000

Mill Test PressurePS 500 2,800

Inside Diameter 8in. 15.25 in.

wall Thickness 0.33in. 0.219in.

Outside Diameter 9.05in. 16 in.

Type of Seam

Laying Lengths 20 ft. 20 ft.

Kind ofloints Mechanical Welded

Total Length within RR R/O/W 77 ft. 77t
VENTS: # 0 Size Ht. aboveground
SEALS: Bothends X One end BURY: Base of rail to top of casing 5.5 ft._o_in.
BURY {Not beneath tracks): i ft. 0 in. BURY (Roadway pipe): 5.5 ft. 0 in.

CATHODIC PROTECTION: {4 Yes ( )No
PROTECTIVE COATING: (/) Yes { )No Kind: Bituminous

Type, size, and spacing of insulators or supports: 2.5" Cascade Stainless Steel Casing Spacers, Every 10'

e Method of Installation: Dry Jacking and Boring
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APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

By submitting this application for credit, you authorize OmniTRAX or affiliate, to make any inquiries necessary to determine credit worthiness. You
release your banking instruction release details that would assist to determine credit worthiness.

1 hereby certify that the information contained herein is compiete and accurate. This information has been furnished with the understanding that it is
1o be used to determine the amount and conditions of the credit to be extended. Furthermore, I hereby authorize the financial institutions listed in this
credit application to release necessary information to the company for which credit is being applied for in order to verify the information contained
herein. Our terms of sale and service are NET 30 DAYS from the date listed on the invoice. Invoices that are beyond granted terms will be
assessed a late fee of 18% APR (1.5% monthly) additional Terms and Conditions apply. A $20.00 charge will apply for any NSF/Non-Sufficient
Checks.

Date: IOI ?3/ % L'
Signature: MM/

Name Printed: _Adam Noon

Title: __Project Engineer

Phone No.:_630-770-9915

Fax No: 630-466-6701

BE SURE TO RETURN THE COVER SHEET WITH YOUR APPLICATION
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Agreement No. 410369

PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE

THIS LICENSE (“License”) shall be effective on the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective
Date”), by lllinois Railway, LLC (“Licensor”) and City of Yorkville (“Licensee”). Licensor and Licensee may
sometimes be referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:
1. TERM:

This License shall take effect as of the Effective Date, and unless sooner terminated per the terms outlined
in Section 9 and 10 of this License, shall remain in effect regardless of performance or non-performance of any of
the covenants and agreements contained in this License and regardless of any fee having been paid in advance for
any period without regard to any loss or damage incurred by either Party as a result of such termination or
cancellation. Licensor will not execute this License until it receives a signed original from Licensee, and in no event
is entry under this License permitted until Licensor returns a fully-executed copy to Licensee.

2. LOCATION:

In consideration of the license fee or other sums of money Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor, and of
the covenants and agreements of Licensee as set forth in this License, Licensor hereby grants a license and
permission to Licensee to construct, install, use, maintain, repair, relocate, operate and replace a fresh water
Pipe Line, as more particularly described in Licensee’s application, marked Exhibit “A”, attached to this License
and made a part of it by this reference, situated on, across, along or over Licensor’s property at or near the City
of Yorkville, County of Kendall, and State of lllinois (the “Premises”). The term Pipe Line shall be deemed to
mean the actual line(s) and any and all appurtenances and that portion of Licensor’s property, in so far as they
relate to said Pipe Line. The location of the Pipe Line is more particularly described on the drawing marked
Exhibit “B”, attached to this License and made a part of it by this reference, but generally described as follows:

A 9.05" (inch) carrier inside 16" (inch) casing diameter, fresh water Pipe Line crossing
Licensor’s property, located at or near Mile Post No. 49.80, as shown on Exhibit “B”.

3. LICENSE FEE:

A. Licensee shall pay to Licensor as one time License Fee the sum of three thousand seven hundred dollars
(USD $3,700.00), payable in advance on or prior to the Effective Date of this License. Licensee shall pay
to Licensor any and all sales tax, if any and if applicable, which may occur as a result of the payment of
the above license or other fees payable under this License.

4. SPECIFICATIONS:
A. The Pipe Line shall be constructed, installed, used, maintained, repaired and operated in strict
accordance with any and all current requirements and specifications adopted by the American Railway

Engineering and Maintenance of Way Association, and in compliance with any and all law, statute,
regulation or order of any federal, state or municipal governmental body or any agency thereof or
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created thereby (collectively, “Laws”). Provided however, that all materials and workmanship employed
in the construction, installation, use, maintenance, repair and operation of the Pipe Line shall be subject
to the approval of the Licensor’s Chief Engineer or authorized representative.

B. An underground Pipe Line crossing under track(s) at a ninety degree (90°) angle, shall be encased in
conduit for a MINIMUM of forty-eight feet (48’), twenty-four feet (24’) on either side measured from
the centerline of the track(s) or the full width of Licensor’s property if less than forty-eight (48’) feet.
Crossings of a degree substantially greater or less than ninety degrees (90°) shall be encased in conduit
for the full width of the track structure. The top of the encasement pipe shall be a MINIMUM of five
and one half (5%’) feet beneath surface of ground at all points within Licensor’s property.

C. Any appurtenance to the Pipe Line shall be constructed and maintained to a MINIMUM clearance of no
less than fifteen (15’) feet from the centerline of any track(s). The side clearance of fifteen (15’) feet
shall be maintained for a height of twenty-seven feet (27’). All Pipe Line(s) shall be constructed, as nearly
as possible to cross under any track(s) at a right angle to said track(s).

D. Licensee shall, except in emergencies, give not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior written notice to
Licensor of the day, hour and location that it proposes to undertake any construction, installation, repair,
relocation, replacement or maintenance work to the Pipe Line or otherwise on the Premises and in the
event of an emergency shall notify Licensor as soon as possible. After completion of construction,
relocation, installation or replacement of the Pipe Line, Licensee shall be required to execute Licensor’s
standard Right of Entry for any maintenance or repair work on the Pipe Line that requires entry onto
Licensor’s property or right-of-way. The Right of Entry Permit fee shall be waived for emergency repair
and routine maintenance on the pipeline.

E. Licensee shall require each of its contractors and subcontractors to observe and conform to the
conditions and requirements specified in this License; and for the purposes of the safety, protective and
indemnification provisions of this License, such contractors and subcontractors, their agents, servants
and employees, and other persons on the Licensor property at the invitation of the Licensee, its
contractors or subcontractors, shall be deemed the agents or employees of the Licensee.

F. Licensee shall, at no expense to Licensor, obtain all permits and approvals required to exercise its rights
provided for pursuant to this License and Licensee shall install, maintain and operate its facilities in
accordance with all requirements of such permits, approvals, the Law and any lawful public authority.
Licensee shall be responsible for any taxes, assessments and charges made against the Pipe Line and the
construction or use of the Pipe Line or other of Licensee’s facilities on Licensor’s property or the
operation of any of them.

G. Licensor shall have the right, but not the duty, to furnish flagging or other protection or to perform work
to support its tracks or otherwise protect its property or facilities at any time, at Licensee’s sole risk and
expense.

5. PRESENT OCCUPATIONS:
Licensee shall make appropriate arrangements with any person or entity occupying Licensor’s property
which may be affected by the relocation, installation, construction or any maintenance or repair of the Pipe Line.

Licensee’s Pipe Line will not unreasonably interfere with the use of Licensor’s property, or create any undue
hardship on the person or entity occupying said property.

410369.a
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RISK, LIABILITY, INDEMNITY:

Licensee acknowledges that persons and property on or near the Premises are in constant danger of
injury, death or destruction, incident to the operation of the railroad tracks, whether by Licensor or
others; and Licensee accepts this License subject to such dangers.

a.

LICENSEE, AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION AND AS A CONDITION WITHOUT WHICH THIS LICENSE
WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN GRANTED, AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND SAVE HARMLESS
LICENSOR, ITS PARENTS, OWNERS, AND AFFILIATES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTNERS,
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MEMBERS,
MANAGERS, AGENTS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES (THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND TO
ASSUME ALL RISK, RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR DEATH OF, OR INJURY TO, ANY
PERSONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, PATRONS,
INVITEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES, AND FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO ANY
PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THAT BELONGING TO THE PARTIES (TOGETHER
WITH ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS INCURRED OR
SUSTAINED BY THE INDEMNITEES, WHETHER IN DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DEMANDS,
ACTIONS AND CAUSES OF ACTION OR IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNIFICATION
RIGHTS CONFERRED BY THIS LICENSE) ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER
OR DEGREE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO, OR RESULTING FROM
THE GRANT OF THIS LICENSE OR THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, RENEWAL,
ALTERATION, CHANGE, RELOCATION, EXISTENCE, PRESENCE, USE, OPERATION,
REPLACEMENT, OR REMOVAL OF ANY STRUCTURE INCIDENT TO IT, OR FROM ANY ACTIVITY
CONDUCTED ON OR OCCURRENCE ORIGINATING ON THE AREA COVERED BY THE LICENSE,
INCLUDING ANY TEMPORARY USAGE AREA, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROXIMATELY CAUSED
BY THE INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OR SOLE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF THE PARTY SEEKING
INDEMNIFICATION.

THE RISKS OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS AND LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY
ASSUMED BY LICENSEE UNDER THIS LICENSE, SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO,
CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, EMPLOYEES, OR INVITEES OF EITHER OF THE PARTIES,
AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS SHALL ARISE UNDER ANY
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACT OR FEDERAL EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY ACT.

LICENSEE SHALL, AT ITS SOLE COST AND EXPENSE, JOIN IN OR ASSUME, AT THE ELECTION AND
DEMAND OF LICENSOR, THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS LICENSE. THE WORD “LICENSOR” AS USED IN THIS INDEMNITY
SECTION SHALL INCLUDE THE ASSIGNS OF LICENSOR AND ANY OTHER RAILROAD COMPANY
THAT MAY BE OPERATING UPON AND OVER THE TRACKS IN THE VICINITY OF THE PREMISES.

AS A PRECONDITION TO LICENSEE’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION,
THE INDEMNITEES WILL (i) FULLY COOPERATE WITH LICENSEE IN ANY INVESTIGATION AND
PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH ALL INFORMATION IN THE POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE
INDEMNITEES RELATING TO ANY MATTER FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES SEEK
INDEMNIFICATION, AND (ii) PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH TIMELY NOTICE OF ANY MATTER OR
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INCIDENT FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES MAY MAKE A CLAIM FOR INDEMNIFICATION BY
LICENSEE.

7. INSURANCE:

A. Licensee shall purchase and maintain insurance as specified below covering the License, all the work,
services, and obligations assumed or performed hereunder, from the Effective Date until termination,
unless the duration is stated to be otherwise, with insurance companies assigned a current Financial
Strength Rating of at least A and Financial Size Category of X by A. M. Best Company:

i Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to limit of
$1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander
with an annual aggregate limit of no less than $2,000,000. Policy coverage is to be based on usual
Insurance Services Office policy forms to include, but not be limited to: Operations and Premises
Liability, Completed Operations and Products Liability, Personal Injury and Advertising Liability, and
Contractual Liability Insurance. Completed Operations coverage is to be maintained for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. General Liability
policies procured by Licensee shall be amended to delete all railroad exclusions including exclusions
for working on or within fifty feet (50) of any railroad property, and affecting any railroad bridge or
trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing (CG 24 17 endorsement or equivalent).

ii. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance providing statutory workers’
compensation benefits mandated under applicable state law and Employers’ Liability Insurance
subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident, $1,000,000
each employee for bodily injury by disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease.
If coverage is provided through a monopolistic state fund, a stop gap endorsement on either the
Commercial General Liability or Workers’ Compensation Policy is required to meet the Employers’
Liability Insurance requirement.

iii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Policy coverage shall be based on Insurance Services Office
policy forms referred to as Business Automobile Policy to cover motor vehicles owned, leased,
rented, hired or used on behalf of Licensee. If applicable to this License and applicable under federal
law, Licensee shall provide an MCS 90 endorsement.

iv. Umbrella Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to a limit of $4,000,000 each
occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander. Policy coverage
is to be at least as broad as primary coverages. Umbrella coverage is to be maintained for a period
of not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. Umbrella
Liability shall apply to Commercial General Liability, Employers’ Liability, and Business Automobile
Liability Insurances.

The required limits of insurance may be satisfied by a combination of Primary and Umbrella or Excess
Liability Insurance.

B. Allinsurance required of Licensee with the exception of Workers” Compensation and Employers’ Liability

shall include Licensor and any subsidiary, owner, parent or affiliates of Licensor, and their respective
partners, successors, assigns, legal representatives, officers, directors, members, managers, agents,

410369.a



410369.a

Agreement No. 410369

shareholders, and employees (“Required Parties”) as additional insured and include wording which
states that the insurance shall be primary and not excess over or contributory with any insurance carried
by Licensor and its affiliates. With respect to Commercial General Liability Insurance, Required Parties
shall be included as additional insured for Ongoing Operations and for Completed Operations to the
extent permitted by law.

All insurance shall provide Licensor a minimum of thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of insurer’s
intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage.

If Licensee cannot obtain an occurrence based policy for any required coverage, the policy may be
written on a claims-made basis with a retroactive date on or before the Effective Date of this License.
Licensee shall maintain such policy on a continuous basis. If there is a change in insurance companies
or the policy is canceled or not renewed, Licensee shall purchase an extended reporting period of not
less than three (3) years after the License termination date.

Licensee shall file with Licensor on or before the Effective Date of this License a valid certificate of
insurance for all required insurance policies. Each certificate shall identify the Required Parties as
additional insured as required and state that Licensor shall receive a minimum of thirty (30) days’
advance written notice of insurer’s intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage. Licensee
shall supply updated certificates of insurance that clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in
the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as required by this License.

All insurance policies required of Licensee shall include a waiver of any right of subrogation written in
favor of the Required Parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee may self-insure for any of the above required insurance
coverages subject to the requirements specified in this paragraph. Licensee shall provide Licensor with
audited financial statements and Licensor may, at its discretion, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, deem such financial statements acceptable prior to authorizing Licensee to self-insure.
Licensee shall provide a letter of self-insurance to Licensor specifically stating which lines of coverage
are self-insured and the amount of self-insurance maintained. The amount of any excess insurance that
attaches to self-insurance below the required limits of insurance shall be identified in the letter and
evidenced on a certificate of insurance. This letter of self-insurance shall be signed by Licensee’s Risk
Manager or another designated authorized signatory. With respect to Workers’ Compensation, Licensee
shall also provide state-issued self-insured authorization documents to Licensor, where applicable by
state law.

Licensee represents that this License has been thoroughly reviewed by Licensee’s insurance agent or
broker who have been instructed by Licensee to procure the insurance coverage required by this License.
Upon signature of this License and renewal of insurance, if Licensee fails to maintain or provide evidence
to Licensor of any insurance coverage required under this License, Licensor may terminate this License
effective immediately.

Licensee’s compliance with obtaining the required insurance coverage shall in no way limit the
indemnification rights and obligations specified in this License.

WAIVER:
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Licensee waives the right to question the validity of this License or any of the terms and provisions of it,
or the right or power of Licensor to execute and enforce this License. This License is made without covenant on
the part of Licensor to warrant its title to the property involved with the Pipe Line, or to give or to defend
Licensee in the peaceful possession of the property and Licensee shall waive all right to claim damages in the
event Licensee shall be evicted, ejected or required to surrender possession of the property by anyone owning
or claiming title to or any interest in the property, or by reason of failure of title of Licensor, or for any other
cause whatsoever. Licensee further agrees to indemnify and save harmless Licensor and to assume all risk,
responsibility and liability (including any expenses, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred or sustained by Licensor)
arising from, growing out of, or in any manner or degree directly or indirectly attributable to or resulting from
any deficiency or insufficiency of Licensor’s title affecting the right of Licensor to make this grant.

9. REPAIRS AND RELOCATION:

A. Licensee will at all times maintain the Pipe Line in a safe and secure manner and in a condition
satisfactory to Licensor. Licensor may request Licensee to change the location of the Pipe Line, or any
part of it, or to make reasonable repairs or changes as the judgment of Licensor deems necessary in
order to avoid interference with or danger in the use or operation of Licensor’s railroad, or any of its
present or future appurtenances. In the event itis desired by Licensor to use its property or any portion
of it, occupied or impacted by the Pipe Line, then Licensee shall, at its sole expense, and within thirty
(30) days after notice from Licensor to do so, (or on shorter notice in case of an emergency), make
changes to the Pipe Line as required or remove the Pipe Line, or as much of the Pipe Line as is located
upon the portion of the property as required by Licensor.

B. If Licensee shall fail to perform any of its obligations contained in this License as to the maintenance of
safe conditions in and about the Pipe Line or to make any necessary repairs, or to relocate the Pipe Line,
then Licensor may cause such condition to be made safe, or change of location to be made, or repairs
to be made, or Pipe Line to be removed from Licensor’s property. Licensor acting as the agent of
Licensee, may perform such work as is necessary in the judgment of Licensor, and Licensee shall, on
demand, promptly reimburse Licensor the cost of the work, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the cost as a
charge for the supervision, accounting, and use of tools; or Licensor may terminate this License by giving
Licensee not less than ten (10) days advance written notice of its intention to do so.

C. Incase Licensor shall at any time, or from time to time, require the removal of only a portion of the Pipe
Line, this License shall continue in force and be applicable to the portion or portions of the Pipe Line
remaining from time to time until the entire Pipe Line has been removed and the License Fees or other
fees payable under this License shall be adjusted accordingly.

10. TERMINATON:

If Licensee fails to keep or perform any of Licensee’s covenants contained in this License, upon ninety
(90) days written notice to Licensee and an opportunity to cure with such cure being completed within such
ninety (90) day period or if such cure cannot be completed within ninety (90) days, in such time as necessary so
long as Licensee is diligently pursuing such cure and in no event longer than one hundred eighty (180) days,
Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License.

In addition to the foregoing, Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License and the rights granted

hereunder, after delivering to Licensee written notice of such termination no less than ninety (90) days prior to
each anniversary of the effective date thereof, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

410369.a
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o

If Licensee shall permanently discontinue the use of operations of the Pipe Line; or

b. If Licensor shall be required by any change in applicable Federal law after the Effective Date to
remove, relocate, reconstruct, or discontinue operation of Licensor’s railroad and any such
removal, relocation, reconstruction, or discontinuance of operation of Licensor’s railroad
cannot be accomplished without removal of the Pipeline; or

C. If Licensor determines and substantiates to Licensee that the Pipe Line endangers or threatens

Licensor’s employees or the safe operation or maintenance of the railroad.

RESTORATION:

Upon termination of this License, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of this License,

Licensee shall promptly remove the Pipe Line from Licensor’s property, and restore the property to its prior
condition, or a condition satisfactory to Licensor. If Licensee fails to remove the Pipe Line within ninety days
(90) after termination of this License, Licensor may remove same, and charge the expense of such removal to
the Licensee on the basis provided in Section 9.B of this License.

12.

410369.a

MISCELLANEOUS:

This License is executed by all Parties under current interpretation of any and all applicable Laws.
Further, each and every separate division (paragraph, clause, item, term, condition, covenant or
agreement) contained in this License shall have independent and severable status from each other
separate division, or combination of them, for the determination of legality, so that if any separate
division is determined to be unconstitutional, illegal, violative of trade or commerce, in contravention
of public policy, void, voidable, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, that separate division shall be
treated as a nullity, but such holding or determination shall have no effect upon the validity or
enforceability of each and every other separate division or any other combination of them.

In the event this License is part of a package of agreements for Licensee, this License and all other such
documents shall be read as compatible parts of the package and not in contradiction to each other, such
that in the event of apparent conflict in any duties under this License or the package of agreements,
Licensor shall designate which clause(s) shall survive or control any others.

Except as otherwise specified in this License, any notice or other communication required or permitted
by this License shall be in writing and (i) delivered by first class mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) deposited
into the custody of a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, as follows:

If to Licensor: If to Licensee:

ATTN: Real Estate ATTN: City of Yorkville
252 Clayton Street, 4™ Floor 651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Denver, Colorado 80206 Yorkville, IL 60560

Phone: (630) 770-9915
WITH A COPY TO:
ATTN: General Counsel
252 Clayton Street, 4th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80206
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No oral promises, oral agreements, or oral warranties shall be deemed a part of this License, nor shall
any alteration, amendment, supplement or waiver of any of the provisions of this License be binding
upon either Party, unless same be supplemented, altered, changed or amended by an instrument in
writing, signed by Licensor and Licensee.

This License is made subject to the rights previously or simultaneously granted by or through Licensor
for any surface, sub-surface or aerial uses antedating this License, including but not limited to, the
construction, maintenance, operation, renewal and/or relocation of fences, pipelines, communication
lines, power lines, railroad tracks and signals, and any and all appurtenances applicable to them.
Licensor excepts and reserves the right to grant additional uses of the same or similar nature subsequent
to the execution of this License, without payment of any sum for damages, so long as such use does not
unreasonably interfere with the use of Pipe Line by Licensee.

This License and all of the provisions contained in it shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and Licensee agrees to supply notice in writing to
Licensor of any name changes. Notwithstanding the forgoing, Licensee agrees not to assign this License
or any rights or privileges granted under it, without the prior written consent of Licensor, which it may
give at its sole discretion, and any and every attempted assignment without prior written consent shall
be void and of no effect. This covenant shall also apply whether any of the foregoing is made voluntarily
by Licensee or involuntarily in any proceeding at law or in equity to which Licensee may be a party,
whereby any of the rights, duties and obligations of License may be sold, transferred, conveyed,
encumbered, abrogated or in any manner altered without the prior notice to and consent of Licensor.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall remain liable to Licensor as a guarantor of Licensee’s
successor in interest to this License.

Nothing in this License shall be construed to place any responsibility on Licensor for the quality of the
construction, maintenance or other work performed on behalf of Licensee hereunder or for the
condition of any Licensee’s facilities.

Any approval given or supervision exercised by Licensor under this License, or failure of Licensor to
object to any work done, material used or method of construction, reconstruction or maintenance, shall
not be construed to relieve Licensee of its obligations under this License.

The failure of the Licensor to seek redress for any violation of or to insist upon the strict performance of
any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this License or any of the rules and regulations from time
to time issued by the Licensor, shall not prevent a subsequent act, which would have originally
constituted a violation, from having all of the force and effect of an original violation.

Licensee further indemnifies Licensor against any and all liens that may be placed against Licensor’s
property in the course of construction of this crossing, and agrees to immediately satisfy any liens so
placed.

In the event that Licensor shall incur any costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees and costs, in
enforcing Licensee’s covenants and agreements under this License, Licensee shall reimburse Licensor
for all such costs, expenses and legal fees as an additional fee under this License.

This License shall be governed under the laws of the State of lllinois, and venue shall be proper in the
federal or state courts of the State of lllinois for any action arising under the terms of this License or
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performance of it. The section headings of this License have been inserted for convenience of reference
only and they shall not be referred to in the interpretation of this License. This License shall be read
with all changes of gender and number required by the context. Time shall be of the essence in this
License and each of the provisions of it.

. Licensor’s remedies under this License shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any remedy shall not

preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

All of the obligations, representations and warranties of the Licensee accruing under this License during
the existence of this License or any renewal or extension of it shall survive the termination or expiration
of the Term.

Licensor shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, delay or non-performance caused by accidents,
labor difficulties, acts of God, governmental action or by any other cause which is unavoidable or beyond

its reasonable control.

Licensee agrees that it shall not register this License or any notice or reference in respect of this License
against title.

All exhibits attached to this License are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth in this License.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License as of the last date of execution set forth below:

Licensor: lllinois Railway, LLC Licensee: City of Yorkville
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

410369.a



410369.a

Agreement No. 410369

Exhibit A

®
Omm
POWERED BY RAIL & REAL ESTATE

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

|:| Check the box if this is a RUSH application. Add $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD) in addition to the application fee listed

below.

PIPELINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS

Proposed plans must be approved by the railroad and a crossing agreement must be fully executed between the railroad
and the applicant before construction can begin. Material and installation are to be in strict accordance with specifications of
the American Railway Engineering Association and requirements of the railroad. One original of this form shall be submitted,
accompanied by letter- sized Engineer Stamped Plans, elevation section of crossing from field survey, location in respect to Mile
Post, width of railroad right of way, location of adjacent structures that may impede the crossing, and all information
required in Figures 1 and 2 of AREMA Specifications, Part 5. If open cutting or tunneling is necessary, details of sheeting and
method of supporting tracks or driving tunnel shall be shown.

Provide location (i.e. address, city, street, railroad milepost) and engineer stamped plans of the proposed leased premises with
dimensions, coordinates and directions. Also depict any planned improvements on the leased premises with dimensions from
nearest track (may incur additional costs or agreements for above ground occupancy). In addition, annual fees will be assessed
pursuant to awritten lease agreement. Please return the completed application, proposed plans indicating the location of the
pipe, and a check for the non-refundable fee of $6,000 USD {$7,611 CAD).

Make check(s) payable to: OmniTRAX Inc.
C/O AR Real Estate Department
252 Clayton Street, 4" Floor
Denver, CO 80206

If the application is approved, the applicant agrees to reimburse property owner for any cost incurred by property owner
incident to installation, maintenance, and/or supervision necessitated by this installation and further agrees to assume all
liability for accidents or injuries which arise as a result of this installation as provided in the agreement ta be executed.

Incomplete applications may result in processing delays. Applications submitted without the required fees will not be processed.

Please nate, if the submitted application and prints require review by any independent environmental (HAZMAT) or other
outside consuitants, this review wifl be at applicant’s sole cost and in addition to the aforementioned fees.

***Canadian residents/businesses, this fee is a taxable supply, please include applicable GST***

STANDARD APPLICATION PROCESS IS 60 DAYS. REQUESTS FOR RUSH SERVICE: Once a COMPLETE application and required
fees are received, including the rush fee of $1,500 USD {$1,903 CAD), a draft agreement will be made available for
review within twenty one {21) business days. Please be sure to mark the box above.

Once an executable agreement is submitted to you, the license must be fully negotiated and executed within thirty (30}
days. Thereafter, the application and materials will be archived and resubmission (including fees} will be required.

PLEASE INITIAL HERE INDICATING YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THIS POLICY: AMN
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APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

If you have not reviewed the Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Policy, please contact our Real Estate office at
omnitrax.real.estate@ormnitrax.com or 303.398.0441 to receive a copy prior to submittal of this application

SECTION 1.

1. Complete Legal Name of Applicant: Engineering Enterprises Inc.

2. Agreement to be in the name of (if different from above): United City of Yorkville

3. Type of Entity (please mark one): Corporation__LLC_lndividual__Municipality_x_
Partnership___ General____Limited___ Other

4. If applicable, state/province of incorporation or organization: The United City of Yorkville, IL

5. Federal Tax Identification number (U.S. Leases):

6. Mailing Address:651 Prairie Pointe Dr., Yorkville, IL 60560

7. Overnight Delivery Service Address (if different):

8. Contact Person:Adam Noon Title: Project Engineer

9. PhoneNo.: ( 630) 7709915 Fax No.:{ 630 ) 466-6701

10. Email:ancon@eeiweb.com
11. Email Address Where Notices Can be Sent to:ancon@eeiweb.com

12. Billing Contact Name, Phone Number, and Address Required:
Adam Noon 630-770-9915

52 Wheeler Rd., Sugar Grove, IL 60554

13. Railroad Name:lllinois Railroad
Nearest Milepost:IR:50 DOT No.: __065031E
Track Station {from): Track Station {to):

Property Address REQUIRED:
204 W. Hydraulic Ave, Yorkville, IL 60560

Section:___ 32 Township: 37 Range:_ 7
City: Yorkville County: Kendall State: IL
Geographical Coordinates Required
Latitude: 41.642330 Longitude: -88.448359
Located on the (N/S/E/W) S side of (landmark, intersection)

W, Hydraulic Ave. and S. Main St.

SECTION 2:
Allspecifications meet or exceed Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Policy INITIAL HERE:

OR Variance requested — PLEASE DESCRIBE IN DETAIL (attach separate sheet if necessary):
See variance letter.

e Temporary track support or rewrapping required? ( ) Yes {4 No If yes, please describe:
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APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303} 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

e Wires, poles, obstructions to be relocated? () Yes {4 No If yes, please describe

e  Product to be conveyed: Water

e Flammable? ( }Yes (} No Temp

e  Max. WorkingPressure:_70 PSI. Field Test Pressure: 150 PS!.
Type Test: 2 Hour 150psi Pressure Test as described in Section 41-2.14 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer

Construction in lllinois
e Location of shut-off valve: W. Hydraulic Ave. and S. Main St. as well as S. Main St. and Madison St.

o  PIPE SPECIFICATIONS: ANSI/AWWA A21.51/C151, ANSI/AWWA A21.4/C104
CARRIER PIPE CASING PIPE

Material Ductile Iron Steel
Material Specificationsand Grade ANSI/AWWA A21.51/C151 Class 52 ASTM A139 (ANSI B36.10); Grade B
Min. Yield Strength of Mat. PSI 42,000 35,000
Mill Test PressurePS| 500 2,800
Inside Diameter 8in. 15.25in.
Wall Thickness 0.331in. 0.219in.
Outside Diameter 9.05in. 16in.
Type of Seam
Laying Lengths 20t 20 ft.
Kind ofJoints Mechanical Welded
Total Length within RR R/O/W 731t 73 ft

VENTS: #0 Size Ht. above ground

SEALS: Both ends X_ One end BURY: Base of rail to top of casing 3.5 ft.o__in.

BURY {Not beneathtracks): 5.5 __ft. Y in. BURY {Roadway pipe): 5.5 i 0 in.

CATHODIC PROTECTION: ¢/} Yes { )No

PROTECFIVE COATING: () Yes { ) No kind; Bituminous

Type, size, and spacing of insulators or supports: 2.5" Cascade Stainless Steel Casing Spacers, Every 10'

o Method ofinstallation: DYy Jacking and Boring
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®
Ommu
POWERED BY RAIL & REAL ESTATE

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

By submitting this application for credit, you authorize OmniTRAX or affiliate, to make any inquiries necessary to determine credit worthiness. You
release your banking instruction release details that would assist to determine creditworthiness.

T hereby certify that the information contained herein is complete and accurate. This information has been firnished with the understanding that it is
to be used to determine the amount and conditions of the credit to be extended. Furthermore, T hereby authorize the financial institutions listed in this
credit application to release necessary information to the company for which credit is being applied for in order to verify the information contained
herein. Owr terms of sale and service are NET 30 DAYS from the date listed on the invoice. Invoices that are beyond granted terms will be
assessed a late fee of 18% APR (1.5% monthly) additional Terms and Conditions apply. A $20.00 charge will apply for any NSF/Non-Sufficient
Checks.

Date: 11/26/24

Signature: Sigher ID: CWIZESBY13...

Name Printed: Adam Noon

Title: Project E ng_;ineer

Phone No.. 630-770-9915

Fax No: 630-466-6701

BE SURE TO RETURN THE COVER SHEET WITH YOUR APPLICATION
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EXHIBIT B
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Agreement No. 410370

PIPE LINE CROSSING LICENSE

THIS LICENSE (“License”) shall be effective on the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective
Date”), by lllinois Railway, LLC (“Licensor”) and City of Yorkville (“Licensee”). Licensor and Licensee may
sometimes be referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:
1. TERM:

This License shall take effect as of the Effective Date, and unless sooner terminated per the terms outlined
in Section 9 and 10 of this License, shall remain in effect regardless of performance or non-performance of any of
the covenants and agreements contained in this License and regardless of any fee having been paid in advance for
any period without regard to any loss or damage incurred by either Party as a result of such termination or
cancellation. Licensor will not execute this License until it receives a signed original from Licensee, and in no event
is entry under this License permitted until Licensor returns a fully-executed copy to Licensee.

2. LOCATION:

In consideration of the license fee or other sums of money Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor, and of
the covenants and agreements of Licensee as set forth in this License, Licensor hereby grants a license and
permission to Licensee to construct, install, use, maintain, repair, relocate, operate and replace a fresh water
Pipe Line, as more particularly described in Licensee’s application, marked Exhibit “A”, attached to this License
and made a part of it by this reference, situated on, across, along or over Licensor’s property at or near the City
of Yorkville, County of Kendall, and State of lllinois (the “Premises”). The term Pipe Line shall be deemed to
mean the actual line(s) and any and all appurtenances and that portion of Licensor’s property, in so far as they
relate to said Pipe Line. The location of the Pipe Line is more particularly described on the drawing marked
Exhibit “B”, attached to this License and made a part of it by this reference, but generally described as follows:

A 9.05" (inch) carrier inside 16" (inch) casing diameter, fresh water Pipe Line crossing
Licensor’s property, located at or near Mile Post No. 49.76, as shown on Exhibit “B”.

3. LICENSE FEE:

A. Licensee shall pay to Licensor as one time License Fee the sum of three thousand seven hundred dollars
(USD $3,700.00), payable in advance on or prior to the Effective Date of this License. Licensee shall pay
to Licensor any and all sales tax, if any and if applicable, which may occur as a result of the payment of
the above license or other fees payable under this License.

4. SPECIFICATIONS:
A. The Pipe Line shall be constructed, installed, used, maintained, repaired and operated in strict
accordance with any and all current requirements and specifications adopted by the American Railway

Engineering and Maintenance of Way Association, and in compliance with any and all law, statute,
regulation or order of any federal, state or municipal governmental body or any agency thereof or
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created thereby (collectively, “Laws”). Provided however, that all materials and workmanship employed
in the construction, installation, use, maintenance, repair and operation of the Pipe Line shall be subject
to the approval of the Licensor’s Chief Engineer or authorized representative.

B. An underground Pipe Line crossing under track(s) at a ninety degree (90°) angle, shall be encased in
conduit for a MINIMUM of forty-eight feet (48’), twenty-four feet (24’) on either side measured from
the centerline of the track(s) or the full width of Licensor’s property if less than forty-eight (48’) feet.
Crossings of a degree substantially greater or less than ninety degrees (90°) shall be encased in conduit
for the full width of the track structure. The top of the encasement pipe shall be a MINIMUM of five
and one half (5%’) feet beneath surface of ground at all points within Licensor’s property.

C. Any appurtenance to the Pipe Line shall be constructed and maintained to a MINIMUM clearance of no
less than fifteen (15’) feet from the centerline of any track(s). The side clearance of fifteen (15’) feet
shall be maintained for a height of twenty-seven feet (27’). All Pipe Line(s) shall be constructed, as nearly
as possible to cross under any track(s) at a right angle to said track(s).

D. Licensee shall, except in emergencies, give not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior written notice to
Licensor of the day, hour and location that it proposes to undertake any construction, installation, repair,
relocation, replacement or maintenance work to the Pipe Line or otherwise on the Premises and in the
event of an emergency shall notify Licensor as soon as possible. After completion of construction,
relocation, installation or replacement of the Pipe Line, Licensee shall be required to execute Licensor’s
standard Right of Entry for any maintenance or repair work on the Pipe Line that requires entry onto
Licensor’s property or right-of-way. The Right of Entry Permit fee shall be waived for emergency repair
and routine maintenance on the pipeline.

E. Licensee shall require each of its contractors and subcontractors to observe and conform to the
conditions and requirements specified in this License; and for the purposes of the safety, protective and
indemnification provisions of this License, such contractors and subcontractors, their agents, servants
and employees, and other persons on the Licensor property at the invitation of the Licensee, its
contractors or subcontractors, shall be deemed the agents or employees of the Licensee.

F. Licensee shall, at no expense to Licensor, obtain all permits and approvals required to exercise its rights
provided for pursuant to this License and Licensee shall install, maintain and operate its facilities in
accordance with all requirements of such permits, approvals, the Law and any lawful public authority.
Licensee shall be responsible for any taxes, assessments and charges made against the Pipe Line and the
construction or use of the Pipe Line or other of Licensee’s facilities on Licensor’s property or the
operation of any of them.

G. Licensor shall have the right, but not the duty, to furnish flagging or other protection or to perform work
to support its tracks or otherwise protect its property or facilities at any time, at Licensee’s sole risk and
expense.

5. PRESENT OCCUPATIONS:
Licensee shall make appropriate arrangements with any person or entity occupying Licensor’s property
which may be affected by the relocation, installation, construction or any maintenance or repair of the Pipe Line.

Licensee’s Pipe Line will not unreasonably interfere with the use of Licensor’s property, or create any undue
hardship on the person or entity occupying said property.
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RISK, LIABILITY, INDEMNITY:

Licensee acknowledges that persons and property on or near the Premises are in constant danger of
injury, death or destruction, incident to the operation of the railroad tracks, whether by Licensor or
others; and Licensee accepts this License subject to such dangers.

a.

LICENSEE, AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION AND AS A CONDITION WITHOUT WHICH THIS LICENSE
WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN GRANTED, AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND SAVE HARMLESS
LICENSOR, ITS PARENTS, OWNERS, AND AFFILIATES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTNERS,
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MEMBERS,
MANAGERS, AGENTS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES (THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND TO
ASSUME ALL RISK, RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR DEATH OF, OR INJURY TO, ANY
PERSONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, PATRONS,
INVITEES AND LICENSEES OF THE PARTIES, AND FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO ANY
PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THAT BELONGING TO THE PARTIES (TOGETHER
WITH ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS INCURRED OR
SUSTAINED BY THE INDEMNITEES, WHETHER IN DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DEMANDS,
ACTIONS AND CAUSES OF ACTION OR IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNIFICATION
RIGHTS CONFERRED BY THIS LICENSE) ARISING FROM, GROWING OUT OF, OR IN ANY MANNER
OR DEGREE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED BY, ATTRIBUTABLE TO, OR RESULTING FROM
THE GRANT OF THIS LICENSE OR THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, RENEWAL,
ALTERATION, CHANGE, RELOCATION, EXISTENCE, PRESENCE, USE, OPERATION,
REPLACEMENT, OR REMOVAL OF ANY STRUCTURE INCIDENT TO IT, OR FROM ANY ACTIVITY
CONDUCTED ON OR OCCURRENCE ORIGINATING ON THE AREA COVERED BY THE LICENSE,
INCLUDING ANY TEMPORARY USAGE AREA, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROXIMATELY CAUSED
BY THE INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OR SOLE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF THE PARTY SEEKING
INDEMNIFICATION.

THE RISKS OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS AND LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY
ASSUMED BY LICENSEE UNDER THIS LICENSE, SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO,
CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, EMPLOYEES, OR INVITEES OF EITHER OF THE PARTIES,
AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH INJURY TO OR DEATH OF PERSONS SHALL ARISE UNDER ANY
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACT OR FEDERAL EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY ACT.

LICENSEE SHALL, AT ITS SOLE COST AND EXPENSE, JOIN IN OR ASSUME, AT THE ELECTION AND
DEMAND OF LICENSOR, THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS LICENSE. THE WORD “LICENSOR” AS USED IN THIS INDEMNITY
SECTION SHALL INCLUDE THE ASSIGNS OF LICENSOR AND ANY OTHER RAILROAD COMPANY
THAT MAY BE OPERATING UPON AND OVER THE TRACKS IN THE VICINITY OF THE PREMISES.

AS A PRECONDITION TO LICENSEE’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION,
THE INDEMNITEES WILL (i) FULLY COOPERATE WITH LICENSEE IN ANY INVESTIGATION AND
PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH ALL INFORMATION IN THE POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE
INDEMNITEES RELATING TO ANY MATTER FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES SEEK
INDEMNIFICATION, AND (ii) PROVIDE LICENSEE WITH TIMELY NOTICE OF ANY MATTER OR
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INCIDENT FOR WHICH THE INDEMNITEES MAY MAKE A CLAIM FOR INDEMNIFICATION BY
LICENSEE.

7. INSURANCE:

A. Licensee shall purchase and maintain insurance as specified below covering the License, all the work,
services, and obligations assumed or performed hereunder, from the Effective Date until termination,
unless the duration is stated to be otherwise, with insurance companies assigned a current Financial
Strength Rating of at least A and Financial Size Category of X by A. M. Best Company:

i Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to limit of
$1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander
with an annual aggregate limit of no less than $2,000,000. Policy coverage is to be based on usual
Insurance Services Office policy forms to include, but not be limited to: Operations and Premises
Liability, Completed Operations and Products Liability, Personal Injury and Advertising Liability, and
Contractual Liability Insurance. Completed Operations coverage is to be maintained for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. General Liability
policies procured by Licensee shall be amended to delete all railroad exclusions including exclusions
for working on or within fifty feet (50) of any railroad property, and affecting any railroad bridge or
trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing (CG 24 17 endorsement or equivalent).

ii. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance providing statutory workers’
compensation benefits mandated under applicable state law and Employers’ Liability Insurance
subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident, $1,000,000
each employee for bodily injury by disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease.
If coverage is provided through a monopolistic state fund, a stop gap endorsement on either the
Commercial General Liability or Workers’ Compensation Policy is required to meet the Employers’
Liability Insurance requirement.

iii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance subject to a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Policy coverage shall be based on Insurance Services Office
policy forms referred to as Business Automobile Policy to cover motor vehicles owned, leased,
rented, hired or used on behalf of Licensee. If applicable to this License and applicable under federal
law, Licensee shall provide an MCS 90 endorsement.

iv. Umbrella Liability Insurance written on an occurrence basis subject to a limit of $4,000,000 each
occurrence for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, libel and/or slander. Policy coverage
is to be at least as broad as primary coverages. Umbrella coverage is to be maintained for a period
of not less than three (3) years after the termination or cancellation of this License. Umbrella
Liability shall apply to Commercial General Liability, Employers’ Liability, and Business Automobile
Liability Insurances.

The required limits of insurance may be satisfied by a combination of Primary and Umbrella or Excess
Liability Insurance.

B. Allinsurance required of Licensee with the exception of Workers” Compensation and Employers’ Liability

shall include Licensor and any subsidiary, owner, parent or affiliates of Licensor, and their respective
partners, successors, assigns, legal representatives, officers, directors, members, managers, agents,
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shareholders, and employees (“Required Parties”) as additional insured and include wording which
states that the insurance shall be primary and not excess over or contributory with any insurance carried
by Licensor and its affiliates. With respect to Commercial General Liability Insurance, Required Parties
shall be included as additional insured for Ongoing Operations and for Completed Operations to the
extent permitted by law.

All insurance shall provide Licensor a minimum of thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of insurer’s
intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage.

If Licensee cannot obtain an occurrence based policy for any required coverage, the policy may be
written on a claims-made basis with a retroactive date on or before the Effective Date of this License.
Licensee shall maintain such policy on a continuous basis. If there is a change in insurance companies
or the policy is canceled or not renewed, Licensee shall purchase an extended reporting period of not
less than three (3) years after the License termination date.

Licensee shall file with Licensor on or before the Effective Date of this License a valid certificate of
insurance for all required insurance policies. Each certificate shall identify the Required Parties as
additional insured as required and state that Licensor shall receive a minimum of thirty (30) days’
advance written notice of insurer’s intent to cancel or otherwise terminate policy coverage. Licensee
shall supply updated certificates of insurance that clearly evidence the continuation of all coverage in
the same manner, limits of protection, and scope of coverage as required by this License.

All insurance policies required of Licensee shall include a waiver of any right of subrogation written in
favor of the Required Parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee may self-insure for any of the above required insurance
coverages subject to the requirements specified in this paragraph. Licensee shall provide Licensor with
audited financial statements and Licensor may, at its discretion, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, deem such financial statements acceptable prior to authorizing Licensee to self-insure.
Licensee shall provide a letter of self-insurance to Licensor specifically stating which lines of coverage
are self-insured and the amount of self-insurance maintained. The amount of any excess insurance that
attaches to self-insurance below the required limits of insurance shall be identified in the letter and
evidenced on a certificate of insurance. This letter of self-insurance shall be signed by Licensee’s Risk
Manager or another designated authorized signatory. With respect to Workers’ Compensation, Licensee
shall also provide state-issued self-insured authorization documents to Licensor, where applicable by
state law.

Licensee represents that this License has been thoroughly reviewed by Licensee’s insurance agent or
broker who have been instructed by Licensee to procure the insurance coverage required by this License.
Upon signature of this License and renewal of insurance, if Licensee fails to maintain or provide evidence
to Licensor of any insurance coverage required under this License, Licensor may terminate this License
effective immediately.

Licensee’s compliance with obtaining the required insurance coverage shall in no way limit the
indemnification rights and obligations specified in this License.

WAIVER:
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Licensee waives the right to question the validity of this License or any of the terms and provisions of it,
or the right or power of Licensor to execute and enforce this License. This License is made without covenant on
the part of Licensor to warrant its title to the property involved with the Pipe Line, or to give or to defend
Licensee in the peaceful possession of the property and Licensee shall waive all right to claim damages in the
event Licensee shall be evicted, ejected or required to surrender possession of the property by anyone owning
or claiming title to or any interest in the property, or by reason of failure of title of Licensor, or for any other
cause whatsoever. Licensee further agrees to indemnify and save harmless Licensor and to assume all risk,
responsibility and liability (including any expenses, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred or sustained by Licensor)
arising from, growing out of, or in any manner or degree directly or indirectly attributable to or resulting from
any deficiency or insufficiency of Licensor’s title affecting the right of Licensor to make this grant.

9. REPAIRS AND RELOCATION:

A. Licensee will at all times maintain the Pipe Line in a safe and secure manner and in a condition
satisfactory to Licensor. Licensor may request Licensee to change the location of the Pipe Line, or any
part of it, or to make reasonable repairs or changes as the judgment of Licensor deems necessary in
order to avoid interference with or danger in the use or operation of Licensor’s railroad, or any of its
present or future appurtenances. In the event itis desired by Licensor to use its property or any portion
of it, occupied or impacted by the Pipe Line, then Licensee shall, at its sole expense, and within thirty
(30) days after notice from Licensor to do so, (or on shorter notice in case of an emergency), make
changes to the Pipe Line as required or remove the Pipe Line, or as much of the Pipe Line as is located
upon the portion of the property as required by Licensor.

B. If Licensee shall fail to perform any of its obligations contained in this License as to the maintenance of
safe conditions in and about the Pipe Line or to make any necessary repairs, or to relocate the Pipe Line,
then Licensor may cause such condition to be made safe, or change of location to be made, or repairs
to be made, or Pipe Line to be removed from Licensor’s property. Licensor acting as the agent of
Licensee, may perform such work as is necessary in the judgment of Licensor, and Licensee shall, on
demand, promptly reimburse Licensor the cost of the work, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the cost as a
charge for the supervision, accounting, and use of tools; or Licensor may terminate this License by giving
Licensee not less than ten (10) days advance written notice of its intention to do so.

C. Incase Licensor shall at any time, or from time to time, require the removal of only a portion of the Pipe
Line, this License shall continue in force and be applicable to the portion or portions of the Pipe Line
remaining from time to time until the entire Pipe Line has been removed and the License Fees or other
fees payable under this License shall be adjusted accordingly.

10. TERMINATON:

If Licensee fails to keep or perform any of Licensee’s covenants contained in this License, upon ninety
(90) days written notice to Licensee and an opportunity to cure with such cure being completed within such
ninety (90) day period or if such cure cannot be completed within ninety (90) days, in such time as necessary so
long as Licensee is diligently pursuing such cure and in no event longer than one hundred eighty (180) days,
Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License.

In addition to the foregoing, Licensor shall have the right to terminate this License and the rights granted

hereunder, after delivering to Licensee written notice of such termination no less than ninety (90) days prior to
each anniversary of the effective date thereof, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:
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o

If Licensee shall permanently discontinue the use of operations of the Pipe Line; or

b. If Licensor shall be required by any change in applicable Federal law after the Effective Date to
remove, relocate, reconstruct, or discontinue operation of Licensor’s railroad and any such
removal, relocation, reconstruction, or discontinuance of operation of Licensor’s railroad
cannot be accomplished without removal of the Pipeline; or

C. If Licensor determines and substantiates to Licensee that the Pipe Line endangers or threatens

Licensor’s employees or the safe operation or maintenance of the railroad.

RESTORATION:

Upon termination of this License, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of this License,

Licensee shall promptly remove the Pipe Line from Licensor’s property, and restore the property to its prior
condition, or a condition satisfactory to Licensor. If Licensee fails to remove the Pipe Line within ninety days
(90) after termination of this License, Licensor may remove same, and charge the expense of such removal to
the Licensee on the basis provided in Section 9.B of this License.

12.

410370

MISCELLANEOUS:

This License is executed by all Parties under current interpretation of any and all applicable Laws.
Further, each and every separate division (paragraph, clause, item, term, condition, covenant or
agreement) contained in this License shall have independent and severable status from each other
separate division, or combination of them, for the determination of legality, so that if any separate
division is determined to be unconstitutional, illegal, violative of trade or commerce, in contravention
of public policy, void, voidable, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, that separate division shall be
treated as a nullity, but such holding or determination shall have no effect upon the validity or
enforceability of each and every other separate division or any other combination of them.

In the event this License is part of a package of agreements for Licensee, this License and all other such
documents shall be read as compatible parts of the package and not in contradiction to each other, such
that in the event of apparent conflict in any duties under this License or the package of agreements,
Licensor shall designate which clause(s) shall survive or control any others.

Except as otherwise specified in this License, any notice or other communication required or permitted
by this License shall be in writing and (i) delivered by first class mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) deposited
into the custody of a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, as follows:

If to Licensor: If to Licensee:

ATTN: Real Estate ATTN: City of Yorkville
252 Clayton Street, 4™ Floor 651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Denver, Colorado 80206 Yorkville, IL 60560

Phone: (630) 770-9915
WITH A COPY TO:
ATTN: General Counsel
252 Clayton Street, 4th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80206
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No oral promises, oral agreements, or oral warranties shall be deemed a part of this License, nor shall
any alteration, amendment, supplement or waiver of any of the provisions of this License be binding
upon either Party, unless same be supplemented, altered, changed or amended by an instrument in
writing, signed by Licensor and Licensee.

This License is made subject to the rights previously or simultaneously granted by or through Licensor
for any surface, sub-surface or aerial uses antedating this License, including but not limited to, the
construction, maintenance, operation, renewal and/or relocation of fences, pipelines, communication
lines, power lines, railroad tracks and signals, and any and all appurtenances applicable to them.
Licensor excepts and reserves the right to grant additional uses of the same or similar nature subsequent
to the execution of this License, without payment of any sum for damages, so long as such use does not
unreasonably interfere with the use of Pipe Line by Licensee.

This License and all of the provisions contained in it shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and Licensee agrees to supply notice in writing to
Licensor of any name changes. Notwithstanding the forgoing, Licensee agrees not to assign this License
or any rights or privileges granted under it, without the prior written consent of Licensor, which it may
give at its sole discretion, and any and every attempted assignment without prior written consent shall
be void and of no effect. This covenant shall also apply whether any of the foregoing is made voluntarily
by Licensee or involuntarily in any proceeding at law or in equity to which Licensee may be a party,
whereby any of the rights, duties and obligations of License may be sold, transferred, conveyed,
encumbered, abrogated or in any manner altered without the prior notice to and consent of Licensor.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall remain liable to Licensor as a guarantor of Licensee’s
successor in interest to this License.

Nothing in this License shall be construed to place any responsibility on Licensor for the quality of the
construction, maintenance or other work performed on behalf of Licensee hereunder or for the
condition of any Licensee’s facilities.

Any approval given or supervision exercised by Licensor under this License, or failure of Licensor to
object to any work done, material used or method of construction, reconstruction or maintenance, shall
not be construed to relieve Licensee of its obligations under this License.

The failure of the Licensor to seek redress for any violation of or to insist upon the strict performance of
any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this License or any of the rules and regulations from time
to time issued by the Licensor, shall not prevent a subsequent act, which would have originally
constituted a violation, from having all of the force and effect of an original violation.

Licensee further indemnifies Licensor against any and all liens that may be placed against Licensor’s
property in the course of construction of this crossing, and agrees to immediately satisfy any liens so
placed.

In the event that Licensor shall incur any costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees and costs, in
enforcing Licensee’s covenants and agreements under this License, Licensee shall reimburse Licensor
for all such costs, expenses and legal fees as an additional fee under this License.

This License shall be governed under the laws of the State of lllinois, and venue shall be proper in the
federal or state courts of the State of lllinois for any action arising under the terms of this License or
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performance of it. The section headings of this License have been inserted for convenience of reference
only and they shall not be referred to in the interpretation of this License. This License shall be read
with all changes of gender and number required by the context. Time shall be of the essence in this
License and each of the provisions of it.

. Licensor’s remedies under this License shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any remedy shall not

preclude the exercise of any other remedy.

All of the obligations, representations and warranties of the Licensee accruing under this License during
the existence of this License or any renewal or extension of it shall survive the termination or expiration
of the Term.

Licensor shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, delay or non-performance caused by accidents,
labor difficulties, acts of God, governmental action or by any other cause which is unavoidable or beyond

its reasonable control.

Licensee agrees that it shall not register this License or any notice or reference in respect of this License
against title.

All exhibits attached to this License are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth in this License.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License as of the last date of execution set forth below:

Licensor: lllinois Railway, LLC Licensee: City of Yorkville
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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Exhibit A

®
ommTrRAN

APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

|:| Check the box if this is a RUSH application. Add $1,500 USD ($1,903 CAD) in addition to the application fee listed
below.

PIPELINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS

Proposed plans must be approved by the railroad and a crossing agreement must be fully executed between the railroad
and the applicant before construction can begin. Material and installation are to be in strict accordance with specifications of
the American Railway Engineering Association and requirements of the railroad. One original of this form shall be submitted,
accompanied by letter- sized Engineer Stamped Plans, elevation section of crossing from field survey, location in respect to Mile
Post, width of railroad right of way, location of adjacent structures that may impede the crossing, and all information
required in Figures 1 and 2 of AREMA Specifications, Part 5. If open cutting or tunneling is necessary, details of sheeting and
method of supporting tracks or driving tunnel shall be shown.

Provide location (i.e. address, city, street, railroad milepost) and engineer stamped plans of the proposed leased premises with
dimensions, coordinates and directions. Also depict any planned improvements on the leased premises with dimensions from

nearest track {may incur additional costs or agreements for above ground occupancy). In addition, annual fees will be assessed
pursuant to awritten lease agreement. Please return the completed application, proposed plans indicating the location of the
pipe, and a check for the non-refundable fee of $6,000 USD {$7,611 CAD).

Make check(s} payable to: OmniTRAX Inc.
C/O AR Real Estate Department
252 Clayton Street, 4'" Floor
Denver, CO 80206

If the application is approved, the applicant agrees to reimburse property owner for any cost incurred by property owner
incident to installation, maintenance, and/or supervision necessitated by this installation and further agrees to assume all
liability for accidents or injuries which arise as a result of this installation as provided in the agreement to be executed.

Incomplete applications may result in processing delays. Applications submitted without the required fees will not be processed.

Please note, if the submitted application and prints require review by any independent environmental (HAZMAT) or other
outside consuitants, this review will be at applicant’s sole cost and in addition to the aforementioned fees.

***Canadian residents/businesses, this fee is a taxable supply, please include applicable GST***

STANDARD APPLICATION PROCESS IS 60 DAYS. REQUESTS FOR RUSH SERVICE: Once a COMPLETE application and required
fees are received, including the rush fee of $1,500 USD {$1,903 CAD), a draft agreement will be made available for
review within twenty one {21) business days. Please be sure to mark the box above.

Once an executable agreement is submitted to you, the license must be fully negotiated and executed within thirty (30)
days. Thereafter, the application and materials will be archived and resubmission (including fees} will be required.

AMN

PLEASE INITIAL HERE INDICATING YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THIS POLICY:
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Omm'lw( APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

If you have not reviewed the Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Policy, please contact our Real Estate office at
omnitrax.real.estate@omnitrax.com or 303.398.0441 to receive a copy prior to submittal of this application

SECTION 1:

1. Complete Legal Name of Applicant: Engineering Enterprises Inc.

2. Agreement to be inthe name of (if different from above): United City of Yorkville

3. Type of Entity {please mark one): Corporation LLC Individual Municipality X
Partnership General Limited Other

4. If applicable, state/province of incorporation ororganization: The United City of Yorkville

5. Federal Tax Identificaticn number (U.S. Leases):

6. Mailing Address: 651 Prairie Pointe Dr, Yorkville, IL 60560

7. Overnight Delivery Service Address (if different):

8. Contact Person: Adam Noon Title: Project Engineer

9. PhoneNo.: [___630) 770-9915 Fax No.:{ 630) 466-6701

10. Email: anoon @eeiweb.com

11. Email Address Where Notices Can be Sentto: anocon@eeiweb.com

12. Billing Contact Name, Phone Number, and Address Required:
Adam Noon  630-770-8915

52 Wheeler Rd, Sugar Grove, IL 60554

13. Railroad Name: lllinois Railway
Nearest Milepost: R:50 DOT No.; 065030K

Track Station (from): Track Station (to):

Property Address REQUIRED:
110 W. Hydraulic Ave, Yorkville, IL 60560

Section: 32 Township: 37 Range: 7
C|ty Yorkville County: Kendall State: IL
Geographical Coordinates Required
Latitude: 41.642309 Longitude: -88.447665
Located on the (N/S/E/wW) W side of (landmark, intersection)

W. Hydraulic Ave. and Rt. 47

SECTION 2:

All specifications meet or exceed Railroad’s Utility Accommodation Palicy INITIAL HERE:

OR Variance requested—PLEASE DESCRIBE IN DETAIL (attach separate sheet if necessary}:

See attached variance letter.

s Temporary track support or rewrapping required? { } Yes (¢ No If yes, please describe:
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®
o""'"w( APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

*  Wires, poles, obstructions to be relocated? () Yes (y No If yes, please describe

*  Product to be conveyed: Water

+  Flammable? { }Yes {4 No Temp

s Max. WorkingPressure; 70 PSI. Field Test Pressure: 150 PSI.

2 Hour 150psi Pressure Test as described in Section 41-2.14 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Construction in lllinois

125 W. Hydraulic Ave and 116 W. Hydraulic Ave.

Typetest:

*  Location of shut-offvalve:

*  PIPESPECIFICATIONS: ANSI/AWWA A21.51/C151, ANSIJAWWA A21.4/C104

CARRIER PIPE CASING PIPE
Material Ductile Iron Steel
Material Specificationsand Grade ANSVAVWA A21.51/C151 Class 52 ASTM A139 (ANSI B36.10); Grade B
Min. Yield Strength ofMat. PSI 42,000 35,000
Mill Test PressurePSI 500 2,800
Inside Diameter 8in. 15.25in.
Wall Thickness 0.33in. 0.219in.
Outside Diameter 9.05in. 16 in.
Type of Seam
Laying Lengths 20 ft. 20 ft.
Kind ofloints Mechanical Welded
Total Length within RR R/O/W 66 ft. 66 ft.
VENTS: # 0 Size Ht. aboveground,
SEALS: Both ends X One end BURY: Base of rail to top of casing 55 ft. 0 in.
BURY (Not beneathtracks}): 5.5 ft. 0 in. BURY (Roadway pipe): 9.5 ft. 0 in.

CATHODIC PROTECTION: (v} Yes ( ) No

PROTECTIVE COATING: () Yes ( ) No kind; Bituminous
Type, size, and spacing of insulators or supports: 2.5", Cascade Stainless Steel Casing Spacers, Every 10’

*  Method ofInstallation: Dry Jacking and Boring

410370
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Omnl'l'Ry(R

e APPLICATION FOR PIPE LINE CROSSING/PARALLEL ENCROACHMENT
UNDER/OVER PROPERTIES AND TRACKS
Telephone (303) 398-4588, Fax (866) 524 - 4141

By submitting this application for credit, you authorize OmniTRAX or affiliate, to make any inquiries necessary to determmine credit worthiness. You
release your banking instruction release details that would assist to determine creditworthiness.

T hereby certify that the information contained herein is complete and accurate. This information has been furnished with the understanding that it is
to be used to determine the amount and conditions of the credit to be extended. Furthermore, T hereby authorize the finaneial institutions listed in this
credit application to release necessary information to the company for which credit is being applied for in order to verify the information comntained
herein. Our terms of sale and service are NET 30 DAYS from the date listed on the invoice. Invoices that are beyond granted terms will be
assessed a late fee of 18% APR (1.5% monthly) additional Terms and Conditions apply. A $20.00 charge will apply for any NSF/Non-Sufficient
Checks.

Date: 11/26/24

Signature: __Signerip cwizEsRvYia

Name Printed: Adam Noon

Title: Project Engineer

Phone No.; 830-770-9915

FaxNo. 630-466-6701

BESURE TO RETURN THE COVER SHEET WITH YOUR APPLICATION
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SUMMARY OF QUANTITEES AND LEGEND

19.

‘SOUTH MAIN STREET PLAN AND PROFILE
STA 94150 TO STA 9900

SOUTH WA STREET PLAN AND PROFLE

JOHN PURCELL MAYOR o ovenaL rLa STh 95450 T0 STA 103450
21 SOUTH MAN STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
JORI BEHLAND CITY CLERK 5 ovERML LA STA 103130 T0 ST 108100
P 08400 T0 Sta a0 o
BART OLSON CITY ADMINISTRATOR 6. WORGAN STREET PLAN AND PROFLE -
STA 10400 1O STA 14430 25 SOUTH MAN STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
ERIC DHUSE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 7. MORGAN STREET PLAN AND PROFILE STA 120 TO'STA i+
P SE TO STA 19430 20 ORANGE STREET PLIN AND PROFLE
CHRIS FUNKHOUSER ALDERMAN & MORGAN STREET PLAN AND PROFILE STA 120+00 TO STA 123+00
STA 19400 TO STA 25430 I gAsHOTON STREET PLAY a0 PRORLE
KEN KOCH ALDERMAN 5. MORGAN STREET_PLAN AND PROFLE
STAZ350 10 STA 26400 . AN STREET AL a0 PROALE
MATT MAREK ALDERMAN 10, MADISON STREET PLAN AND PROFILE
TR0 16 ST 34450 7. AsnoTou STREET P o PRORLE
RUSTY CORNEILS ALDERMAN . MADISON STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
ST 34150 10 STA 35400 25 VEST ALEY STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
ARDEN JOE PLOCHER ALDERMAN 12 MADISON STREET PLAN AND PROFILE STA 160+00 TO STA 164+00
STR 400 16 STh 45400 2 OFFSITE PLAN AND PROFLE
CRAIG SOLING ALDERMAN 15 MADISON COURT PLAN MWD PROFLE STh 105400 T0 STA 19850
STA'30100 10 STA 52450 = TE PLAN AND PROFLE
SEAVER TARULIS ALDERMAN 14 VAN EMMON STREET PLAN AND PROFILE STA 168450 10 STA 171450
STA G000 T0 STA 5400 1.3 TIPGAL DETALS
DANIEL V. TRANSIER ALDERMAN 15 VAN EMMON STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
STA 64100 T0 ST 67430
16, ADAMS STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
STA 72400 T0 STA 73400
17, STATE STREET PLAN AND PROFILE
STA 80400 TO ST 86400
18 SOUTH MAN STREET PLAN AND PROFLE
SITE REFERENCE MARK 1 STA 90400 TO STA 94430
ARROW FLANGE HOLT ON WIDRANT AT THE NORTHWEST
ELEVATION = 645,36
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
651 PRAIRIE POINTE DRIVE
SITE REFERENGE MARK 2 'YORKVILLE, IL 60560
WEST FLANGE BOLT ON HYDRANT AT NORTHWEST 630-553-4350
CORNER OF HYDRAULIC AVE AND MORGAN ST
cLevATON — sese
ENGINEER'S CERTFICATION
YEARS l | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THESE PLANS WERE PREPARED
SITE REFERENGE MARK 3 UNGER WY DIRECT SOPERWSON.
ILLINOIS NORTHEAST FLANGE BOLT ON HYDRANT AT NORTHEAST Engineeri i DATED AT SUGAR GROVE, ILLNOIS.
ngineering Enterprises, Inc.
CORNER OF HYDRAULIC ST AND ADANS ST. 5
ONE-CALL SYSTEM comeR o o Consulting Enginers s oay o 2024,
- 52 Wheeler Road
Sugar Grove, lllinois 60554 E B VETE P
430.400.6700 I veoven.com LUINO'S LIGENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 062-004802
. SROFESSONAL DESION F # 104 302008 EXPRATIN DATE 11/30/23 —

0/E0TY "ON JUSW343y
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GENERAL

et B e e v SRS e e A M R e

2 THE CONIRACIOR SHALL SE REGURED 0 AKE ARRANGEMBNTS FOR THE PROPER, SRACING, SHORNG
o ST Reaath TR 6 AL REDANE SRR PO CIa e A Fee (NS
T CESTRUCTON BEGNS. THEY SHALL A€ RLSPONSBLE DR Y DAMAGE. 10 THE STREETS 5%
SRS 5 ASSOCNTED ST D SIAL UAGE (PR As KECESSARY 1
SARSPASTON o THE ENGNERR AD Gy AT THER O

3 THE CONTRACIOR SHALL EXAMINE THE PLANS AND SPECICATIONS, VST THE SITE 0F THE WORK AXD
NS TTEUSENES FULL' W Vet VD, CEVERAL A\, LGN, CCRDIIONS, Al TEOERAL,
STATE AND LOCAL LAUE, ORDNANCES, RULES AND, REGLLATONS D AL GTHER PERTHENT 1ENS
St R Wt SR e o COURATG! o i PRl SRR Ut A

4. PRCR 10 SUBMTING THER B0, THE CONTRACIOR SHALL CALL THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGNEER T0
IRV UATERAL G ESIPMENT HE BEENS NADEGUATE AR 10 Y 112N GF WORK OMITIED.

5 THE PAY ITEMS SAALL BE AS NOTED I THE SUMMARY OF QUANTITES/PROPOSAL._ANY ITEM OF
ORI TOAT 1 SHOW O THE BLARS TO B PERFORNED 5. THE CONRAGTOR, FoR WdH THERE IS
NOTAT T, SIALL B CONISRED NCDBITAL 10 T COST GF THE PROT

6. THE UNDERGROUND CONTRACTOR SALL BE RESPONSLE T0 PLACE ON GRADE AND COCRDINATE WTH
Oy CONRACIORS ALL UNDERGRUUND, STRUGTURE FRAMES SUGK A GATCH BASHG, I 15,
HROLES, TNDRAVTS, BUFPALO BOXCS, VALUES, ETC, KO ADDIIONAL COMSENSATION sHALL b PAD
0SB ADAISTUENTS SHALL B CONGUERED INGOENTAL 10 OIFER 1M O CORSTRUGTON.

THE CONTRACIOR SiALL RESTORE. WY AREA DISTUROED T & GONDION EQUAL T0 OR BETTER A
1T i vot “THls SRR MG el A, ESTABLSMOIT G A YGETATNE SOVGR
(GEebiNG O $36), GENERAL CLEANDY D PAVORNT AEPLACOION

& TIE CONIRACIOR SIALL OE RESPONSILE FOR FROVONG SAFE AND HEALTHFUL WORKING CONDITIONS
TRGOGHOUT THE CONSTRVCTON GF THE FROPOLLD MROVEMENTS.

THE ENGINGER WL B GIVEN FORTYSGHT (48) HOURS NTCE FOR ANY STAKNG THAT I 10 06
S AT o EVARDUS TR o ek O 51 i CoMTmAST WL SASD s,
Aol Sl meQURED DUt 10 e NEGUGDIGE GF THE CONTASTOR SHAL % PAD FOR BY

ORI T IATER LN, GoACmC A A SRARLGE MPRORENT. X e TR
oty WOLIR NOIE SHALL B8 G TOR RERRES FIAL TESTIG A0 INSPECTION
T OB PAVNG, WATER NANS. G SANTARY SERERS

AFTROVED B TS EXGNER, THAL PATHNT SHAL B HAGE 1% AL O T GIRACTOS

14, IF_ANY APPROVED EQUAL ITBS ARE REGUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE ENGNEER FOR
FePRoiAL

15, ALY DRAIN AND/OR FELD TLE BICOUNTERED BY THE CONTRACTOR, DURNG THE INSTALLATION OF THE
A s 10 GRenaL SO, TS VAR 70 B CERABERED
REBAITAL 0 T SonTRACT.

16, ALL ROAD SONS, STREET SGHS AND TRATFIC SIGNS WCH NEED 10 BF RELOCATED OR NOVED DUE
0 CONSTRUCTIN SHALL BE TAGEN DOM AND STORED 51 THE OTRACTOR AT THER OMN EXPENSE,
ESEPT THOS WA AKE NEGESSARY FOR PROPLR, TRAFIC GONTROL Je1C SIpLL BE TEMPCRARLT
FESET SO NON G CoRSTGTON GLERATION TG CONPLETEN O T WOk, T
CONTRACIOR SHAL RESET, AT WS EXPENSE, ALL SAD SONS.

17, MO EXGAYATIONS WL BE PERWTTED To REWAN O°EN OVER ANY HEEKEND.
18, "BAND-SEAL” OF SMILAR COUPLINGS SHALL BE USED WHEN JOINNG SEWER PIES OF DSSHILAR
WAERAZS

19, AS-3ULT DRAMNGS SHALL BE PREPARED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBMITTED TO THE ENGNEER AS
P e e e Al ol ™ SR AR Lo B

20, THE CONTRACIOR 1S RESEONSELE FOR CODRONATING MY REGURED INSPECTIONS OR CBSERVATONS.
Wi T ENGIEER AND/OR UNTED. Y OF TOKVLLE.
1. SPECUAL ATIONION 15 o D TIE FACT AT SRICLE 10500 o TIE STADITD SPECCATONS
& COMPETENT SUPERNTENDENT PRACT STE &1 AL
T, RRESPECIe O 1k MMGONT O NG SUBET Tt SUPCANTOGERY A o6 s
S RGE I WoESTING Tie P a3 Somcinans Sl v U i

G o PR S R T

22, THE ENGINEER D ITY ARE NOT RESPONSILE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHCOS,
TECMIOUES, SCOUDICES. O PROCEDURES. T OF PERGORUNCE DROGUAVS D1 O AT Sisery

B ST 6 SerICHaN (NI WG AN SNt SRS N . AT

25, THE CONTRAGTOR SHALL YERFY THE LOCATION OF THE EXSTING B-B01ES PRIGR 10 GONSTRLCTN.

W T e B B0 A Y ADUSENTS SHAL B
ArPRoiEy 57 e G s DIGNESR o 1o CONSTRUETEN T YEMCATON
SORSBT oF Tat b = CoNEIOERED WGDETAL T TE WATER WAR OR WATER

SRR RS TRUCTON.

26, THE CONTRACIOR SHALL MAKE REASOHABLE EEFORTS To PROTECT SPEWALK AND CLRD AND CUTIER
THRT IS NOY DRECTLY.EAGTED B THE WATER MAN, TRERCH. - SOEYALS A CLR A GUTTER
Siices Bl Eovarcron B Mt o e B A
SIS ENGREER. ANY UNECESSARLY DAMAGED SOEWALK KD CURB ARD GUTTER WL
A P conTracTove EoPOL

LK PAY MOTH FOR PAVENENT REMOVML UL DB
Bat W'

=

“ RS F R R YR SR R

5 EDOING . “STMDIAD SPECFCATONS £0R WATER JHD. SN WA CONSTRICTGN I LLNOR” SHALL 06

2. 0 5 o 5 e R T CIUPLETE T CaNECTON T TE OXETG AT 0 oETEDN
e AT A SRl Bl ST e o RS O
RGNS AN BETNCS.

4. BROR 10 T ST o CONSTACION, IVE CONTACTOR A1D DIGNEER SHAL IVENTOR TE LOTATIN. Sz,
T R i O S TR B o S DALACED DR EENSICTON SWALL 5 REPACED AT
TGN BACIOR DFENE.
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WATERIAN coNSTRUCTION
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A4 FITNGS st BE DUCLE P i S CoR T G AZLSS AW CIS. FTINGS 0
AL PP 0 FITINGS SHAL BE CORNT IED [N ACCCROANGE WTH AYS A28 (WA G4
44 FITAGS AL 5 WSCHMCCAL ONT AYD WSTALED W RETANER GLAOS LAESS OVERWSE SHOW O
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AL WATER MANS SHALL HAVE A MNMAN DEPH 05 COVER OF 5.
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